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Auditors’ Report

To the Share Owners of
Canadian Utillities Limited

.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Canadian Utilities Limited as at December 31,
2006 and 2005 and the consolidated statements of earnings and retained carnings and cash flows for the
years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management,
Our responsibility is-to express an oplmon ‘on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with. Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
asscssing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
cvaluating the overall financial statement presentation. '

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the results of its operations

and its cash flows for the years then endcd in accordancc w1th Canadian gencrally accepted accounting
principles.

%%W@M L

Chartered-Accou ntants

Calgary, Alberta

PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the Canadian firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the other member finms of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent tegal entity.
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED -

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Millions of Canadian Doliars except per share data)

|
|
|
) Costs and expenses

Three Months Ended Year Ended’
December 31 December 31
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
(Unaudited)

Revenues $ 671.1 $ 680.3 §2,430.4 - 52,5158

Natural gas supply 10.2 183 36.4 162.2

Purchased power 12.5 12.2 46.1 - 454

Operation and maintenance 243.5 261.7 950.3 1,003.6

Setling and administrative 74.9 57.3 2075 - 1904

Depreciation and amortization 95.6 84,5 3485 <3115

Interest 7,12 54.6 514 2229 2100

Franchise fees 42.4 49.5 1504 . 1523

533.7 - 534.9 1,962.1 2,075.4

) 1;37.4 145.4 468.3 440.4

interest and other income 6 183.9 - 10.6 _58.5 36.6

Earnings before income taxes 156.3 156.0 '526.8 477.0

income taxes 7 47.4 58.0 167.1 175.6

. 108.9 98.0 359.7 3014

Dividends on equity preferved shares 8.9 8.9 35.8 35.8

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares 100.0 89,1 3239 265.6

Retained earnings at beginning of period 1,741.1 1,6';.'0.4 . l,721.§ 1,603.4

i o 1,841.1 1,759.5 2,045.8 1,86%.0

Dividends on Class A and Class B shares 36.3 349 176.7 139.6

Purchase of Class A shares and other direct charges ‘ ’ ’

to retained earnings 8 0.4 2.7 64.7 7.5

Retained earnings at end of period §$1,804.4 $1,7219 . '51,804.4 $1,721.9
Earnings per Class A and Clas§ B share. 15 $ 080 § 070 $ 257 % .09 -

Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share 15 $ 080 S 069. $ 256§ 208

Dividends paid per Class A and Class B share 15 $ 029 § 0.275 § 140 § 110




CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

December 31

¥

: Note 2006 2005
ASSETS '
Current assets
Cash and short term investments 18 § 798.8 3 8246
Accounts receivable 362.3 3534
‘Inventories. 96.5 88.0
Regulatory assets 2 13.3 19.1 .
- Prepaid expenses . 23.6 19.9°
: ¢ 1,294.5 1,305.0
Property, plant and equipment 9 5,426.1 52087
“Regulatory assets - 2 .d43.2 350 -
Other assets 10 229.7 __269.1
' . $6,993.5 $6,817.8
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities )
Bank indebtedness $ - § 02
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 338.8 342.6
Income taxes payable ’ 22.7 26.7
Future income taxes 7 0.3 4.1
Regulatory liabilities 2 0.5 6.4
. Non-rccoursc long term debl due ‘within one ycar 12 - 59.3 57.0
oo 421.6 - 431.0
Future incdn_le taxes 7 194.7 -200.3
Regulatory liabilities. 2 148.8 ‘161.9
Deferred credits 13 229.0 2538
‘Long term debt 12 2,411.5 2,231.0
" Non-recourse long term debt ’ 12 626.7 673.8
Equiiy preferred shares - 14 636.5 636.5
. Class A and Class B share owners' equity
t. Class A and Class B shares 15 516.0 519.1
Contributed surplus 16 12 0.7
Retained earnings 1,804.4 1,721.9
- I'OI'CIED CuITency translatlon adjustmem 3.1 (18.2) °
.2,324.7 2,223.5
$6,993.5 '$6,817.8
{Original signed by N.C. Southern] [Original signed by B.K. French]
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 ' c



CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended - Year Ended
December 31 December 31
Note 2006 2005 2006 2005
{Unaudited)
Operating activities )
Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares § 100.0 ¥ 89.1 $323.9 265.6
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 95.6 84.5 348.5 3115
Future income taxes 113 0.6 (1.6) 7.7
Deferred availability incentives (41.0) 14.5 (20.2) 13.7
TXU Europe settlement - net of income taxes 5 3.3) 3.7 (1.6) 458
Other 5.8 2.8 8.5 15.0
Funds generated by operations 168.4 187.8 657.5 659.3
Changes in non-cash working capital - 17 (48.5) (1.2) (39.6) 90.2
Cash flow from operations 119.9 186.6 617.9 749.5
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (184.0) (181.2) (567.7) (526.7)
Proceeds on transfer of retail energy supply businesses
- net of income taxes 3 - - - 43.4
Costs on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.3) 4.4) (10.4) (5.9
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant 20.1 6.7 81.3 441
Non-current deferred electricity costs 8.7 5.7 4.5 (157
Changes in non-cash working capital 17 15.4 244 (18.3) 3.4
Income tax reassessment 7 - - (12.8) -
Other 0.9 (0.1 @.1) (6.2)
(160.6) (160.3) (527.5) (470.4)
Financing activities
Issue of long term debt 320.0 185.0 355.5 2220
Repayment of long term debt (175.0) (35.4) (175.0) C(167.1)
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt : (12.6) (9.1) (64.6) (54.3)
Net issue (purchase} of Class A shares 1.9 2.7 (67.5) 2.7)
Dividends paid to Class A and Class B share owners (36.3) (34.9) (176.7) (139.6)
Changes in non-cash working capital 17 (0.1) 0.3 (0.1} 31
Other ) (2.6) (2.1) (3.9 (3.2)
: 95.3 101.1 (132.3) (141.8)
Foreign currency translation 11.6 0.2 16.3 (11.2)
Cash position "
Increase (decrease) ‘ T 662 127.6 (25.6) 126.1
Beginning of period 732.6 696.8 824.4 698.3
End of period § 798.8 $8244 $798.8 $824.4

™ Cash position consists of cash and short term investments less current bank indebtedness.



CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED ,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2006
{tabular amounts in-millions of Canadian dollars)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies
Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Canadian Utilities Limited and its
subsidiaries, including a proportionate share of joint venture investments (the “Corporation™). Principal operations
are Utilities (ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas, ATCO Pipelines), Power Generation (ATCO Power, Alberta Power
(2000)) and Global Enterprises (ATCO Midstream, ATCQ Frontec, ATCO I-Tek). Significant joint venture
investments consist principally of power generation plants; a substantial portion of Power Generation’s operations
are conducted through joint ventures.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
Rate Regulation

ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Nerthland Utilities (NWT), Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon
Electrical, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd. and the generating plants
of Alberta Power (2000}, all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of Canadian Utilities Limited’s wholly owned
subsidiary, CU Inc., are collectively referred 1o in these consolidated financial statements as the “regulated
operations”™. Accounting for rate regulated operations is described in Note 2.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
management lo make estimales and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the year.  On an on-going basis, management reviews its estimates, particularly those
related to depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and impairment of long-lived assets, amortization of
deferred availability incentives, asset retirement obligations and employee future benefits, using currently available
information. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates, and actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

For regulated operations, revenues are recognized in a manner that is consistent with the underiymg rate design as
mandated by the regulator.

Revenues from ATCO Gas” regulated distribution of natural gas include variable charges, which are recognized on

the basis of meter readings upon delivery of natural gas to customers and include an estimate of usage not yet billed,
and fixed charges, based on the provision of the distribution service during the period. Revenues from the sale of
natural gas by ATCO Gas frem storage, which ended on March 31, 2005, were recognized upon delivery.

Revenues from ATCO Electric’s regulated distribution of electricity include variable charges, which are recognized
on the basis of meter readings upon delivery of electricity 10 customers and include an estimate of usage not yet

‘billed, and fixed charges, based on the provision of the distribution service during the period. Revenues for the use

of ATCO Electric’s repulated transmission facilities are based on an annual tariff and are recognized evenly
throughout the year.

Revenues from ATCO Pipelines’ regulated transpertation of natural gas are recognized on the basis of contractual
arrangements. For certain services, revenues are recognized on the basis of meter readings upen delivery of natural
gas to customers and include an estimate of usage not yet billed,
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

-

Revenues from rcgulated sales and distribution of natural gas and electricity by other regulated operations,

‘excluding Alberta Power (2000), are recognized upon delivery, pnmanly on the basis of meter readings, and include

an esnmalc of usage not yet billed.

Revenues from generating plants are recognized upen delivery of output or upen availability of delivery as
prescribed by contractual arrangements. Incentives and penalties associated with Power Purchase Arrangements
("PPA™) are recognized as described under the accounting policy for deferred availability incentives.

Revenues from ATCO Midstream’s natural gas storage and processing capacity aré recognized on the basis of

contractual arrangements, and revenues from the sale of natural gas liquids are recognized upon delivery.’

Revenues from the supply of contracted services are recorded by the percentage of completion method; full
provisicn is made for any anticipated loss. Other revenues are recognized when products are delivered or-services
are provided. .

- Natural Gas Supply

Natural gas supply expense for regulated operations, which consists of natural gas volumes purchased for sales to
customers (see Note 3 regarding natural gas supply of regulated operations following the transfer of retait energy
supply businesses by ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric in 2004), is based on actual costs incurred. ’

Natural gas supply expense for other subsidiaries, which consists of natural gas volumes purchased for natural gas

_ liquids extraction and sales 1o third parties, is based on actual costs incurred.

Purchased Power

Purchased power expense in the ‘{ukbn Territory and the Northwest Territories is based on the actual cost of
electricity purchased. The amount included in customer rates in the Yukon Territory is based on actual costs and in

- the Northwest Territories is based on forecast cost. Revenues are adjusled for variances from forecast cost, and the
" variances are deferred until such time as approval from the regulator is obtained for rcfund to or collection from

customers.
lncame Taxes

The regulated operatlons follow the method of accounting for income taxes that i is consistent with the method of
determining the income tax component of their rates. When future income taxes are not prov:ded in the income tax
component of current rates, such future income taxes.are not recogmzed to the extent that it is expected that they
will be recovered from customers through inclusion in future rates. - : .

Other subsidiaries follow. the liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under this, melhod,‘fu.ture tax

" liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributablé to differences between the

financial statement canymg ameunts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Future tax liabilities
and assets are measured using enacted and substantively. enacted tax rates. The effect on future” tax liabilities and
assets of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that the change occurs.

)

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value.
Property, Plant and Equipmem

-

Property, plant and eqmpmenl are recorded at cost less accumulated deprecnatlon and unamortized contributions by
utility customers for extensions to plant.



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Regulated operations include in property, plant and equipment an allowance for funds used during construction at
rates approved by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (“"AEUB”) for debt and equity capital. Property, plant and
equipment in the other subsidiaries include capitalized interest incurred during construction.

Certain regulated additions are made with the assistance of non-refundable cash contributions from customers when
the estimated revenue is less than the cost of providing service or where special equipment is needed to supply the
customers’ specific requirements. These contributions are amortized on the same baSIS as, and offset the
depreciation charge of, the assets to which they relate.

Depreciation is provided on assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation rates for
regulated assets, excluding Alberta Power (2000)'s generating plants, are approved by the AEUB and include a
provision for future removal costs and site restoration costs {see the accounting policy for asset retirement
obligations below). On retirement of these depreciable regulated assets, the accumulated depreciation is charged
with the cost of the retired unit, net disposal costs and site restoration costs,

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite lives are tested for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate a possible impairment. An impairment of property; plant and equipment and
intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in earnings when the asset’s carrying value exceeds the total cash
flows expected from its use and eventual disposition. The impairment loss is then calculated as the difference
between the asset’s carrying value and its fair vatue, which is determined using present value techniques.

Deferred Financing Charges

- Issue costs of long term debt are amortized over the life of the debt, issue costs of preferred shares relating to

regulated operations are amortized over the expected life of the issue and issue costs of preferred shares relating to
other subsidiaries are charged to retained earnings. Unamortized premiums and issue costs of redeemed long term
debt and preferred shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the life of the issue funding the
redemption.

Deferred Availability Incentives

Under the terms of the PPA’s, the Corporation is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit
availability. Incentives are paid to the Corporation by the PPA counterparties for availability in excess of
predetermined targets, whereas penalties are paid by the Corporation to the PPA counterparties when the availability
targets are not achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimated future incentives exceed accumulated penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the PPA’s.
Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus estimated future
incentives, the shortfall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs,

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations are legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long lived assets. To the
extent that they can be quantified, these obligations are measured and recognized at fair value, which is determined
using present value techniques.

An asset retirement obligation is recorded as a liability in deferred credits, with a corresponding increase to property,
plant and equipment. The liability is accreted over the estimated time period until settlement of the obligation, with
the accretion expense included in depreciation and amortization. The asset is depreciated over its estimated useful
life.



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Asset retirement obligations for regulated natural gas and electric transmission and distribution assets are not
recognized as the Corporation expects to use the assets in service for an indefinite period. As such, no final removal
date can-be determined and, consequently, a reasonable estimate of the related retirement obligations cannot be
made at this time. Asset retirement obligations have been recorded for the regulated generating plants of Alberta
Power (2000) and other generating plants and natural gas liquids extraction and processing plants.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Corporation retroactively adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountant’s
(“CICA™) Emerging Issues Abstract regarding conditional asset retirement obligations. This abstract requires an
entity to record a liability for an asset retirement obligation where the timing and/or method of settlement are
conditional upon the occurrence of a future event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. Adoption
of this abstract had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Long Term Debt Due Within One Year

When the Corporation intends to refinance long term debt due within one year on a long term basis and there is a
written undertaking from an underwriter to act on the Corporation's behalf with respect thereto, or sufficient
capacity exists under long term bank loan agreements 1o issue commercial paper or assume bank loans, then long
term debt due within one year is classifted as long term.

Hedging

In conducting its business, the Corporation uses varicus instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and
options, 1o manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All
such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

The Corporation destgnates each derivative instrument as a hedge.of specific assets or liabilities on the balance sheet
or specific firn commitments or anticipated transactions. The Corporation also assesses, both at the hedge’s
inception and on an ongeing basis, whether the derivative instruments that are used in hedging transactions are
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

Payments or receipts on derivative instruments that are designated and effective as hedges are recognized
concurrently with, and in the same financial category as, the hedged item.

If a derivative instrument is terminated or ceases to be effective as a hedge prior to maturity, the gain or loss at that
date is deferred and recognized in income concurrently with the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the value of the
derivative instrument are reflected in income. If the designated hedged item is sold, extinguished or matures priot to
the termination of the related derivative instrument, the gain or loss at that date on such derivative instrument is
recognized in income,

Employee Future Benefits

The Corporation accrues for its obligations under defined benefit pension and other post employment benefit plans.
Costs of these benefits are determined using the projected benefits method prorated on service and reflects
management’s best estimates of investment returns, wage and salary increases, age at retirement and expected health
care costs.

Pension plan assets at the end of the year are reported at market value. The expected long term rate of return on plan
assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis of the long bend yield rate at the beginning of the year
plus an equity and management premium that reflects the plan asset mix. Expected return on plan assets for the year
is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the market related value of plan assets, which is the
average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the preceding three years,

Accrued benefit obligations at the end of the year are determined using a discount rate that reflects market interest
rates on high qualny corporate bonds that match the ummg and amount of expected benefit payments.



1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Experience gains and losses and the effect of changes in assumptions in excess of 10% of the greater of the accrued
benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, adjustments resulting from plan amendments and the net

" transitional liability or asset, which arose upon the adoption in 2000 of the current accounting standard, are

amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of employees.

Pursuant to an AEUB decision effective January 1, 2000, the rcgﬁlated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000),
are required to expense contributions for other post employment benefit and certain other defined benefit pension
plans as paid. The differences between the amounts accrued and paid are deferred in non-current regulatory assets
and liabilities,

Employer contributions to the defined contribution pension plans are expensed as paid.
Stock Based Compensation Plans

The Corporation expenses stock options granted on and after January 1, 2002; no compensation expense is recerded
for stock options granted prior to January 1, 2002 as permitted by GAAP. The Corporation determines the fair value
of the options on the date of grant using an option pricing model and recognizes the fair value over the vesting
period of the options granted as compensation expense and contributed surplus. Contributed surplus is reduced as
the options arc exercised and the amount initially recorded in contributed surplus is credited to Class A and Class B
share capital.

No compensation expense is recognized when share appreciation rights are granted. Prior to vesting, compensation
expense arising from an increase or decrease in the market price of the shares over the base value of the rights is
accrued equally over the remaining months to the date of vesting. After that date, compensation expense arising
from an increase or decrease in the market price of the shares is recognized monthly in eamings.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA Emerging Issues Abstract regarding
stock based compensation for employees eligible to retire before the vesting date, This abstract requires an entity to
recognize the compensation cost attributable to such an award over the period from grant date te the date the
employee becomes eligible to retire. Since the Corporation does not have stock based compensation plans that
contain such provisions, adoption of this abstract had no effect on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of self-sustaining foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange
during the year. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign operations are included in the foreign
currency translation adjustment in share owners’ equity.

Monetary assets and liabilities of integrated foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date, non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at rates of exchange in
effect when the assets were acquired or liabilities incurred, and revenues and expenses are translated at the average
monthly rates of exchange during the year. Gains or losses on translation of integrated foreign operations are
recognized in earnings.

Transactions undertaken by Canadian operations that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Canadian doliars at the rate of exchange in effect at the transaction date.



2. Accounting for rate regulated operations
Nature and economic effects of rate regulation

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines (the “utilities”) are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which
administers acts and regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and
service area.

The generating plants of Alberta Power {2000) were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000 but are now
governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB. These plants are included in regulated
operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of generating plants constructed before
January 1, 1996 to recover their forecast fixed and variable costs and to eamn a return at the rate specified in the
PPA’s. The planis will become deregulated upon the earlier of one year afler the expiry of a PPA or a decision to
continue to operate the plant. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the estimated life of
the related generating plant and December 31, 2020. :

The utilities are subject to a cost of service regulatory mechanism under which the AEUB establishes the revenues
required (i) to recover the forecast operating costs, including depreciation and amortization and income taxes, of
providing the regulated service, and (ii) to provide a fair and reasonable return on utility investment, or rate base.
Whereas actual operating conditions may vary from forecast, actual returns achieved can differ from approved
refums.

Rate base for each utility is the aggregate of the AEUB approved investment in property, plant and equipment, less
accumulated depreciation, plus an allowance for working capital. Rate base also excludes no-cost capital, which
consists of unamortized contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant. The utilities eamn a return on rate
base intended 10 meet the cost of the debt and preferred share components of rate base and to provide share owners
with a fair return on the common equity component of rate base.

The AEUB approves rates of return for the debt and preferred share components of rate base based on the actual or
forecast weighted average cost of each utility’s debt and preferred shares On July 2, 2004, the AEUB established a
standardized approach for determining the rate of return on common equity for each utility regulated by the AEUB.
This rate of return will be adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term Government of Canada bond yield as
forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average difference between the 10 year and 30 year
Government of Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported in the National Post. In January 2006, the
AEUB clarified that the generic return on equity determined on an annual basis in accordance with the generic cost
of capital decision should apply to each year of the test period in the utilities’ applications. If no rate applications
are filed for a particular year, then there will be no adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year.

The AEUB also established the capital structure for each utility and determined that any proposed changes to the
approved capital structure which result from a material change in the investment risk of a utility will be addressed at
utitity specific rate applications.

Under the cost of service methodology, the utilities seek approval for their revenue requirement either through
submission of general rate applications to the AEUB or a negotiated settlement process with interested parties. In
the latter case, the AEUB monitors the negotiated settlement process and approves any agreement that is reached.
The AEUB may approve interim rates or approve the recovery of costs on a placeholder basis, subject to final
determination.

Financial statement effects of rate regulation
Certain items in these consolidated financial statements are accounted for differently than they would be in the

absence of rate regulation. CICA recommendations do not require that assets and liabilities arising from rate
regulation be recognized and measured in accordance with the primary sources of GAAP.

Where regulatory decisions dictate, the utilities defer certain costs or revenues as assets or liabilities on the balance
sheet and record them as expenses or revenues in the earnings statement as they collect or refund amounts through
future customer rates. Any adjustments to these deferred amounts are recognized in earnings in the period that the
AEWUB renders a subsequent decision.
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2. Accounting for rate regulated operations (confinued)

Circumstances in which rate regulation affects the accounting for a transaction or event are described below. For
these regulatory items, the expected recovery or settlement period, or likelihood of recovery or settlement, is
affected by risks and uncertainties relating to the ultimate authority of the regulator in determining the item’s
treatment for rate seiting purposes, and, unless specifically indicated, is indeterminate.

The regulatory assets and liabitities comprise the following: :
= - 2006 2005

Regulatory assets — current: . -
Deferred hearing costs $ - § 838
Deferred electricity costs _ 1.7 -
Other regulatory assets ' 11.6 10.3
: ) $ 13.3 $-15.1
Regulatory assets — non-current. ’ ’
Regulatory other post employment benefits asset (Note 20} : $ 276 $ 220
Deferred electricity costs : ' 7.1 : 54
Deferred hearing costs 1.4 1.6
Reserves for injuries and damages ) 2.0 . 54
Other regulatory assets 5.1 - 0.6
‘ $ 43.2 ' $ 35.0
Regulatory liabilities — current:
Deferred electricity cost recoveries 5 - $ 4.0
Reserves for injuries and damages . - 0.8
Other regulatory liabilities 0.5 1.6
.. ' $ 05 $ 6.4
Regulatory liabilities — non-current: .
Regulatory pension liability (Note 20) ‘ 5118.7 $139.4
Deferred royalty credits 19.7 18.1
Deferred electricity cost recovenes 6.2 -
Deferred hearing costs ‘ 0.4 2.6
Reserves for injuries and damages 2.8 0.8
Other regulatory liabilities ;1.0 1.0,
: . $148.8 $161.9

Employee future benefits

The Corporation accrues for its obligations under defined benefit pension and other post employment benefit plans.
The regulatory asset (liability) reflects an AEUB decision, effective January 1, 2000, to record costs of employee
future benefits in the utilities when paid rather than accrued. The variances between the amounts paid and accrued
for each of the defined benefit pension plans and the other post employment benefit plans will vary depending on the
performance of plan assets and the actuarial valuations of plan obligations. These variances will be deferred until
the plans are paid, settled or terminated.

GAAP requires that the variances between the amounts accrued and paid be recognized as an expense or reduction
in expense in the period in which they are accrued. Consequently, defined benefit pension plan cost in 2006 would
have been $19.5 million higher (2005 — $1.6 million lower), and other post employment benefit plan cost in 2006
would have been $3.5 million higher (2005 — $3.3 million higher), in the absence of rate regulation.

Upon lhe adoptlon of the current accounnng standard in 2000, ‘the utilities had recorded deferred pension assets of
.$23.0 million. The utilities have been earmng an AEUB approved rate of return on these assets through customer
rates as the assets form part of the utilities’ AEUB approved rate base.’ In the absence of rate regulation, the utilities
would not be able to eam a return on these assets. Consequently, revenues in 2006 would have been $1.7 million
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2. Accounting for rate regulated operations {continued)

lower (2005 — $2.1 million tower). On October 11, 2006, the AEUB issued a decision that approved recovery of
these assets for a nine-year period commencing January 1, 2005 and permitted the utilities to continue to earn an
AEUB approved rate of return on the unrecovered portion of these assets over the recovery period. In 2006, the
utilities amortized $5.1 million {2005 -~ nil) of the deferred pension asset.

Deferred electricity costs (recoveries)

Variances between ATCO Electric’s actual and forecast transmission access payments may arise due to changes in
tariffs charged by the Alberta Power Pool. The amount included in customer rates is based on forecast cost.
Revenues are adjusted for changes in tariffs, and the variances are deferred until approval from the AEUB is
obtained for refund to or collection from customers, which is expected to occur in the following year. GAAP
requires that revenues be based on the rates approved by the AEUB and not adjusted for variances between forecast
and actual costs.

In Alberta, major transmission capital projects are planned by the Alberta Power Pool and directly assigned 1o one of
the transmission facility owners in the province. Revenue requirement includes a return on forecast rate base.
Whereas actual capital costs may vary from forecast capital costs, variances may arise between the return on
forecast rate base and the return on actual rate base. Revenues are adjustéd for these variances, and the variances are
deferred until approval from the AEUB is obtained for refund to or collection from the Alberta Power Pool, which is
expected to occur in the following year. GAAP requires that revenues be based on the rates approved by the AEUB
and not adjusted for variances between the returns on forecast and actual rate base.

Consequently, revenues in 2006 would have been $1.2 million lower (2005 — $23.4 million lower) in the absence of
rate regulation.

Deferred hearing costs

The utilities incur hearing costs on an ongoing basis associated with various AEUB regulatory proceedings. These
costs are comprised primarily of legal and consulting expenses incurred by the utilities in addition to costs incurred
by intervenor groups that have been reimbursed by the utilities as directed by the AEUB. Hearing costs are deferred
to the balance sheet and are expensed using AEUB approved annual amounts that are collected through customer
rates. Variances between the approved annual amounts and actual costs incurred are deferred until the next general
rate application or until'a specific application is made to the AEUB requesting recovery from or refund to customers.
GAAP requires that hearing costs be expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Consequently, expenses in
2006 would have been $6.8 million lower (2005 — $4.0 million higher) in the absence of rate regulation.

Reserves for injuries and damages

The AEUB has approved the use of reserves for injuries and damages by the utilities as a means of self-insurance.
The reserves for injuries and damages are established based on annual amounts approved by the AEUB to be
expensed by each utility and collected through customer rates. Variances between the approved annual amounts and
actual costs incurred are deferred until the following general rate application or until a specific application is made
to the AEUB requesting recovery from or refund to customers. GAAP requires that claims be expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Consequently, expenses in 2006 would have been $3.6 million lower (2005 -
31.1 million lower) in the absence of rate regulation,

For Alberta Power (2000), reserves for injuries and damages are recoverable under the terms of the PPA’s on a
straight line basis through 2008. GAAP requires that claims be expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Consequently, expenses in 2006 would have been $1.0 million fower (2005 ~ $1.0 million lower) in the absence of
rate regulation.
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2. Accounting for rate regulated operatibns (continued)

Deferred royalty credits

Under the terms of PPA’s, the.compensation for certain royalties incurred by Alberta Power (2000} for coal supply
are averaged over the term of each PPA. As such, royally costs incurred are deferred and expensed on the same
averape cost basis as reflected in the underlying PPA revenues. GAAP requires that royalty costs be expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. . Consequently, expenses in 2006 would have been $1.6 miltion lower (2005 —
$4.0 million tower) in the absence of rate regulation.

)

Other regulatory qsséts and liabilities

Other regulatory assets and liabilities include the following:

a)

b)

<)

ATCO Gas has received AEUB approval to defer:

i) Bad debt and collection agency fees incurred afier June 1, 2004 related to billings prior to that date and
associated late payment charges net of bad debt recoveries of $(0.1) million (2005 — $1.4 million);

ii} Charges from the Government of Alberta for funding of the office of the Utilities Consumer Advocate and
the Consumer Protection and Consumer Choice Campaign, net of AEUB approved recoveries from
customets, of $(0.6) million (2005 — $1.0 million); and,

iii) Removal and abandonment costs related to previously disposed of product:on properties, net of AEUB
approved recoveries from customers, of nil (2005 — $5.0 million).

Variances between the approved annual amoums and actual costs are deferred until the following general rate
application or until a specific application is made to the AEUB requesting recovery from or refund to
customers. GAAP requires that these net costs be expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Consequently, expenses in 2006 would have been $8.1 million lower (2005 — $2.1 million higher} in the
absence of rate regulation. Liabilities of $0.7 million are included in non-current regulatory liabilities (2005 —
$6.9 million in current regulatory assets and $0.5 million in non-current regulatory assets).

In October 2005, ATCO-Gas filed an application with the AEUB to approve the sale of its Red Deer Operating
Centre. In December 2005, the AEUB approved the sale and deferred its decision on the distribution of net
proceeds of $1.0 million until the Supreme Court of Canada rendered a judgment in the appeal regarding the
Calgary Stores Block disposition and allocation of proceeds thereon. The Supreme Court of Canada rendered
its decision on the Calgary Stores Block matter on February 9, 2006 and the AEUB complied with that decision
on August 11, 2006. Subsequently, ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the AEUB to approve the allocation of the
net proceeds from the sale of the Red Deer Operating Centre. On December 13, 2006, the AEUB issued a
decision approving the distribution of the proceeds to ATCO Gas. GAAP requires that gains and losses related
to asset dispositions be recognized in the period the disposition was made. Consequently, revenues in 2006
would have been $1.0 million lower (2005 — $1.0 million higher} in the absence of rate regulation.

ATCO Pipelines has received AEUB approval 1o defer the variances between actual and AEUB approved
forecast revenues and costs associated with the movement (receipt or delivery) of natural gas between ATCO
Pipelines’ system and other connected pipeline systems. ATCO Pipelines expects that the recovery of these
deferral accounts will occur in the next general rate application. GAAP requires that actual revenues and costs
be recognized in the peried in which they are eamed or incurred, Consequently, revenues in 2006 would have
been $0.9 million higher (2005 — $0.1 million lower) and expenses would have been $0.6 million lower (2005 —
$1.6 million lower) in the absence of rate regulation. Assets of $2.7 million and $0.2 million (2005 -
$2.2 million and nil} are included in current regulatory assets and non-current regulatory assets, respectively,
and liabilities of $0.5 million and $0.3 million (2005 — $1.6 miltion and nil) are included in currem regulatory
llabllmcs and non-current regulatory liabilities, respectively.




2. Accounting for rate regulated operations (continued)

d) ATCO Pipelines has received AEUB approval to establish a deferral account for the Salt Cavern Storage facility
to collect (i) the revenue requirements for return on rate base and associated income taxes related to the
necessary working capital for the natural gas in storage, and (ii) the gains or losses associated with the sale of
natural gas in the market upon withdrawal from storage. ATCO Pipelines is required to submit an- application
to the AEUB, either separately or in conjunction with a general rate application for that particular year,
requesting recovery from or refund to customers of the deferral amount should the deferral account exceed
$2.0 million at the end of the annual injection/withdrawal cycle on March 31 of a particular year. GAAP
requires that actual revenues and costs be recognized in the period in which they are earned or incurred.
Consequently, revenues in 2006 would have been $2.6 million lower (2005 — $1.2 million lower) in the absence
of rate regulation. Assets of $3.7 million are included in non-current regulatory assets (2005 - $1.2 million in
current regulatory assets) in the balance sheet.

e) I[n 2006, ATCO Pipelines received AEUB approval to establish deferral accounts to collect the costs and
revenues arising from load balancing transactions. Load balancing requires the purchase or sale of natural gas
to maintain appropriate operating pressures on ATCO Pipelines’ North and South transmission pipeline
systems. Should the deferral account for either North or South exceed $2.0 million, ATCO Pipelines may
submit an application to the AEUB requesting recovery from or refund to customers of that particular deferral

- amount. GAAP requires that actual revenues and costs be recognized in.the period in which they are eamed or
incurred. Consequently, expenses in 2006 would have been $8.9 million higher in the absence of rate
regulation. Assets of $8.9 million are included in current regulatory assets in the balance sheet.

Other items affected by rate regulation

The AEUB permits an allowance for funds used (“AFU™), based on each utility’s weighted average cost of capital,
to be included in rate base. AFU is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment for financial reporting
purposes, and is-depreciated as part of the total cost of the related asset, based on the expectation that depreciation’
expense, including the AFU component, will be approved for inclusion in future customer rates. Since AFU
includes preferred share and common equity components, it exceeds the amount allowed to be capitalized in similar
circumnstances in the absence of rate regulation.

The utilities and the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000) follow the method of accounting for income laxes
that is consistent with the method of determining the income tax component of its rates. When future income taxes
are not included in the income tax component of current rates, such future income taxes are not recognized to the
extent that they will be recovered from customers through inclusion in future rates. GAAP requires the recognition
of all future income tax liabilities and future tax assets in the absence of rate regulation (see Note 7).

3. Transfer of retail energy sﬁpply businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCGO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy

Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML™), a subsidiary of Centrica ple. Proceeds of the

transfer were $90 million, of which $45 million was paid at closing, and the remainder was paid on May 4, 2005.

ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric continue to own and operate the natural gas and electricity distribution systems used
- to deliver energy.

ATCO Pipelines, Northland Utilities (NWT),. Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical did not
participate in this transfer and continue to purchase natural gas and eleciricity for sale to customers. In addition, the
AEUB issued a decision that directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve for the benefit of utility customers
16.7 petajoules of storage capacity at its Carbon storage facility for the 2004/2005 storage year, which ended on
March 31, 2005, and issued a decision that terminated ATCO Plpelmcs obligation to purchase natural gas for sale to
customers effective October 31, 2005.

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of

natural gas and electricity to customers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply
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3. Transfer of retail energy supply businesses

natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML'’s parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee supported by a $235 million letter of credit in
respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCO 1-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance that the
coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the event of a reversion
of such functions.

Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a guarantee of ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO 1-Tek Business
Services’ payment and indemnity obligations to DEML contemplated under the transaction agreements.

4. Regulatory matters

On March 17, 2006, ATCO Electric received a decision on its general tariff application for 2005 and 2006 which
was filed with the AEUB in May 20035. The decision establishes the amount of revenue ATCO Electric can recover
through its rates for electric distribution and transmission service provided to its customers for 2005 and 2006, In
July and September 2005, the AEUB had approved interim refundable rates for distribution and transmission
operations, respectively; revenues associated with these interim refundable rates were recorded in 2005. The impact
of the decision for 2005 reduced earnings by $1.3 million and was recorded in the first quarter of 2006. The impact
of the decision for the full year 2006, as compared to the decision for the full year 2005, further reduced eamings by
$1.6 million. The decision also confirmed the return on commoen equity as determined by the AEUB’s standardized
rate of return methodology. The rate of retum on common equity was 9.5% in 2005 and is 8.93% in 2006.

On January 27, 2006, ATCO Gas received a decision on its general rate application which was filed with the AEUB
in May 2005 for the 2005, 2006 and 2007 test years. The decision establishes the amount of revenue ATCO Gas can
recover through distribution rates for natural gas distribution service to its customers over the period of 2005 to
2007. The decision also approved the return on common equity as determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of
return methodology. The rate of return on common equity was 9.5% in 2005, is 8.93% in 2006,-and will be 8.51%
for 2007. The final impact of the decision will not be known until a subsequent fegulatory process is finalized. A
decision from the AEUB with respect to a second regulatory process that was.pending at the end of 2005 was
received on October 11, 2006; the effect of this decision on the earnings of the Corporation was not material.

The Corporation has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB for
which decisions have not been received. The cutcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time.

5. TXU Europe settlement

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited (“*TXU Europe™) which had a long term “off take” agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by
the 1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking
Power, has a 25.5% equity interest. Barking Power had filed a claim for damages for breach of contract related to
TXU Europe’s obligations to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking generating plant. Following
negotiations with the administrators, an agreement was reached with respect to Barking Power’s claim.

Barking Power received a total of four distributions in settlement of its claim: a first distribution of £112.3 million
(approximately $257 million) on March 30, 2005, of which the Corporation’s share was $65.4 million; a second
distribution of £32.2 million (approximately $69.6 million) on August 2, 2003, of which the Corporation’s share was
$17.7 million; a third distribution of £31.8 million (approximately $65.2 million) on January 19, 2006, of which the
Corporation’s share was $16.6 million; and a final distribution of £3.0 million (approximately $6.2 million) on
July 20; 2606, of which the Corporation’s share was $1.6 million. Income taxes of approximately $28.1 million
relating to the distributions have been paid. Income taxes of approximately $0.4 million relating to the final
distnbution will be paid in 2007 as part of the Corporation’s normal tax installments.



5. TXU Europe settlement (continued)

Based on the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at March 30, 2005, the Corporation’s share of this settlement
is expected to generate eamnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, which will be recognized over the
remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These
earnings will- be dependent upon foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time that the earnings are
recognized.

6. Interest and other income

2006 2005
Interest - ‘ $39.3 $29.0
Allowance for funds used by regulatéd operations 9.3 7.0
Gains on dispositions of property, plant and equipment 8.3 1.7
Other income (expense) 1.6 (1.1)
$58.5 $36.6

7. Income taxes
The income tax provision differs from that computed using the statutory tax rates for the following reasons:

' 2006 2005

Earnings before income taxes . $526.8 % ] $477.0 Y-
Income taxes, at statutory rates . . $208.0 39.5 $193.8 40.6
Federal general tax reduction ¢V ©(23.2) (4.4} (18.1) 3.8)
Manufacturing and processing tax credit (7.7). (1.5) (7.5) (1.6}
Resource allowance (1.6) (0.3) 2.8) (0.6}
Crown royalties and other non-deductible Crown payments 0.7 0.1 1.1 02
Foreign tax rate variance (7.6) (1.4) 6.2) (1.3)
Non-deductible interest on foreign. ﬁnancmg 1.3 0.3 1.4 03
Large Corporations Tax - - 7.8 1.7
Change in future’i income taxes resu]tmg from reduction in.
* tax rates (12.2) 2.3 - -
Change in method of accounting for future income taxes in o ‘

certain regulated operations © - ' (4.0) (0.8) - -
.Unrecorded future’income taxes relating to regulaled operations " 25 0.5 1.0 02
H.R. Milner income tax reassessment . 714 14 - -
Other : 3.5 0.6 5.1 1.1

' 167.1 - 31.7 175.6. 36.8

Current income taxes ) 183.0 185.8
Future income taxes (recoveries) ’ : $(15.9) $(10.2)

) The federal general tax reduction of 7% is applicable to earnings that have not otherwise benefited from the

manufacturing and processing tax credit and/or the resource allowance. An additional federal tax reduction of
5% (2005 — 3%} is applicable to earnings that have benefited from the resource allowance.



7. [Income taxes (continued)

The future income tax liabilities (assets) comprise the following:

et

2006 2005
. “ ok

Property, plant and equipment $212.2 $222.7
" Deferred assets and liabilities (17.1) {18.3)
Tax loss carryforwards (0.1) (0.3)

" * Other . - 0.3
’ T 195.0 2044

Less: Amounts included in current future income taxes . 03 4.1

) ] : $194.7 ~$200.3

.

At December 31, 2006, unrecorded future income tax liabilities” of the regulated operations amounted to
$141.3 million and unrecorded future income tax assets of other operations amounted to $0.5 million. The liabilities
include $14.6 million in respect of Alberta Power (2000)s generating plants, which will be recovered through future
payments received in respect of the PPA’s.

In 2006, the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™) issued a reassessment for Alberta Power (2000)’s 2001 taxation
year. The CRA’s reassessment treats the proceeds received from the sale of the H.R. Milner generating ‘plant 1o the

Alberta Balancing Pool as income rather than as a sale of an asset. The Corporation has made submissions to the.
CRA opposing the CRA’s position. The lmpact of the reassessment'is a $12.4 million increase in interest and’

income tax expense, a $12.4 million decrease in eamings and a $28.8 million payment associated with the tax and
interest assessed. It is expected that $16.4 million of this cash payment will be recovered by reducing income taxes
payable through higher capital cost allowance claims. Due to the uncertainty as to whether the reassessment will
ultimately be resolved in the Corporation’s favour, the Corporation reduced earnings by $12.4 million in 2006.

There are tax loss carryforwards of $0.4 million for Canadian Subsidiary corporations and $7.6 million for a foreign
subsidiary corporauon for which no tax benefit has been recorded. The losses for Canadian subsidiary corporanons
begin to exp:re in 2010 and the losses for the foreign subsidiary corporation do not expire.

Income taxes paid amounted to $187.0 million (2005 — $178.6 million).

8. Purchase of Class A shares and other direct charges to retained earnings

2006 2005
Purchase of Class A shares . $64.4 $7.5
Purchase of ATCO Europa Szerkezetgyarlo és Kereskcdelml Kft (Note 19 : 0.3 e -
$64.7 §7.5
16 =1,




9. Property, plant and equipment

2006

2005

Composite
Depreciation

Accumulated

Accumulated

Rates Cost Depreciation Cost Depreciation
Utilities 3.7% $6,490.4 52,411.1 $6,022.0 $2,240.8
Power Generation 3.2% 2,853.7 1,026.1 2,753.9 9214
Global Enterprises 9.2% 269.5 140.8 2703 127.1
Other 4.7% 26.7 6.7 27.7 6.1
. $9,640.3 3,584.7 $9,073.9 3,2954
Property, plant and equipment
less accumulated depreciation 6,055.6 5,778.5
Unamortized contributions by
utility customers for
extensions to plant 629.5 '569.8
$5,208.7

$5,426.1

Accumulated depreciation includes amounts provided for future removal and site restoration costs, net of salvage

value, of $374.6 miltion (2005 — $323.6 million).

Composite depreciation rates reflect total depreciation in the year as a percentage of mid-year cost, excluding
construction work-in-progress of $114.2 million (2005 — $91.1 millicn) and non-depreciable assets of $52.3 million

(2005 — $41.3 million).

10. Other assets

2006 2005
Accrued pension asset (Note 20) $157.1 $192.2
Security deposits for debt 22.8 20.0
Deferred financing charges " 25.0 25.4
Other 24.8 315
: $229.7 $269.1

{1
(2003 - $2.8 million).
(2)
$14.9 million (2005 — $5.9 million).

11. Credit lines

Amortization of deferred financing charges, which was recorded in interest expense, amounted to $2.8 million

Amortization of certain other assets, which was recorded in depreciation and amortization, amounted to

At December 31, 2006, the Corporation has the following credit lines that enable it to obtain financing for general

business purposes:

2006 2005
Total Used Available Total Used Available
Long term committed $326.0 $47.4 $278.6 $326.0 5119 $314.1
Short term committed 600.0 14.0 586.0 600.0 - 600.0
Uncommitted 69.1 7.1 62.0 69.1 8.3 60.8
$995.1 $68.5 $926.6 $995.1 $20.2 $974.9

Of the $68.5 million used at December 31, 2006, $47.0 million is included in long term debt and $21.5 million

represents outstanding letters of credit,
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12. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt

Long term debt
2006 2005
CU Inc. debentures — unsecured :
2001 4.84% due November 2006 . § - $175.0
2002 4.801% due November 2007 ) 50.0 50:0
2000 6.97% due June 2008 100.0 100.0
1989 Series 10.20% due November 2009 : 125.0 125.0
1990 Series 11.40% due August 2010 125.0 1250
2000 7.05% due June 2011 - - 100.0 100.0
2004 5.096% due November 2014 ’ . 100.0 100.0.
2002 6.145% due November 2017~ ' 150.0 - 150.0
. 2004 5.432% due January 2019 ) . 180.0 180.0
1999 Series 6.8% due August 2019 : N 300.0 300.0°
1990 Second Series 11.77% due November 2020 B 100.0 100.0
2006 4.801% due November-2021 L 160.0 -
1991 Series 9.92% due April 2022 ' 125.0 125.0
1992 Series 9.40% due May 2023 . 100.0 1000
2004 5.896% due November 2034 200.0 200.0
2005 5.183% due November 2035 185.0 185.0
2006 5.032% due November 2036 : 160.0 -
Canadian Utilities Limited debentures — unsecured
2002 6.14% due November 2012 - 100.0 100.0
2,360.0 2,215.0
ATCO Midstream Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates, due June 201 1,
unsecured " : 25.0 -
ATCO Power Canada Lid. credit facility, at BA rates, due August 2011,
secured by a pledge of cash 22.0 1.5
Other long term obligation, at 5.0%, due June 2007, unsecured 4.8 . 4.5.
' : - $2,411.5. $2,231.0
Non-recourse long term debr .
) 2006 2005
Barking Power Limited project financing, payable in British pounds: _
At fixed rates averaging 7.95%, due to 2010 ' $ s2.1° $ 547
AtLIBOR, due to 2010 " 85.5 89.6
Osbormne Cogeneration Pty Ltd. pmJect fi nancmg, payable in Australian dollars:
Al Bank Bill rates, due to 2013 " , 1.7 1.8
A17.3325%, due to 2013 ' 3.8 34.4
ATCO Power Alberta Limited Partnership (“APALP™) pl’OJBCt financing:
At 7.54% to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 * 2.6 38
At 7.317% 10 2008, at LIBOR thereafier, due to 2016 “’ 3.6 5.4
At 7.50% to 2011, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 83.8 87.5
Joffre project financing:
At 7.286%, due to 2012 " : 15.6 26.7
At 8.59%, due to 2020 320 320



12. Long term debt and non}rccoursc long term debt (continued)

Non-recourse long term debt {continued)

2006 2005
Scotford project financing:

. At5.212%, due 10:2008, at BA rates thereafter, due to 2014 ") . 428 46.2
At 5.212%, due to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due o 2014 " - 10.7 11.6
At7.93%, due to 2022 26.1 26.9

Muskeg River project financing; -
/At 5.287%, due 2007, at BA rates thereafter, due to 2014 " 40.8 44.4
At BA rates, due 10 2014 : . 0.1 0.3
At 7.56%; due to 2022 ' 294 31.2
Brighton Beach project financing:
At 5.8367%, due 2009, at BA or Canadian Eurodoliar rates thereafter,
dueto 20197 8.9 9.4
AUBA or Canadian Eurodollar rates, due to 2019 " - , 2.7 25
At 6.575%, due t0 2019 ! ) ’ 36.1 378
Al 6.924%, due to 2024 . 107.8 110.5
Cory project financing:
AUBA rates, due to 2011 ' 0.3 0.3
At 6.346%, due 1020111 : 2.7 33
At 7.586%, due to 2025 , . ' 36.5 374
At 7.601%, due 10 2026 ) . 324 4+ 331
' ‘ , 686.0 730.8 -
Less: Amounts due within one year ' 59.3 © 570
- . a - $626.7 $673.8

BA — Bankers’ Acceptance
LIBOR — London Interbank Oﬂéred Rate

™ The above interest rates have additional margin fees at a weighted average rate of 1.1% (2005 — 1.1%)
(Note 21). The margin fees are subject to escalauon

The Corporatlon has fixed mterest rates enher dlrectly or through interest rate swap agreements, on 96% (2005 —

96%) of total long term debt and non-recourse !ong term debt.

The non-recourse long term debt is secured by cha'rges on the projects* assets and by an assignment of the projects’
bank accounts, outstanding contracts, and agreements. The book value of the pledged assets and bank accounts al
December 31, 2006 was $1,415.2 million (2005 — $1,342.4 million).

Guaraniees

Canadian Utilities Limited has };royided -a number of guarantees related to ATCO Power’s obligations under
non-recourse loans associated with certain of its projects. These guarantees cover the following items:

a) Construction liens — chresems liens currently registered agalnst prolect assets. Effective September 30,
2005, ATCO Pawer entered into'an indemnity agreement with Brighton Beach Power L.td. obligating it to cover
any cash shortfalls associated with clearing the'construction liens registered against the project. This agreement
allowed the project to achieve financial completion under the terms of the project financing agreement.” The
‘maximum amount of the 1ndemmly is $8.3 million. Canadian Utilities Limited issued a guarantee to Brighton
Beach Power Litd. guaramecmg the payments under the 1ndemmty agreement The indemnity and the guarantee
are reduced as the liens are settled,
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12.

b)

<)

d)

€)

Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Project cash flows — Represents annual payments related to maintaining base case margins for electricity
prices on the merchant power component of the project, being 24 megawatts (“MW™} for the Scotford project
and 48 MW for the Muskeg River project. These guarantees became effective upon the commercial cperation
of the plants and exist until 2022, when the project debt is'to'be fully repaid. The amounts payable under these
guarantees will vary each year depending on the pool price received for the merchant power generated. Any
payments made to maintain the project base case marging will either be available for distribution to the owners
or be applied to mandatory prepayment of the project debt in accordance with the terms of the project financing
agreement depending upon the specific operating results of the plant. At December 31, 2006, no amounts were
outstanding under the guarantee.

Reserve amounts — Represents amounts to be set aside for major maintenance and debt service reserves as
stipulated in the project’s financing agreement. These reserves are intended to be funded with project cash
flows. To the extent that project cash flows are insufficient to meet reserve requirements, Canadian Utilities
Limited may choose to provide guarantees in lieu of ATCO Power providing security. At December 31, 2006,
the amount of the obligations under these guarantees is:

Project Major Maintenance Debt Service
APALP project financing . Nil $6.9
Brighton Beach project financing . Nil @ Nil
Cory project financing Ni $3.9
Joffre project financing Nil® $4.7
Muskeg River project financing _ Nil 0 $5.0
Scotford project financing Ni $5.6

n
@)
K]

No major maintenance reserve required for this financing,
Reserve requirements of $0.3 million met with project cash flows.
Reserve requirements of $1.0 million met with project cash flows.

Prepaid operating and maintenance fee — Should ATCO Power cease to be operator of the APALP
generating plants as a result of a termination of the operating agreement, Canadian Utilities Limited has
guaranteed the payment of the unamortized portion of the prepaid operating and maintenance fee to APALP, the
proceeds of which are to be used to repay project debt in accordance with the project financing agreements.
This guarantee, which declines by $1.2 million per year, remains in effect until 2016, when the project debt is to
be fully repaid. At December 31, 2006, the maximum value of the guarantee is $30.0 million.

Purchase project assets — Represents an obligation to purchase the Scotford and Muskeg River projects at a
price sufficient to repay any outstanding project debt upon the occurrence of any one of the follewing very
limited events:

(1) where all of the following events have occurred:
« the insolvency of ATCO Power,
e the failure of the project debt lenders to complete a sale of the project pursuant to their security
within a fixed period of time; and
* the project purchaser of electricity and steam elects to terminate its purchase contracts due to the
insolvency of ATCO Power; ’
(it) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam does not remove ATCQO Power as operator of the
project after an event of default under the project financing agreements in circumstances where such
default is either:
¢ a deliberate or willful breach of a project financing agreement; or
+  where ATCO Power has failed to co-operate with the lenders in a sale of the project; and
(iii) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam terminates its purchase contracts for the project as
a result of a default by ATCO Power’s project minority joint venturers. ATCO Power has the right to
cure any such default by acquiring the minority interest which is in default.
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12. Long term debt and non-"reconhrse long term debt (continued)

These guarantces remain in effect.until the prOJect debt is fully repald At December 31 2006, no such events
have occurred. -

Canadian Utilities Limited has also guaranteed ATCO Power’s duties to operate the;rBarking Power, Scotford and

Muskeg River gencratmg plants in accordance with acceptable industry operating standards under the relevant
prq]ect ‘contracts.

" ATCO Power (80%) and ATCO Resources (20%), a wholly owned subsidiary of Canadian Utilities lelted s parent

corporation, ATCO Ltd., have a joint venture in the above projects subject to guarantees, excludmg Barkmg Power.

The foregoing guarantecd amounts represent ATCO Power’s 80% nterest. Canadlan Utilities: lelted has also‘
. guaranteed similar obhganons in respect of ATCO Resources’ 20% interest.- ATCO Ltd. has indemnified- and

agreed to reimburse Canadian Utilities Limited for any amounts it may be reqmred to pay under these guarantées in
respect of ATCO Resources’ 20% interest,

To date, Canadian Utilities Limited has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.

Minimum debt repayments

The minimum annual debt repayments for each of the next five years are as follows:

Non-Recourse

Long Term Debt Long Term Debt - Total
2007 $ 545 $.593 $113.8
2008 100.0 v 779 177.9
2009 125.0. 724 197.4
2010 1250 : 79.4 2044
2011 : © 1470 ' 44.8 ‘ 191.8

$5515 .. 33338 - $885.3

Of the $113.8 mllllon due in 2007, $54.5 million is to be refinanced and is, therefore excluded from long term debt
due within one year in the balance sheet. .

Interest expense

Interest expense is as follows;

" 2006 2005 .

Long term debt $161.0 - $154.5
Non-recourse long term debt ‘ 490 51.4
Notes payable’ : 0.3 : -
Bank indebtedness ‘ ’ 1.5 1.3
Amortization of deferred financing charges a 2.8 2.8
Interest on H R. Milner tax reassessment (Note 7} _ . 8.3 . -

: ' B . $§2229 $210.0

Interest paid‘amounted to $220.8 million (2005 — $207.2 million).



12. Long term debt and non-recourse fong term debt (continued)
Fair values
Fair values for the above debt, determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, are shown

below. Where the market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis
based on the Corporation’s current borrowing rate for similar borrowing arrangements.

2006 2005
Long term debt
Fixed rate : K $2,7414 . $2,656.2
Floating rate 47.0 11.5
] $2,788.4 $2,667.7
" Non-recourse long term debt o
Fixed rate $ 6353 § 6839
Floating rate . ) 90.2 94.5
' ' $§ 7255 § 7784
13. Deferred credits
2006 2005
Accrued other post employment benefits liability (Note 20) $ 451 $ 354
Deferred revenues (Note 5) 46.8 59.6
Deferred availability incentives 39.6 59.7
Asset retirement obligations 69.4 62.2
Accrued equipment repairs and maintenance 15 8.8
Other 20.6 28.1
$229.0 ' $253.8

Deferred availability incentives

Amortization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in revenues, amounted to $10.6 million (2005
© —$8.9 million).

The amount to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit availability and future electricity
prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, the-Corporation uses these estimates to forecast the incentives to be
received from, less penalties to be paid to, the PPA counterparties. - These forecasts are added to the accumulated
" unamortized deferred availability incentives outstanding at the end of the quarter; the resulting total is divided by the
remaining term of the PPA to arrive at the amortization for the quarter.

Asset retirement obligations

Changes in asset retirement obligations are summarized below:

2006 - . 2005
Obligations at beginning of year $62.2 $34.7
Obligations incurred 3T 25.4
Accretion expense _ . 3.5 2.1
Obligations at end of year : $69.4 $62.2

The Corporation estimates the un'd'is_couﬁtf':d amount of cash flow required to settle the asset retirement obligations is
approximately $131 million, which will be incurred between 2007 and 2052. The discount rates used to calculate
the fair value of the asset retirement obligations have a weighted average rate of 5.7%.




L

14, Equity preferred shares
Authorized and issuned

Authorized: An unlimited number of Series Second Preferred Shares, issuable in series.

Issued: :
Stated Redemption 2006 2005
Value Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount
(dollars)
Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares
5.9% Series Q $25.00 Open 2,277,675 $ 569 2,277,675 § 569
5.3% Series R $25.00 Open 2,146,730 . 53.7 2,146,730 53.7
6.6% Series S $25.00 Open 635,700 15.9 635,700 15.9
5.8% Series W £25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0 6,000,000 150.0
6.0% Series X $25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0 6,000,000 150.0
Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares
4.35% Series O $25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40,0 1,600,000 40.0
4.35% Series T £25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40.0 1,600,000 40.0
4.35% Series U $25.00 December 2, 2011 800,000 20.0 800,000 20.0
5.25% Series V $25.00 October 3, 2007 4,400,000 110.0 4,400,000 110.0
' $636.5 " §$636.5

The dividends payable on the Series O, T, U, and V preferred shares are fixed until the redemption dates specified
above, at which time a new dividend rate may be established by negotiations between Canadian Utilities Limited
and the owners of the shares. .

Fair values

Fair values for preferred shares determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues are
$6066.8 million (2005 — $669.1 million).

Redempiion privileges

The preferred shares, except for Series W and X, are redeemable on the dates specified above at the option of
Canadian Utilities Limited at the stated value plus accrued and unpaid dividends.

The Series W preferred shares are redeemable commencing on March 1, 2008 at the stated value plus a 4% premium
for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by 1% in each
succeeding 12 month period until March 1, 2012.

The Series X preferred shares are redeemable commencing June 1, 2008 at the stated value plus a 4% premium for

the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by 1% in each
succeeding 12 month period until June 1, 2012. :
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15. Class A and Class B shares

Authorized and issued
Class A Non-Voting Class B Common Total
. Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares °  Amount
Authorized: Unlimited Unlimited
Issued and outstanding: 8
December 31, 2004 82,740,586 33748 44,042,484 $139.5 126,783,070 $514.3
Purchased ‘ (228,600} (1.0) - - (228,600) . {10}
~ Stock options exercised = 338,600 5.8 - - 338,000 5.8
. Converted: Class B to Class A © 26,200 0.] (26,200) (0.1 - -
. December 31, 2005 82,876,186 379.7 44,016,284 139.4 126,892,470 = 519.1
Purchased (1,832,200) (8.4) - - (1,832,200) (8.4)
Stock options excrcised ) 327,900 . 5.3 . - - 327,900 5.3
Converted: Class Bto Class A . 84,800 03  (84,800)° 03 = - - -
December 31, 2006 " 81,456,686 - $376.9 43931484 | §$139.1 125,388,170 $516.0

. From January 1, 2007 to February 16, 2007, 600 Class ‘A non-voting shares were issued with respect to the exercises
of stock options and 5,000 Class B common shares were converted to Class A non-voting shares. .

Earnings per share

Earnings per Class A non-voting and Class B common share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to
Class A and Class B shares by the weighted average shares oulstandmg Diluted earnings per share is calculated
using the treasury stock method, which reflects the potential exercise of stock options on the weighted average
Class A non-voting and Class B common shares outstanding. The’average number of shares used to calculate
earnings per share are as follows: ‘ ’

Three Monih_s Ended Year Ended
December 31 ' : December 31
2006 2005 - 2006 2005
(Unaudited) -
Weighted average shares outstanding 125,321,693 126,928,689 126,218,722 126,901,614
Effect of dilutive stock options . . 512,786 685,048 468,457 551,357
. Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 125,834,479 . 127,613,737 126,687,179 127,452,971

‘Share owner rights

The owners of the Class A non- votmg shares and the Class B common shares are enmled to share equally, on a
share for share basis, in all dividends declared by Canadian Uulmcs Limited on either of such classes of shares as
well as the remaining property of Canadian Utilities Limited upon dissolution. The owners of the Class B common
shares are entitled to vote and to exchange at any time each share held for one Class A non-voting share.
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15. Class A and Class B shares (continued)

lf'a take-over bid is made for the Class B common shares which would result in.the offeror owning more than 50%
of the outstanding Class B common:shares and which would constitute a change in control of Canadian Utilities
.Limited, owners of Class A non:vating shares are entitled, for the duration of the bid, to exchange their Class A non-
voting shares for Class B common shares and to tender such Class B common shares pursuant to the terms of the
take-over bid. Such right of exchange is conditional upon the completion of the take-over bid giving rise to the right
of exchange, and if the take-over bid is not completed, then the right of exchange shall be deemed never to have
‘existed. 1In addition, owners of the Class A non-voting shares are entitled to exchange their shares for Class B
common shares of Canadian Utilities Limited if ATCO Ltd., the present controlling share owner of Canadian
Utilities Limited, ceases to own or control, directly or indirectly, more than 10,000,000 of the issued and outstandmg ’
Class B common shares of Canadian Utilities Limited. In either ‘case, each Class A non-voting share is
exchangeable for one Class B common share, subject to changes in the exchange ratio for certain events such as a
stock split or rights offering.

Normal course issuer bid

On May 20, 2005, Canadian Utilities Limited commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of
the outstanding Class A non-voting shares. The bid expired on May 19, 2006. Over the life of the bid, 348,100
, shares . were_purchased, of which 195,600 were purchased in 2005 and 152,500 were purchased in 2006. On
May 23, 2006, Canadian Utilities Limited commenced a new normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 5%
of the outstanding Class A shares. The bid will expire on May 22, 2007. From May 23, 2006, to February 16, 2007,
1,679,700 shares have been purchased, all of which were purchased in 2006.

Spect’al dividend

The Corporatlon paid a Special Dividend of $0.25 per Class A non- votmg and Class B common share on
Seplember] 2000,

16, Stock basced compensation plans
Steck aption plan '

Of the 6,400,000 Class A non- votmg shares reserved for issuance in respect of options under Canadian Utilities
Limited’s stock option plan, 2,626,800 Class A non-voting shares are available for issuance at December 31; 2006.
Opuons may be granted to directors, officers and key emp]oyees of Canadian Utilities Limited and.its subsidiaries at
an exercise price equal to the weighted average of the trading price of the shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The vesting provisions and exercise period {(which
cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the time of grant.

Changes in shares under option are summarized below:

2006 R 2005

ClassA = Weighted Average Class A Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price. . Shares Exercise Price
Options at beginning of year 1,415,500 $21.59 - 1,555,600 $19.45
Granted 121,000 43.45 " 204,000 30.50
Exercised . (327,900} ‘ 16.62 . (338,000)* 17.07
Cancelled ' (600) 24.52 - . (6,100) 24.93-
Options at end of year 1,208,000 $25.12 1,415,500 . $21.59
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16. Stock based compensation plans (continued)

Information about stock 6pli0ns outstanding at December 31, 2006 is summarized below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
: Weighted Average S !
Range of Class A Remaining Weighted Average Class A Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
$17.23-%18.87 342,600 29 $17.84 . 342,600  $17.84
‘$20.65 - $28.65 540,400 33 23.60 © 494,400 '+ 023.39
'$30.25 - $43.56 325,000 . 8.4 : 35.33 . -40,800 30.50

$17.23 - $43.56 1,208,000 4.6 +$25.12 _ 877,800 . $21.56

In 2006, Canadian Utilities Limited granted 121,000 options to purchase Class A n('m—votirlg shares at a weighted |
average exercise price of $43.45 per share. The options have a term of ten years and vest over the first five years.

On January 2, 2007, Canadian Utilities Limited granted 161,500 options to purchase Class A non-voting shares at an l
exercise price of $47.84 per share. The options have a term of ten years and vest ovér the first five years.

Changes in contributed surplus are summarized below:

2006 2005 |
Contributed surplus at beginning of year 50.7 504 . I
Stock option expense . ' ' 0.5 0.3 '
Contributed surplus at end of year . $1.2 $0 7

The Corporation uses lhe Black-Scholes option pricing model, which estimated the weighted average fair value of
the options granted durmg 2006 at $6.24 per option (2005 — $3.21 per option) using the followmg welghled average
assumptlons :

2006 2005
Risk free interest rate 4.0% 4.0%
Expected helding pericd prior to exercise 6.2 years 6.3 years
Share price volatility . 11.9% 11.7%
Estimated annual Class A share dividend - 25% 3.5%

Share appreciation rights

. . . . :
Directors, officers and key employees of the Corporation may be granted share appreciation rights that are based on
Class A non-voting sliares of Canadian Utilities Limited or Class I Non-Voting shares of ATCO Lid. The vesting
provisions and exercise per:od (which cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the llme of grant. The base value
‘of the share appreciation rights is equal 1o the weighted average of the trading price of the Class A non-voting shares
and the Class I Non-Voting shares, respectively, on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days
|mmed1ately preceding the date of grant. The holder is entitled on exercise to receive a cash payment equal to any
increase in the market price of the Class A non-voting shares and Class 1 Non- Voting shares, respectively, over the
base value of the share appreciation rights exercised.

Share appréciation rights expense amounted to $2.4 million (2005 — $9.0 million). -,



17. Changes in non-cash working capital

2006 2005
Operating activities, changes related to:
Accounts receivable $(25.6) 5 (6.7
‘Inventories 0.5 85.3
Regulatory assets (10.6) (1.4)
Prepaid expenses 3.0) (1.7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1.7 293
. Income taxes 6.4 (12.0)
Future income taxes (3.8) 53
Regulatory liabilities (3.2) 4.9
$(39.6) $90.2
Investing activities, changes related to:
Inventories $ (8.1) ' (.5
Prepaid expenses {0.3) 0.1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (6.2) 9.0
Income taxes - {3.7 (11.0)
$(18.3) $ (34
Financing activities, changes related to:
Accounts receivable $ (0.1 £ 31
18. Joint ventures
The Corporation’s interest in joint ventures is summarized below:
: ) 2006 2005
Statement of earnings
Revenues $ 5330 $ 528.6
Operating expenses 328.1 355.1
Depreciation and amortization 40.4 43.1
Interest 41.2 41.5
. 1233 88.9
Interest and other income 8.9 7.7
Earnings from joint ventures before income taxes $ 132.2 § 96.6
Balance sheet
Current assels $ 266.9 $ 2474
Current liabilities (174.0) (159.6)
Property, plant and equipment 933.2 9223
Deferred items — net (93.1) {101.3)
Non-recourse long term debt (465.2) {504.2)
Investment in joint ventures $ 4678 $ 404.6
Statement of cash flows
Operating activities $ 180.8 § 1754
Investing activities (19.1} (16.0)
Financing activities {131.0) (79.1)
Foreign currency-translation 14.1 {9.5)
Increase in cash position § 44.8 3 708

Current assets include cash of $160.9 million {2005 — $118.6 million) which is only available for use within the

joint ventures (see Note 5).
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19. Related party transactions

In transactions wnh ATCO Ltd: and its wholly owned subssdlary corporations, the Corporation sold fuel in the
amount of $2.2 million (2005 — $2.5 million), provided computer operations and systems development services
totaling’ $2.4 million (2005 — $5.0 million), recovered administrative expenses totaling $2.4 million (2005 —
$2.4 million) and incurred administrative expenses and corporate signature rights totaling $8.6 million (2005 —
$7.1 ‘million). Also, in transactions with an entity related through common control the Corporation provided
security services and recovered administrative expenses totalmg $0.2 million (2005 — $0.2 million) and incurred
advertising and promotion expenses totaling $1.7 million (2005 — $1.4 million).

At December 31, 2006, accounts receivable due from related parties amounted to $4.9 million (2005 — $1.8 million)
and accounts payable due to related parties amounted to $3.2 million (2005 — $0.5 million).

These transactions are in the normal course of business and under normal commercial terms.

- On- October 1, 2006, the Corporation purchésed_the common shares of ATCO Eurdpa Szcrkezetéyérté €s

Kereskedelmi Kft. from an affiliate corporation for $0.5 million cash, partially offset by the forgiveness of

' $0.4 millien of debt owed by the Corporation to the affiliate corporation. This purchase was recorded at carrying

value, resulting in a charge to retained eamings  of $0.3 million.
20. Employee future benefits

The Corporation maintains defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans for most of its employ?es and
provides other post employment ‘benefits, principally health, dental and life insurance, for retirees and their
dependants The defined benefit pensnon plans provide for pensions based on employees’ length of service and final
average eamnings. As of 1997, new employees automatically participate in the defined contribution pension plan and
employees participating in the defined benefit pension plans may transfer to the defined contribution pension plan at
any time, Upon transfer, further accumulation of benefits under the defined benefit pension plans ceases. . ‘



- 20. Employee future benefits (continued)

Information about the Corporation’s benefit plans, in aggregate, is as follows:

2006 . 2005
Other Post Other Post
Pension *- Empleyment  Pension Employment
Benefit . Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans
Benefit plan assets, obligations and funded status
Market value of plan assets:
Beginning of year $1,561.1 $ - §14021 £ -
Actual retum on plan assets 187.3 - 197.0 -
Employee contributions 3.7 - 4.0 -
Benefit payments (39.8) - (36.4) -
Payments to defined contribution plans ") 8.2y . - (5.6) -
End of year - $1,704.1 $ - $1,561.1 $ -
Accrued benefit obligations:
Beginning of year $1,485.0 $ 80.3 $1,232.7 $67.0
Current service cost L350 3.0 322 2.5
Interest cost 80.8 4.2 73.9 42
Employee contributions . 37 A - 4.0 -
Benefit payments from plan assets % (39.8) - (36.4) -
Benefit payments by employer 4.3) (1.8) @7 (1.9)
Experience losses (gains) .78.6 2.2) 183.3 8.5
End of year $1,642.0 $83.5 $1,485.0 - $80.3
Funded status:
Excess (deficiency) of assets over obligations $ 62.1 $(83.5) § 761 $(80.3)
Amounts not yet recognized in financial statements:
Unrecognized net cumulative experience losses on :
plan assets and accrued benefit obligations 316.0 17.7 369.5 21.9
Unrecognized net transitional liability (asset) (221.0) 20.7 (253.4) 23.0
Accrued asset (liability) (Notes 10, 13) . $ 157.1 $(45.1) $ 192.2 $(35.9)
Regulatory asset (liability) ) (Note 2) ' .$(118.7) = §276 $ (139.4) $22.0

" Employer contributions for certain of the Corporation’s defined contnbutlon pension plans are paid from the

assets of the defined benefit pension plans.

@ Pension plan benefit payments are indexed to increases in the Canadian Consumer Price Index to a maximum

increase of 3% per annum.

) Changes in assumptions regarding the average compensation rate increase for the year and age at retirement

resulted in experience losses in 2006 of approximately $66 million for the pension benefit plans. A change in
the liability discount rate assumption resulted in expenence losses in 2005 of appr0x1malely $178 million for
the pension benefit plans. .

@ The regulatory asset (liability) reflects an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the

regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.



'20.  Employee future benefits (cdntinued)

1)

$ 195 $5.3

2006 - 2005
Other Post Other Post
" Pension  Employment  Pension Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans
'Benefit plan cost -
Components of benefit plan cost: .
Current service cost $ 380 $3.0 3 322 $25
Interest cost 80.8 4.2 73.9 4.2
_ Actual return on plan assets (187.3) - (197.0) -
_Experience losses (gains) on accrued benefit . :
obligations 78.6 (2.2) 183.3 8.5
10.1 5.0. 92.4 15.2
Adjustments to recognize long term nature of employee .
future benefits:
Unrecognized portion of actual return on plan assets 107.6 - 108.5 -
Unrecognized portion of experience gains (losses)
on accrued benefit obligations (78.6)° 2.2 (183.3) (8.3
Amortization of net cumulative experience losses on
plan assets and accrued benefit obligations 24.5 - 2.0 " 155 0.6
Amortization of net transitional liability (asset) (32.4) . 23 {32.8) 2.3
' . : 21.1 6.5 - (92.1) (5.6)
Defined benefit plans cost 31.2 11.5 - 03 9.6
Defined contribution plans cost “~ 9.7 r - 7.0 -
Total cost "40.9 11.5 7.3 9.6
Less: Capitalized 1.9 ’ 2.7 1.4 23
Less: Unrecognized defined benefit plans cost .
_ (income) V@ 19.5 35 (1.6) . 3.3
* Net cost recognized %/ $§ 7.5 $4.0

The unrecognized defined benefit plans cost {incofne) reflects an AEUB decision to recerd costs of employee

future benefits in the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000}, when paid rather than accrued.

2)

Net cost recognized for pension- benefit plans in the three months ended December 31, 2006 includes the

* amortization of $5.1 million of the deferred pension assets recorded by the’ Corporauon upon the adoption of the
current accounting standard in 2000. On October 11, 2006, the AEUB approved recovery of these assets for'a

nine-year period commencing January 1, 2005 (Note 2)

In the wnaudited three months ended December 31, 2006, net cost of $7.8 million (2005 — $1.7 million) was

‘ rccogmzed for pension benefit plans and net cost of $1.6 million (2005 - $0.6 million) was recognized for other post
_ employment benefit plans.



20. Employee future benefits (continued)

Weighted average assumptions

2006 2005
‘Other Post ) Other Post
Pension  Employment Pension  Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit © Benefit
Plans . Plans Plans Plans
Assumptions regarding benefit plan cost:
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets
for the year 6.1% - 6.9% -
Liability discount rate for the year - 51%- 51% 5.9% 5.9%
Average compensation increase for the year 3.5% ' - 3.25% -
Assumptions regarding accrued benefit obligations:
Liability discount rate at December 31 5.1% 51% . 5.1% 5.1%
:Long term inflation rate 2.5% [0 2.5% m

"' The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment

benefit obligation are as follows: for drug: costs, 8.5% for 2006 grading down over 7 years to 4.5%
(2005 — 9.3% for 2005 grading down over 8 years to 4.5%), and, for other medical and dental costs 4.0% for
2006 and thereafter (2005 — 4.0% for 2005 and théreafter).

The sensitivities of key assumptions used in measuring accrued benefit obligations and benefit plan cost for 2006 are
outlined in the following table. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been calculated independently of
changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of assumptions
simultaneously. s _ '
' 2006 Pension 2006 Other Post”

Benefit Plans Employment Benefit Plans
Accrued ' Accrued ‘
Benefit Benefit Plan Benefit Benefit Plan '
Obligation Cost Obligation Cost \

Expected long term rate of return on plan assets

1% increase ) - $(3.4) - -
1% decrease " - $3.4 - -

Liability discount rate ‘ - :
1% increase $(79.5) $(6.4) $(3.7) $(0.4) i
1% decrease ' $101.7 $7.5 $4.7 $0.5 i

Future compensation rate ' ' |

1% increase -8$229 $29 - -
1% decrease " - -$(20.8) $(2.6) - -

Long term inflation rate : ‘ ..

1% increase (V2% , 8345 $39 - $42 $0.7
1% decrease ) : - $(60.4) ° $(6.9) $(3.4) $(0.5)

1} Sensitivities are net of the associated regulatory asset (liability)' and unrecognized defined benefit plans cost,

which reflect an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the regulated operations,
excluding Alberta Power (2000) when paid rather than accrued. :

@ The long term mﬂatlon rate for pension plans reflects the fact that pension plan benefit payments are mdexed to

increases in the Canadian Consumer Pnce Index to a maximum increase of 3.0% per annum.

The long term inflation rate for. other post employment benefit plans is the assumed annual health care cost
trend rate described in the weighted average assumptions.

3)
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20. . Employee future benefits (continued)

Pension benefit plan assets

" 2006 2005

Amount %o Amount %

Plan asset mix:
Equity securities ‘¥ : $1,028.7  60.4 $ 9229  59.]
Fixed income securities © 605.6 355 567.7 364
Real estate ST 3Lt 20
Cash and other assets ¥ 37.1 2.2 39.4 2.5
' ] $1,704.1 100.0 $1,561.1 100.0

) Equity securitics consist of investments in domestic and foreign preferred and common shares. At
December 31, 2006, the market values of investments in United States’ securities and international equities,
denominated in a number of different currencies, are $236.7 million and $238.2 million, respectively (2005 —
$144.0 million and $174.0 million, respectively).

D Fixed income securities consist of investments in federal and provincial government and corporate bonds and

debentures.

) Real estate consists of investments in closéd-end real estate funds.

) Cash and other assets consist of cash, short term notes and money market funds.

‘At December 31, 2006, plan assets include long term debt of CU Inc. having a market value of $8.7 million (2005 —
$6.0 million), Class A non-voting and Class B common shares of Canadian Utilities Limited having a market value
of $19.1 million (2005 — $17.6 mitlion) and Class I Non-Voting shares of ATCO Lid. having a market value of
$18.2 million (2005 — $14.8 million).

Funding

Employees are required to contribute a percentage of their salary to the defined benefit pension plans. The
Corporation is required to provide the balance of the funding, based on triennial actuarial valuations, necessary to
ensure that benefits will be fully provided for at retirement. Based on the most recent actuarial valuation for funding
purposes as of December 31, 2004, the Corporation is continuing a contribution holiday that began on April 1, 1996.
The next actuarial valuation for funding purposes is required as of December 31, 2007.

Included in the accrued benefit obligations are certain supplementary defined benefit pension plans that are paid by
the Corporation out of general revenues. These supplementary plans had accrued benefit obligations of
$84.2 millicn at December 31, 2006 (2005 — $77.4 million).

21. Risk management and financial instruments

The Corporation is exposed to changes in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The
Power Generation segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the price of electricity in the Province of
Alberta and the United Kingdom and the Global Enterprises segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the
price of natural gas liquids. In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward
coniracts, swaps and options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and
commodity prices. All such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.




21. Risk management and financial instruments {continued)
Interest rate risk

Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt have variable interest rates that have been hedged through the
following interest rate swap agreements:

Swap Fixed Variable Debt Completion Principal/Face Value

Interest Rate ) Interest Rate Date 2006 2005
5.287% 90 day BA December 2007 5 408 $ 444
5.212% 90 day BA September 2008 54.2 59.2
7.54% 90 day BA November 2008 2.6 3.8
7.317% 90 day BA December 2008 3.6 54
5.8367% 90 day BA June 2009 8.9 9.4
6.346% 90 day BA June 2011 2.7 33
7.50% . 6 month LIBOR December2011 838 87.5
7.286% . 90 day BA September 2012 24.0 28.2
7.3325% Bank Bill Rate in Australia December 2013 k) .} - 344
6.575% 90 day BA March 2019 36.1 37.8

$288.5 $313.4

BA — Bankers "Acceptance
LIBOR — London Interbank QOffered Rate

™ The above swap fixed interest rates include any long term debt margin fees; the margin fees are subject to

escalation (Note 12).
Foreign exchange rate risk

The ‘Corporation has exposure to changes in the carrying values of its foreign operations, including assets and
liabilities, as a result of changes in exchange rates.

The Corporation has entered into foreign éxchange forward contracts in order to fix the exchange rate on certain
planned equipment expenditures denominated in U.S. dollars and Euros. At December 31, 2006, the contracts
consist of purchases of $0.2 million U.S, (2005 — $2.6 million U.S.) and sales of 3.0 mllllon Euros (2005 -
2.0 million Euros).

Energy commodity price risk

In March 2004, the AEUB issued a dec:151on respecting the operation of ATCO Gas'’ Carbon storage: fac1]|ty for the
- 2004/2005 storage year, which ended on March 31, 2005. The decision directed ATCO Gas to continue to reserve
16.7 petajoules of storage capacity for the benefit of utility customers. As a result of an AEUB approved storage
plan, ATCO Gas entefed into certain energy contracts for the forward purchase and sale of natural gas for storage
purposes. All associated costs and benefits of these contracts were passed to customers through regulated rates and,
accordingly, ATCO Gas did not bear any risk for price fluctuations provided that the contracts were in accordance
with the storage plan. Since April 1, 2005, ATCO Gas has leased the entire storage capacity of the Carbon facility
1o ATCO Midstream.




21. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
Fair values

The fair values of derivatives have been estimated using year-end market rates. These fair values approximate the
amount that the Corporation would either pay or receive to settle the contract at December 31,

2006 2005
Fair Value Fair Value
Notional {Payable) Notional {Payable)
Principal  Receivable Maturity Principal Receivable Maturity
Interest rate swaps $288.5 $(7.3) 2007-2019 $313.4 $(10.5) 2007-2019
Foreign exchange ‘
forward contracts $ 4.6 $0.3 2007 $ 59 § (0.1 2006
Credit risk

Derivative credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty to a contract fails to perform according to the
terms and conditions of that contract. Derivative credit risk is minimized by dealing with large, credit-worthy
counterparties in accordance with established credit approval policies. Accounts receivable credit risk is reduced by
a large and diversified customer base, requirement of letters of credit, and, for regulated operations other than
Alberta Power (2000), the ability to recover an estimate for doubtful accounts through approved customer rates.

22. Commitments and contingencies
Commitments

The Corporation has contractual obligations in the normal course of business; future minimum payments are as
follows: .

Total of All
Subsequent
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Years
Operating leases " $ 185 158 $ 88 $ 717 $ 60 § 438
Purchase obligations: : )
Coal purchase contracts 47.7 48.9 50.3 51.8 53.4 355.6
Natural gas purchase contracts 52.9 52.9 52.9 52.9 22.1 18.9
Operating and maintenance
agreements ¥ 21.2 24.1 21.2 206 178 93.3
' , $140.3 $141.7 $133.2 $133.0 $99.3 $472.6

) QOperating leases are comprised primarily of long term leases for office premises and equipment.

@ Alberta Power (2000) has fixed price-long term contracts to purchase coal for its coal-fired generating plants.

) Natural gas purchase contracts consist primarily of ATCO Power contracts to purchase natural gas for certain of

its natural gas-fired generating plants.

“) ATCO Power has long term service agreements with suppliers to provide operating and maintenance services at

certain of its generating plants.
Contingencies
Measurement inaccuracies occur from time to time with respect to ATCO Electric’s, ATCO Gas’ and ATCO

Pipelines’ metering facilities. Measurement adjustments are settled between the parties based on the requirements
of the Electricity and Gas Inspections Act (Canada) and applicable regulations issued pursuant thereto. There is a
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22, Commitments and contingencies (continued)

risk of disallowance of the recovery of a measurement adjustment if controls and timely follow-up are found to be
inadequate by the AEUB.

On December 23, 2005, the Government of Canada filed a claim in the amount of $70 million which alleges that the
Corporation is liable for the destruction of property owned by the Governments of Canada and the United States.
The Corporation believes that the claim is defensible and, in any event, has sufficient insurance coverage in place to
cover any material amounts that might become payable as a result of the claim. Accordingly, the claim is not
expecled to have any material impact on the financial position of the Corporation,

The Corporation is party to a number of other disputes and lawsuits in the normal course of business. The

_Corporation believes that the ultimate liability arising from these matters will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

As a result of decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition of late
payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at this time
the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.

23. Segmented information
Description of segments
The Cerporation operates in the following business segments:

The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural gas by ATCQO Gas, the regulated
distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT),
Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the regulated transportation of natural gas by ATCO
Pipelines, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by CU Water, and the provision of non-regulated
complementary projects by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam b'y
ATCO Power, the regulated supply of electricity by Alberta Power (2000), and- the sale of fly ash and other
combustion byproducts produced in coal fired electrical generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies.

The Global Enterprises Business Group includes the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and
sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream, the provision of project management and technical services for customers
in the industrial, defence and transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec, the development, operation and support of
information systems and technologies by ATCO [-Tek, the provision of billing services, payment processing, credit,
collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek’s subsidiary, ATCO [-Tek Business Services and the sale of
travel services to both business and consumer sectors by ATCO Travel. The Corporation sold its 50% interest in
Genics, a manufacturer of wood preservation products, effective August 1, 2006.

The Corporate and Other segment includes commercial real estate owned by the Corporation in Alberta.




23. Segmented information (continued) S

Segmented results — Three months ended December 31

2006 Power Global Corporate  * Intersegment -
2005 Utilities " Generation™ _ Enterprises®  and Other Eliminations  Consolidated
(Unaudited) ‘ .
Revenues — external $308.4 $226.7 $135.6 § 04 5 - $671.1
©§299.1 $211.0 $169.9 $ 03 $ - $680.3
Revenues - intersegment m 6.3 .- 383 2.9 (47.5) -
T - 6.4 - 30.0 29 (39.3) . -
Revenues $314.7 $226.7 $173.9 $33 $(47.5) . $671.Y
.$305.5 $211.0° - -$199.9 332 $(39.3) $680.3
Eamings attributable to S .
Class A and Class B $ 43.7 $ 369 $ 273 $(6.5) $ (1.4 $100.0
shares $ 325 $ 36.7 £ 276 $(7.5) $ (0.2) $ 89.1

" Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.

@ 2006, ASHCOR Technologies was transferred from the Global Enterprises Business Group to the Power

Generation Business Group. 2003 segmented figures have been reclassified to conform to the current basis of
segmentation . ' )



23, Segmented information (continued)
Segmented results — Year ended December 31

2006 Power Global Corporalte Intersegment

2005 ) Utilities Generation™  Enterprises® and Other * Eliminations  Consolidated
Revenues — external $1,086.2 $ 7995 $543.3 ‘ $ 14 $ - $2,430.4
$1,173.5 $ 7707 35704 § 1.2 3 - $2,515.8

Revenues — intersegment (! 24.6 - 123.9 - 113 (159.8) -
22.4 - 108.6 11.2 (142.2) -

Revenues 1,110.8 799.5 667.2 12,7 (159.8) 2,430.4
1,195.9 770.7 679.0 12.4 {142.2) 2,515.8

Operating expenses 6014 4313 490.5 ' -18.7 (151.2) 1,390.7
716.9 4204 533.1 24.4 (140.9) 1,553.9

Depreciation and 220.2 95.4 31.5 1.4 - 348.5
amortization 189.3 95.8 24.8 1.6 - " 315
Interest expense 132.5 92.2 2.2 1624 (166.4) 2229
124.9 848 24 154.6 (156.7) 210.0
Interest and other income (20.3) (11.9) «1n {188.6) ' 166.4 (58.5)
(11.8) (9.3) 2.0y (170.2) 156.7 (36.6)

Earnings before income . 177.0 192.5 147.1 18.8 (8.6) 526.8
taxes 176.6 179.0 120.7 2.0 (1.3) 4770
Income taxes 454 69.7 46.1 8.7 2.8) 1674
60.2 70.2 41,9 3.7 (0.4) 175.6

131.6 122.8 101.0 10.1 (5.8) 359.7

' 116.4 108.8 78.8 (7 0.9 T 301.4

Dividends on equity 104 X - 21.8 - 358
preferred shares ‘ . 10.4 3.6 - 20.8 - 35.8

Earnings attributable to . _

Class A and Class B $ 1212 % 1192 ' S101.0 S(11.7) $ (58 '§ 3239
shares . _ © §5.106.0 $ 1052 . § 788 . $(23.9). (09 5 265.6
Total assets $3,799.0 $2,240.0 $278.1 $576.2 . $100.2 $6,993.5.
- , $3,526.8 $2,219.6 $303.7 $614.9 $152.8 " $6,817.8
Purchase of property, plant .§ 505.0 $ 481 $142 . $§ 04 $- - . 5 5677
and equipment . $ 4729 $ 41.2 §£11g - § 07 $ - $ 526.7

Y Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.

@ In 2006, ASHCOR Technologies was transferred from the Global Enterprises Business Group to the Power

Generation Business Group. 2005 segmented figures have been reclassified to conform to the current basis of
segmentation.

Geographic segments

Domestic ~__Foreign Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 . 2005 2006 2005
Revenues 7 - $2,130.6 $2,253.6 $299.8 $262.2 . $2,4304 $2,515.8
Property, plant and'equipment  $5,099.5  $4.905.9 . $326.6 $302.8 - $5,426.1  $5208.7
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This Annual Information Form (“AIF™) contains forward-looking statements pertaining to contractual obligations,
planned capital expenditures, the impact of changes in government regulation and non-regulated generating capacity
subject 10 long term contracts. The Corporation’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive factors in the industries in which
the Corporation operates, prevailing economic conditions, and cther factors, many of which are beyond the control

" of the Corporation.

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS
Certain terms used in this Annual Information Form are defined below:
“AEUB” means the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board,
“AGP” means ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd.;
“Alberta Power (2000)” means Alberta Power (2000) Ltd.;
“Alberta Power Pool” means the market for electricity in Alberta operated by the AESO;
“AESQO"” means the Alberta Electric System Operator;

“ASHCOR Technologies” means ASHCOR Technologies Ltd.;

“ATCO Electric” means ATCO Electric Ltd.;

“ATCO Frontec” means ATCO Frontec Corp. together with its subsidiaries;

. "ATCO Gas” means the natural gas distribution division of AGP;
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“ATCO I-Tek™ means ATCO [-Tek Inc.;
“ATCO I-Tek Business Services” mean§ 'ATCO I-Tek Business Services Lid,;

“ATCO Mids_tream" means ATCO Midstream Ltd.;

- “ATCO Pipelines” means the natural gas transportation division of AGP;

“ATCO Power” means ATCO Power Ltd. together with its subsidiaries;’
“ATCO Resources” means ATCO Resources Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of ATCO Ltd.;
“ATCO Travel” means ATCO Travel Ltd.;

“ATCO Utility Services” means ATCQ Utility Services Lid.; -

ZBPL” means Barking Power Limited;

“Class A shares” means the Class A non-voting shares of the Corporation; -

“Class B shares" means the Class B common shares of the Corporation;

" “Corporation” means Canadian Utilities Limited and, unless the context otherwise requires, includes its subsidiaries;

‘_‘CU“ means Canadian Utilities Limited;
‘;CU Water” means CU Water Limited;

“EEEP" means thé Edmonton Ethane Extraction Plant;
“EUA” means the Electric Utilities Act (Alberta);
“Geniés"‘ mez;ns Genics Inc,;

“GUA™ means the Gas Utilities Act (Albc_l:ta);

“km” means kilometre;

“Mmef” means one million cubic,feet and “Bef” means one billion cubic feet;

“negotiated settlement™ means an agreement related (0 a revenue requlremem and/or customer rates for a specific
period of time resulting from direct negotiations between a utility and its customers. A negoualcd settlement avoids

- the need for a general rate application for the duration of the agreement. All negotiated settlements must be

approved by the AEUB;
“NLD” means Northland Utilities (NWT) Limited;
“NUY™ means Northland Utilities {Yellowknife) Limited;
“petajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 billion Bn:tish .t'}.lerma] units, “terajoule” means a

unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 million British thermal umts and “gigajoule” means a unit of energy
equal to approximately 948.2 thousand British thermal units;

“PPA“ means power purchase arrangements that became effeclive on January 1, 2001, as part of the process of
restructuring the electric utility business in Alberta. The PPA’s are legislatively mandated and approved by the
AEUB; :
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"‘REA” means Rural Electrification Association. REA’s are constituted under the Rural Utilities Act (Alberta) by
groups of persons carrying on farming operations,” Each REA purchases electric power for distribution to its
members through a distribution system owned by that REA; '

“Thames Power” means Thames Power Limited;

“YECL"” means The Yukon Electrical Company Limited.

CANADIAN UTILITIES LlMl.TED

Canadian Utilities Limited was incorporated under the laws of Canada on May 18, 1927, and was continued under
the Canada Business Corporations Act on August 15, 1979. The common share capital of the Corporation was
- reorganized on September 10, 1982, The address of the principal office of the Corporation is' 1600, 909 - 1"
Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2ZR 1N6 and the registered office of thé Corporation is 20™ Floor, 10035 ~ 105
Street, Edmonton, Alberta, T5) 2V6.”



The following chart includes the names of the ﬁrincipal operating subsidiaries of the Corporation, the jurisdictions
under the laws of which they are organized and the percentages of their shares bencf icially owned or over which
control or direction is exercised by the Corporation,

Canadian Utilities
Limited
(Canada)
[ 100% ] 100% [ 100% ] 100%
CU Inc, . ATCO ATCO ATCO 1-Tek
Power Ltd. Midstream Ltd. * Inc..
{Canada) (Canada) {Canada) {Canada)
100% 100% 100% 100%
ATCO Gas and | ATCO Power [ ] ATCO | i ATCO 1-Tek
Pipelines Ltd, Canada Ltd. Frontec Corp. Business Services Lid.
{Albcrea) . (Canada) {Alberta) (Canada)
100% 100% 100%
CU Water | ATCO Power B ATCO . . | 1
Limited Generation Ltd. Travel Lud.
{Canada} . {England) {Alberta)
100% 50% 100%
Alberta Power | _] Thames ATCO Frontec
(2000) Ltd. Power Limited Europe Ltd.
{Canada) (England) (Hungary)
100% 51%
ATCO || Barking
Electric Ltd, Power Limited
{Canada} {England)
100% 100%
The Yukon Electrical | | ATCO Power | ]
Company Limited Australia Pty Ltd.
(Yukon Teritory) (Austratia)
100% 100%
Norven ] ASHCOR - ) -
HoMings [nc. Technologies Ltd.
{Canada) {Canada)
76%
Northland Utilities
Enterprises Ltd.
(Canadn)
100%
Northland Utilities
{Yellowknife} Limited
(Canada)
100%
Northland Utilities
(NWT) Limited
(Northwest Territorics)
100%
[ ATCO Utility
Services Ltd.
(Canada)

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation is 2 holding company. Its principal operating subsidiaries are engaged in regulated natural gas and
electric energy operations, primarily in Alberta, and in related non-regulated operations. Regulated operations are
conducted by ATCO Electric (and its subsidiaries, NLD, NUY and YECL), ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines.
Included in regulated operations are the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000}, which were regulated by the
AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the
AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the
owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed and variable costs and
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to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated upon the earlier of one year
after the expiry of a PPA or a decision to continue to operate the plant. Alberta Power (2000) has one year afier the
expiry of a PPA 10 determine whether to decommission the generating plant in order to fully recover plant-
decommissioning costs or to continue to operate the plant, Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the
last day of the estimated life of the related generating plant or December 31, 2020,

The Corporation operates in the following business segments:

The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural .gas by ATCO Gas, the regulated
distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, NLD, NUY and YECL, the
regulated transportation of natural gas by ATCO Pipelines, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by
CU Water, and the provision of non-regulated complementary projects by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam by
ATCO Power, the regulated supply of electricity by Alberta Power (2000), and the sale of fly ash and other
combustion byproducts produced in coal fired electrical generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies.

The Global Enterprises Business Group includes the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and
sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream, the provision of project management and technical services for customers
in the industrial, defence and transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec, the. development, operation and support of
information systems and technologies by ATCO [-Tek, the provision of billing services, payment processing, credit,
collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek’s subsidiary, ATCO 1-Tek Business Services, and the sale of
travel services to both business and consumer sectors by ATCO Travel. The Corporation sold its 50% interest in

. Genics, 2 manufacturer of wood preservation products, effective August 1, 2006.

The Corporate and Other segment includes commercial real estate owned by the Corporation in Alberta.

Three Year History

The significant events and conditions that have influenced the general development of the Corporation’s business
over the past three years are summarized below.

2006:
e Increased capital expenditures in the Utilities Business Group.
*  Fluctuations in temperatures affecting ATCO Gas’ operations.

* In November 2006, the AEUB announced that a generic return on common equity of 8.51% would be
applied on rate applications filed for 2007.

*  Availability of generating plants in ATCO Power and Alberta Power (2000).

» Volatility in prices received for electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool by ATCO Power and for
electricity sold into the United Kingdom Power Exchange Market by ATCO Power.

s Lower PPA tariffs due to declining rate bases at Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants and a decline in
the return on common equity rate that is based on long term Government of Canada bond yields plus 4.5%.

¢ Changes in market conditions in natural gas liquids and storage operations in ATCO Midstream.

e In 2006, the Canada Revenue Agency {“CRA™) issued a reassessment for Alberta Power (2000)'s 2001
taxation year. The CRA’s reassessment treats the proceeds received from the sale of the H.R. Milner
generating plant to the Alberta Balancing Pool as income rather than as a sale of an asset. The Corporation
has made submissions to the CRA opposing the CRA’s position. The impact of the reassessment is a $§12.4
million increase in interest and income tax expense, a $12.4 million decreasé in earnings and a $28.8
million payment associated with the tax and interest assessed. It is expected that $16.4 million of this cash
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payment will be recovered by reducing income taxes payable through higher capital cost allowance claims.
Due to the uncertainty as to whether the reassessment will ultimately be resolved in the Corporation’s
favour, the Corporation reduced earnings by $12.4 million in 2006.

Federal and provincial governments have recently announced a number of changes to income taxes and
rates. As these changes are considered to have been substantively enacted, the Corporation made an
adjustment to income taxes amounting to $11.8 million in the second quarter of 2006, most of which relates
to future income taxes. The adjustment increased 2006 earnings by $11.8 million, of which $1.9 million
relates to the Utilities Business Group, $7.2 million to the Power Generation Business Group, $2.3 million
to the Global Enterprises Business Group and $0.4 million to Corporate and Other.

In June 2003, as part of their rate applications, ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the

- AEUB that addressed certain common matters, ATCO Pipelines was also a party to this filing as the

concerns were common te all three utilities. On October 11, 2006, the AEUB issued a decision which
resulted in no significant impact on earnings. Among other things, the decision upheld ATCO’s treatment
of pension costs and approved the continued use of preferred shares. In addition, the decision approved
minimal changes to head office rent expense and executive compensation,

On November 24, 2006, the Corporation announced that its Board of Directors had completed its review of
the strategic alternatives available for its gas gathering and processing and natural gas liquids midstream
business and reached a decision to retain the business under the Corporation’s current structure. The
strategic Teview, commenced in May 2006, was conducted by the Board of Directors in conjunction with
the Corporation's management and legal and financial advisors. The review involved the evaluation of a
number of alternatives, including reorganization into a business trust or newly-created company or a sale to
a third party. ’

2005;

Volatility in prices received for electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool and for electricity sold into the
United Kingdom Power Exchange Market by ATCO Power.

Fluctuations in temperatures affecting ATCO Gas’ operations.

In 2005, the Corporation received $83.1 million as its share of the partial settlement of the claim for
damages related to TXU Europe’s breach of its contract with BPL. An additional payment of $16.6 million
was received on January 19, 2006 and a final installment of approximately $1.6 million was expected in the
second quarter of 2006, The seitlement is expected to generate eamings afler income taxes and non-
controlling interests of approximately $69 million, based on foreign currency exchange rates in effect on
March 30, 2005, which will be recognized over the remaining term of the TXU Europe contract to
September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These eamnings will be dependent upon the
foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time the earnings are recognized.

In November 2005, the AEUB announced a generic return on.common equity of 8.93% for 2006. In
January 2006, the AEUB clarified that the generic retumm on equity determined on an annual basis in
accordance with the generic cost of capital decision should apply to each year of the test period in the
companies’ applications. If no rate applications are filed for a particular year, then there will be no
adjustrnent to the common equity rate of return for that year.

In November 2005, the AEUB approved ATCO Pipelines as the party to manage the acquisition and sale of
working gas at its salt cavern storage. Salt cavern working gas had historically been acquired by ATCO
Gas and its predecessors.

In May 2005, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2003, 2006 and 2007 test
years requesting, among other things, increased revenues to recover increased financing, depreciation and
operating costs associated with increased rate base in Alberta. In June 2005, ATCO Gas filed an
application requesting interim refundable rates pending the AEUB’s decision on the general rate
application. On August 28, 2005, ATCO Gas received a decision from the AEUB approving an interim
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' refundable rate increase, to be collected from northem.cuslomer's, of $7.0 million. A decision from the
' AEUB was received on January 27, 2006, which resulted in an eamings impact that is not materially
different from the earnings based on the interim rates approved by the AEUB in August 2005.

o In April 2005, ATCO Midstream leased the full storage capacity at ATCO Gas” Carbon natural gas storage
, facility for the 2005/2006 year resulting in higher storage revenues due to higher capacity leased and the
timing and demand of storage capacity sold.

2004:
* Volatility in prices received for electricity sold to the Alberta Power Pool by ATCO Power.

s In August 2004, the Corporation reorganized its structure into three business groups: Utilities (ATCO Gas,
ATCO Electric and-its subsidiaries, NLD, NUY and YECL, ATCO Pipelines, CU Water, ATCO Utility
Services); Power Generation (ATCO Power, Alberta Power (2000)); and Global Enterprises (ATCO
Midstream, ATCO Frontec, ATCO 1-Tek and its subsidiary ATCO 1-Tek Business Services, ASHCOR
Technologies, Genics, ATCO Travel).

» In August 2004, ATCO Electric completed construction of a $99.0 million, 350 kilometre 240 kilovolt
transmission line between Fort McMurray and Whitefish Lake.

» In a decision dated July 13, 2004, the AEUB awarded ATCO Pipelines additional revenue with respect to
the revenue forecasts of certain industrial customers.

* In July 2004, ATCO Power’s Brighton Beach generating plant in Windsor, Ontario was completed and
commenced commercial operations. All of ATCO Power’s generating plants are now operational.

s In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision, establishing a standardized approach for
determining the rate of return on common equity for each utility company (ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and
ATCO Pipelines) regulated by the AEUB. The decision also established capital structures for each utility
company regulated by the AEUB. This resulted in:

o ATCO Electric obtaining an approved 2004 return on common equity of 9.60% and a common equity

. ratio of 33% for its transmission operations and 37% for its distribution operations. The impact of this

decision was an increase in the common equity that ATCQO Electric was allowed to earn a return on by
$22.3 million in 2004.

o ATCO Pipelines obtaining an approved 2004 rate of return on common equity of 9.60% and a common
equity ratio of 43%, .

o ATCO Gas was not impacted by this decision for 2004 as its.return on common equity of 9.50% and
its common equity ratio of 37% had already been approved by the AEUB in a decision dated October
1, 2003. The Generic Cost of Capital decision approved, among other things, ATCO Gas’ common
equity ratio of 38% beginning in 2005.

e In 2001, the Corporation received and paid income tax reassessments of $12.9 million relating to the 1996
disposal of ATCOR Resources Ltd. The Corporation did not agree with this reassessment and contested
the matter with tax authorities. Accordingly, the payment was recorded as a reduction of future income tax
liabilities.

During 2003, the Corporation was successful in appealing the reassessments to the Tax Court of Canada.
The Federal Government appealed the Tax Court’s decision to the Federal Court of Appeal, which issued a
decision on June 18, 2004-in favor of the Corporation. The Federal Government did not appeal the Federal
Court of Appeal’s decision to the Supreme Court of Canada. The Corporation received a refund of $15.1
million, including interest, and reversed the future income tax reduction of $12.9 million.

s  On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric closed the transfer of their retail energy supply businesses
to Direct Energy Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates (collectively “DEML™), a subsidiary of
Centrica ple (“Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses™) for $90 million. The transfer increased
2004 earnings by $55.1 million. As a result of the transfer, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric are no longer
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involved in arranging for the supply and ‘sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but continue to
own the assets ‘and provide. transportation and ‘distribution services under AEUB approved rates that

* provide for a recovery of costs of service and fair return. ATCO [-Tek Business Services entered into a 10
year contract to provide billing and call centre services to DEML.

Utilities

As a result of the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses to DEML in May 2004, ATCO Electric and
ATCO Gas are no longer involved in arranging for the supply and sale of electricity and natural gas to customers
and are therefore no longer responsible for electric energy or natural gas supply, but will continue to own the assets
and prowde transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs
of service and fair return.

. Natural Gas Distribution

ATCO Gas is primarilly engaged in. the business of distributing natural gas throughout Alberta and in the
Lloydminster area of Saskatchewan. Although ATCO Gas IS the major natural gas distributor in Alberta, certain

" areas are served by other natural gas uulmes

ATCO Gas’ principal markets for. the distribution of natural gas are in the communities of Edmonton, Calgary,

Airdrie, Camrose, Fort McMurray, Grande Prairie, Lethbridge, Lloydminster, Red Deer, St.- Albert and Sherwood - .

Park, which have a combined population of approximately 2,194,000. Also served are 279 smaller communities as -
well as rura) areas having a combined population of approximately 564,000; located on or in the vicinity of ATCO
Pipelines’ transportation systems or the natural gas transportation pipelines of other companies. ATCO Gas
provides approximately 970,000 customers with natural gas service, of whom approximately 75% are located in the
11 communities named above.

The number of customers served by ATCO Gas as at the end of each of the last two years was as follows:

2006 2005
886,999 858,618
82,490 80,630
358 350
30 -
969,877 939,598

ATCO Gas owns and operates approximateiy 35,900 km of distribution mains. In addition, ATCO Gas owns
modern service and maintenance facilities in major centres. . .

Revenues and earnings of ATCO Gas are affected by temperature and censeduently winter weather can have a
significant impact. During a typical year, more than 90% of the eammbs of ATCO Gas are generated during the
months of January, February, November and December.

The amounts of natural gas dlstnbuted by ATCO Gas for each of the last two years were as follows:

2006 2005
© (petajoules)
RESIABIIIIAL ..ottt s1 ettt e e st e e e eeeereeeesamtenreene st esnrenaaantess rensanntesmenan 105.3- 103.8
Commercial : 98.6 96.9
CUINGUSITIAY. ..ot ae e s s et et e e s e srananes 14.4 14,4
L0 1T SO E OO 0.4 0.4
TIOLALL .ottt e e et e et et e e bt s st a e e ar bt e s mteeaabe e e s raveeare e s atsarEEeesrataras 2187 215.5




Natural Gas Supply _ S

Prior to April 1, 2005, as directed by the AEUB, ATCO Gas purchased fixed quantities of natural gas from various
gas producers at market prices that are in effect at the time the quantities are purchased. Effective April 1, 2005, as
directed by the AEUB, ATCO Gas no longer purchases fixed quantities of natural gas related to storage purchases
and operational contracts pertaining to its natural gas field storage facility at Carbon, Alberta. ATCO Gas has leased
the entire storage capacity of the 43.5 petajoule Carbon facility to ATCO Midstream since April 1, 2005. For
additional information related to the leasing of the Carbon natural gas storage facility to ATCO Midstream, refer to
the Regulatory Matters, ATCO Gas section of the Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(“MD#&A™), which is available at www.sedar.com. )

In 2003, ATCO Gas commenced the first phase of a $278 million project to relocate natural gas meters currently
inside homes to the outside. The project will make the distribution system safer by relocating and replacing aging
infrastructure, improve metering accuracy and accessibility, and facilitate more efficient meter reading. The AEUB
approved a program which will result in meters with underground entries being relocated over 10 years and all other
inside meters moved as part of the existing meter recall program. The decision also allows ATCO Gas to move
meters at any time if they are deemed unsafe.

CU Water

CU Water is engaged in the transmission and distribution of water. CU Water owns and operates a distribution
system to supply water to rural customers and small towns east of Edmonton. At the end of 2006, approximately
1,000 customers were being served directly by CU Water and, in addition, bulk water sales were being made to the
towns of Tofield and Viking and to 13 commercial water haulers. The operations of CU Water are subject to
regulation by the AEUB.

Natural Gas Transportation

ATCO Pipelines is engaged in the business of transporting natural gas throughout Alberta and the operation of a salt
cavern storage peaking facility, .

ATCO Pipelines owns and operates extensive natural gas transportation systems. The systems consist of
approximately 8,419 km of pipelines, 23 compressor sites and a salt cavern storage peaking facility. The systems
have 229 producer receipt points, 78 interconnections with TransCanada Pipelines Limited, five interconnections
. with Alliance Pipeline and one interconnection with Many Islands Pipelines.

ATCO Pipelines’ revenues are based primarily on contractual arrangements for access to its transportation systems.
Contract demand for access, and interruptible (IT), overrun (OR) and variable volumes for each of the last two years
. was as follows:

2006 2005
(terajoules/day)
Contract Demand:
PrOQUEET oottt s 1,366 1,291
TNAUSITIAL ..ottt r bbb e s b e e e bb e s s hae e s bt e s bae s sab e et b et s bmb et ba s s brsarees 966 1,015
DHSITIDULION L 1uiiiiis ettt st s e st et bbb s rab et sb b s sa 1ot s ab b s s rabeasbbenssanesres 95 - 93 -
Affiliates : 2,605 2,431
BT | USSR 5,032 4,830
{T/OR/Variable Volumes:
PIOTUCET vt ceere e st es s ees e sen st seaessersassseassenseassasrtsnssesasssensanessassessensonensasenn B 244 243
INAUSIIIAL ..ot et e b e b s e s b s n s e e e R b e n et sarsareerrnar iR beeraaes 234 241
ST IO oot va et e b b e e e s bb s e s tr e te b bt oa b ae s aaas o b e s rabat et b be e batarres - 2
B 41 OO 478 486
Total Contract Demand and IT/OR/Variable VoOlumes ........cccovrvriiiiiieininsnienniisnnienns 5,510 5,316
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The AEUB approved the conversion of sales service to transportation service for certain customers of ATCO
Pipelines. This conversion was completed during 2005,

Electric Distribution and Transmission

ATCO Electric is engaged in the business of transmitting and distributing electric energy to 245 communities as
well as rural areas in east-central and northern Alberta. Included are the communities of Drumbheller, Lloydminster,
Grande Prairie and Fort McMurray as well as the oil sands areas near Fort McMurray and the heavy oil areas near
Cold Lake and Peace River. Electric utility service is also provided to one community in British Columbia and to
two communities in Saskatchewan. YECL serves 19 communities in the Yukon Territory, including the capital city
of Whitchorse, and NUY and NLD serve 9 communities in the Northwest Territories, including the capital city of
Yellowknife.

Electricity distributed to the various classes of customers for each of the last two years was as follows:

2006 2005
Millions Millions
of of

Kilowatt . . Kilowatt
Hours % Hours Yo
INAUSEFIALL..coe vt rrerne s s s rae e e e e re e 6,719 65 6,583 66
CommETCIal .....oooiiirec e 1,967 19 1,826 19
ReSIAENUEL ...t 1,098 11 1,023 10
Rural, REAS and other ..o e 502 5 494 5
Tl b e 10,286 100 9,926 100

The aggregate population of the areas provided with electric utility service by ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and
YECL is approximately 465,000 and service is provided to approximately 216,000 customers. ATCO Electric has
been assigned approximately 65% of the designated: service area within Alberta which contains approximately 15%
of the existing provincial electrical load and 13% of the existing population.

The number of customers served by ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL as at the end of each of the last two
years was as follows:

2006 2005
Number % Number %o
Industrial......c.ocooirieecc e 10,894 5 10,847 ° 5
Commercial oo e 29,284 i3 28,673 14
Residential .....ccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieisiisis et reeeens 146,503 68 141,806 67
Rural, REAS and other........cocvvevrveerereesierreieeesnenns devrrrrrerrranne 29,657 14 29,536 14
TOtAL ..o e 216,338 100 210,862 100

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate extensive eléctric transmission and distribution systems.
The systems consist of approximately 9,300 km of main transmission lines and 60,800 km of distribution fines. In
addition, ATCO Electric delivers power to and operates approximately 12,000 km of REA-owned distribution lines.

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate 28 diesel, natural gas turbine and hydro generating plants
having an aggregate nameplate capacity of 61 megawatts in Alberta and in the Yukon and Northwest Territories.
The maximum peak load demand for these plants during the year ended December 31, 2006, was 32 megawatts.

In August 2006, the AEUB approved the first phase of the AESO's application for the need to improve transmission
infrastructure in northwest Alberta, The AEUB decision grants the AESO approval to assign approximately $300
million in projects to the Transmission Facility Owner, ATCO Electric. Once assigned by the AESO, ATCO
Electric will prepare and file facility applications with the AEUB. Construction will commence once approval to
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proceed is received from the AEUB. The entire ﬁfoject was originally intended to be completed by 2009, but now is
anticipated to be completed by 2011. As a result of price escalation caused by the change in completion date,
coupled with the increasing costs of construction in Alberta, the entire project is now estimated to cost $400 million.

Franchises

AGP, ATCO Electric, YECL, NUY and NLD distribute natural gas and electricity in incorporated communities
under the authority of franchises or by—laws and in rural areas under approvals permits or orders issued pursuant to
applicable statutes.

In Edmonton, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of an exclusive franchise. In 2004, AGP
entered into an agreement with the City of Edmonton for a 10 year renewal of the franchise to November 15, 2015.
The franchise renewal is subject to the right of the City of Edmenton, at the end of the renewal period, to purchase
all of AGP’s assets used in supplying natural gas to the city. The purchase price would be determined by an
arbitration process according to the arbitration laws of Alberta. Although the franchise agreement gives the City
certain rights of purchase, since 1935 the City has granted renewals for 10 year periods,

In Calgary, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of a2 municipal by-law. The rights of AGP
under this by-law, while not exclusive, are unrestricted as to time. The by-law does not confer any right on the City
of Calgary to acquire the facilities used in providing the service.

The franchises under which service is provided in other incorporated communities in Alberta and in the Northwest
Territories have been granted for periods of up to 20 years. These franchises are exclusive to AGP, ATCO Electric,
NUY or NLD) and are renewable by agreement for further periods not exceeding 20 years-cach in the case of AGP
and 10 years in the case of ATCO Electric, NUY and NLD. If any franchise is not renewed, it remains in effect
until such time as either party, with the approval of the prevailing regulatory authority, terminates it on six months
written notice. Upon termination of a franchise the municipality may purchase the facilities used in connection with
that franchise at a price to be agreed upon or, failing agreement, to be fixed by the prevailing regulatory authority.
The franchise under which service is provided in the Yukon Territory was granted under the Public Utilities Act
{Yukon Territory) and has no set expiry date.

Franchise Renewals

ATCO Electric has four material franchises, two of which have expired and are currently being renegotiated. Of the
remaining franchises, one expires in 2008 and the other expires in 2014,

ATCO Gas has five material franchise agreements which expire between 2012 and 2018.
The Corporation anticipates that all material franchise agreements currently held will be renewed.
Power Generation

Under the EUA, generation assets constructed after December 31, 19935, are not considered part of utility operations
and rates are not regulated by the AEUB. All owners of new and existing generating units must sell their surplus
electric energy through the Alberta Power Pool.

Regulated (Alberta Power (2000))

Alberta Power (2000) is engaged in the regulated supply of electricity in Alberta. Alberta Power (2000)’s assets are
operated by ATCO Power pursuant to management agreements. The generating plants of Alberta Power (2000)
were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that
were approved by the AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are
designed to allow the owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed
and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA's. The plants will become deregulated upon
the earlier of one year afier the expiry of a PPA or a decision to continue to operate the plant. Alberta Power (2000)
has one year after the expiry of a PPA to determine whether to decommission the generating plant in order to fully
recover plant decommissioning cosls or to continue to operate the plant and be responsible for future
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decommissioning costs. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the life of the related
generating plant and December 31, 2020, '

Substantially all of the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000} is sold pursuant to PPA's with ENMAX
Corporation {Battle River generating plant) and TransCanada Energy Ltd. (Sheerness generating plant). The Battle
River PPA was sold to ENMAX Corporation by EPCOR Utilities Inc. in May, 2006, the Sheerness PPA was sold to
TransCanada Energy Ltd. by the Alberta Balancing Pool effective January 2006 and the Rainbow PPA expired on
December 31, 2005. Under the PPA's, Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each
generating unit available to the purchaser of the PPA for that unit. In return, Alberta Power (2000) is entitled to
recover its forecast fixed and variable costs for that unit from the PPA purchaser, including a return on common
equity equal to the long term Government of Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based on a deemed common equity ratio
of 45%. Many of the forecast costs are determined by indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the
PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual results will vary and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on
which the PPA’s are based.

Alberta Power (2000) continued to operate the Rainbow generating plant during 2006 and the electricity generated
was sold to the Alberta Power Pool. Alberta Power (2000) had one year after the expiry of the PPA for the Rainbow
generating plant (December 31, 2005) to determine. whether to decommission the plant in order to fully recover
plant decommissioning costs or 1o continue 10 operate the plant. The AESO and Alberta Power (2000) are currently
negotiating a contract that, if executed, will result in Alberta Power (2000) continuing to operate the plant and be
responsible for future decommissioning costs. Alberta Power (2000) has filed an application with the AEUB to
decommission the plant and thereby preserve Alberta Power (2000)'s rights to fully recover plant decommissioning
costs in the event negotiations with the AESO are unsuccessful.

The name plate capacity ratings of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants are shown below.

Name Plate PPA
Commissioning  Type of Generating Capacity Expiry
Plant Date Plant Rating PPA Purchaser Date
(megawalts)

Battle River (1) )
Unit3........ 1969 coal-fired steam turbine 150 ENMAX Corporation 2013
Unit4....... 1975 coal-fired steam turbine 150 ENMAX Corporation 2013
Unit 5....... 1981 coal-fired steam turbine 370 'ENMAX Corporation 2020

670

Sheerness (2)(3)

Unit1....... 1986 coal-fired steam turhine 190 TransCanada Energy Ltd. 2020
Unit2......... 1930 coal-fired steam turbine 190 . TransCanada Energy Lid. 2020
380

Rainbow........ 1968 natural gas turbine 88 Merchant

Sturgeon........ 1957 natural gas turbine 18 Merchant

Total 1,156

Notes:

(1) ENMAX Corporation became the PPA purchaser on May 1, 2006, previously the PPA purchaser was EPCOR
Utilities Inc.

(2) Alberta Power (2000} 's ownership of the 760 megawatt name plate capacity.

{3) TransCanada Energy Lid. became the PPA purchaser on January 1, 2006; previously the PPA purchaser was
the Alberta Balancing Pool, ‘

Alberta Power (2000) manages the Sheerness generating plant under long term agreements with TransAlta
Cogeneraticn L.P. for the equal sharing of ownership and cost of electric capacity.
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Alberta Power (2000) owns or has committed under long term contracts sufficient coal supplies for the anticipated
lives of its Battle River and Sheerness generating plants.

Non-ch'uIated (ATCO Power)

ATCO Power is engaged in the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam in Canada, the United
ngdom and Australia. ATCO Power also manages Alberta Power (2000)’s assets. ATCO Power continues to

" focus its developmem efforts on independent’ power producuon projects in Canada, Australia and the United

ngdom

ATCO Power's non-regulated independent cogeneration plants and- generating plants, with their respective
commissioning dates and name plate capacity ratings, are shown below.

Commissioning Name Plate Net
Location Date Capacity Rating Ownership Ownership
. (megawatts) (megawatts)
Canada: ) ’
McMahon, B.C. ' 1993 120 50.0% 60
Primrose, Alberta 1998 85 40.0% 34
- Poplar Hill, Alberta 1998 45 80.0% 36
Rainbow Lake, Alberta . 1999 90 ' 40.0% 36
Joftre, Alberta 2000 480 32.0% . 154
Valleyview, Alberta 2001 45 80.0% 36
Muskeg River, Alberta 2003 170 . 56.0% ’ 935
Cory, Saskatchewan 2003 260 40.0% 104
'Oldman River, Alberta © 2003 32 80.0% , 26
Scotford, Aiberta 2003 170 80.0% 136
Brighton Beach, Ontario 2004 580 40.0% -232
United Kingdom:
Barking, London 1995 ' 1,000 25.5% 255
Heathrow Airport 1990 14 50.0% 7
Australia: Y ‘ )
Osbome, South Ausiralia 1968 180 | 50.0% 90
Bulwer Island, Queensland 2001 33 ' 50.0% 17
Total - 3,304 - 1,318
Canada

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint veniure with McMahon Power Holdings L.P. The joint venture owns and
operates the 120 megawatt McMahon cogeneration plant at Taylor, British Columbia. All of the electricity
generated is sold to British Columbia Hydro and Power Authority pursuant to an electricity purchase agreement
expiring in 2014, In addition to generating electricity, the plant sells steam to Westcoast Energy Inc.’s adjacent

" natural gas processing plant,

A joint venture, owned by ATCO Powcr Canadian Natural Resources lelted (“CNRL”) and ATCO Resources,

.operates an 85 megawait cogenerauon power plant (the “Primrose Steam Enhancement Plant”) near Bonnyville,
Alberta. The joint venture sells electricity and steam to CNRL for use in its heavy oil recovery process. Any excess

electricity generated ‘is sold to the Alberta Power Pool or to specific customets. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest
in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and CNRL owns 50%. -



. i . .
ATCO Power operates a 45 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant at Poplar Hill near Grande Prairie, Alberta,
Revenues are derived from power sold to the Alberta Power Pool and for transmission support required by the
Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates a 90 megawalt natural gas-fired generating plant at Rainbow Lake, Alberta which sells steam
and electricity to Husky Energy Inc. (“Husky™). Surplus electricity is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power
owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and Husky owns 50%.

ATCO Power, EPCOR Power Development Corporation and NOVA Chemicals Corporation (“NOVA™) are
participanis in a joint venture which operates a 480 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant near Joffre,

. Alberta. ATCO Power is the operator of the facility. NOVA purchases all of the steam and approximately 25% of

the electricity produced for use in NOVA’s Joffre petrochemical site under an energy purchase agreement expiring
in 2020. The balance of the output is sold to the Alberta Power Pool or to specific customers. ATCO Power owns a
32% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 8%, EPCOR Power Development Corporation owns 40% and
NOVA owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates a 45 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant near Valleyview, Alberta. All of the
electricity produced by the plant is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in the
project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power and SaskPower International Inc. (“SPI”) are participants in a joint venture which operates a 170

_megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant and related facilities at the Athabasca Oil Sands Project (“AOSP")

Muskeg River mine near Fort McMurray, Alberta. Approximately one-half of the electricity and all of the steam
produced by the plant are supplied to AOSP for use in its Muskeg River mine. The balance of the electricity
generated is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns a 56% interest in the project, ATCO Resources
owns 14% and SPI owns 30%. '

ATCO Power and SPI are participants in a joint venture which operates a 260 megawatt natural gas-fired
cogeneration plant at Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan Inc.’s Cory Mine, located near Saskatoon, Saskatchewan.
ATCO Power is the operator of the facility. Saskatchewan Power Corporation has agreed to purchase all of the
electricity generated by the plant for 25 years. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources
owns 10% and SPI owns 50%.

ATCO Power operates a 32 megawatt hydroelectric generating plant at the Oldman River dam near Pincher Creek,
Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the plant is-sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an 80%
interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%. The Piikani Nation of Brockett, Alberta has an option
which expires February 28, 2007, to purchase a 25% interest in the project.

ATCO Power operates a 170 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant at the AOSP upgrader at Scotford,
Alberta. Approximately 80% of the electricity and all the thermal energy produced by the plant is supplied to AOSP
for use in the upgrader and the balance of the electricity is sold to the Alberta Power Pool. ATCO Power owns an
80% interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%. :

A partnership formed by ATCO Power and Ontario Power Generation Inc, (“OPG™) owns and operates the Brighton
Beach power plant, a 580 megawatt natural gas-fired combined cycle generating plant in Windsor, Ontaric. Coral
Energy Canada Inc. supplies and pays for the natural gas used at the plant and owns, markets and trades all the
electricity produced under contracts expiring in 2024, ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO
Resources owns 10% and OPG owns 50%.

United Kingdom

ATCO Power and Balfour Beatty plc, a United Kingdom construction group, each own a 50% equity interest in
Thames Power, a London, England based company. Thames Power has a 51% interest in BPL which owns a 1,000
megawatt natural gas-fired combined cycle generating plant at Dagenham in London, England (the “Barking power
plant”). EDF Energy plc (“EDF”) and SSE Energy Supply Limited (“SSE”) own the remaining 49% interest in
BPL. " EDF and SSE have entered into long term agreements expiring in 2010 to purchase 72.5% of the electricity
produced at the plant. The remaining 275 megawatts of power is being sold into the United Kingdom electricity
market on a merchant basis under a two year marketing agreement expiring September 30, 2008. The majoEl of
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-

the 275 megawatts has been sold forward under this agreement through the end of March 2007 with smaller volumes
sold forward through March 2008. - The Barking power plant is operated by ATCO Power.

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with a subsidiary of EDF. The joint venture owns and operates a
facility consisting of a 14 megawatt natural gas turbine, 40 megawatts of boiler capacity and an associated heat
distribution system at London's Heathrow Airport. The joint venture has a 15 year energy services contract,
expiring in 2010, with BAA plc, owner of the Heathrow Airport, for all of the electric energy and hot water
produced by the facility.

Australia

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with Origin Energy Limited (“Origin”}. The joint venture owns
and operates 2 180 megawatt cogeneration plant in Osborne, South Australia. This joint venture supplies electricity
to Flinders Osborne Trading Pty Ltd (“FOT™) under a 20 year electricity purchase agreement expiring in 2018. In
addition to generating electricity, the plant provides steam under a 20 year agreement, expiring in 2018, to Penrice
Soda Products Pty Ltd. The Government of South Australia has guaranteed the obligations of FOT under these
agreements,

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a second consortium with Origin, The consortium owns and operates a 33
megawatt natural gas- -fired cogeneration plant and other utility infrastructure at BP Amoco plc’s (“BP”) Bulwer
Island refinery, near Brisbane, Queensland. All of the power and steam produced by the planl is sold to BP under a
20 year agreement expiring in 2021.

ASHCOR Technollogies

ASHCOR Technologies is engaged in the sale of fly ash and other combustion byproducts produced in coal-fired
electrical generating plants.

Global Enterprises
Non-Regulated Natural Gas Gathering, Processing and Storage

ATCO Midstream owns and operates non-regulated gathering and processing facilities in Alberta. ATCO
Midstream provides natural gas procurement/load balancing services for other ATCO subsidiaries, management
services for ATCO Gas’ storage field at Carbon and markets non-regulated storage products. Since April 1, 2005,
ATCO Midstream has leased the full storage capacity at ATCO Gas® 43.5 petajoule Carbon storage facility. Upon
the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses in 2004, ATCO Midstream ceased providing natural gas
procurement services to ATCO Gas.

ATCO Midstream owns a 51.3% interest in EEEP. Located in south Edmonton, EEEP is a natural gas processing
plant which extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas flowing inte the Edmonton market area.
Ethane is sold to an Alberta ethylene producer under a long term contract that expires in December 2012 and other
natural gas liquids are sold under another long term contract that expires in May 2014,

ATCO Midstream’s natural gas liquids extraction plants with plant capacity ratings are shown below:

Plant Net
Facility Extraction Capacity Ownership Ownership  Operator
(Mmcf/day) (Mmcf/day)
Edmonton Ethane Extraction Plant..... C2 & C3+ NGL mix 360 51.3% 185 No
Empress Gas Liquids Straddle Plant... C2 & C3+ NGL mix 1,100 12.2% 134 Yes
Villeneuve Ethane Extraction Plant.... C2+NGL mix 40 100.0% 40 Yes
Fort Saskatchewan Ethane Extraction
Plant .........ooovevececs v C2+NGL mix 35 100.0% 35 Yes
1,535 394
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Notes:

(1) Ethane (“C2"), propane, butane and pentanes-plus (“C3+ "} and a mixture of other natural gas liquids
{“NGL").

(2) Ethane (“C2") and a mixture of other NGL's.

ATCO Midstream owns or has a joint venture interest in eight natural gas processing plants, six of which it operates,
three compression facilities, all of which it operates, and approximately 1,000 km of field gathering lines. Natural
gas production from the producing properties connecied to ATCO Midstream’s natural gas gathering systems is
processed by ATCO Midstream and either transported for a fee or purchased and sold under contracts with third
parties.

ATCO Midstream’s natural gas processing plants with plant capacity ratings are shown below:

Facility Plant Net

Capacity  Ownership  Ownership  Operator

(Mmcf/day) (Mmcf/day)
Carbondale........ooovvenivrvrereecnie e 55 100.0% 55 Yes
Cranbermy ..o s 35 100.0% 35 Yes
Golden Spike ..o 65 100.0% 65 Yes
Nottingham Gas Plant.........c.oviiinnnnin 13 7.0% i No
Puskwaskau Gas Plant ..........cccooovveeivieeeeereceeeee e eienes 21 41.0% 9 . No
Watelet Gas PIant .....cocooiieiievr v isssesssnesstesissnnes 20 100.0% 20 Yes
West Pemnbina Gas Plant........ccoovevv v 145 2.4% 3 ~Yes
Widewater Gas Plant ..........ccccooooieiiiiiceee e 10 100.0% 10 Yes

364 198

Technical Facilities Management

ATCO Frontec, through its own operations and through a number of joint ventures, provides project management
and technical services for customers .in the industrial, defence, telecommunications and transportation sectors.
Activities include the operation and maintenance of the Alaska Radar System and various remote sites for
Northwestel In¢. in northern Canada. ATCO Frontec provides construction, site support and technical support for
NATO, United Nations and the Swedish Armed Forces in Afghanistan, Pakistan and eastern Europe. ATCO
Frontec also provides airport operation and maintenance, security, facilities management, bulk fuel storage and
distribution and a wide variety of services and business activities in various locations throughout Canada and the
world.

ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic Inuit Logistics Corporation (“Pan Arctic”) have a contract with the Government of
Canada, until September 2009, to operate and maintain the North Warmning System. The Government of Canada has
an option to extend the contract until 2011. Nasittuq Corporation, a corporation jointly owned by ATCO Frontec
and Pan Arctic, operates as agent for the purposes of the North Waming System contract.

Technologies
ATCO I-Tek is engaged in the development, operation and support of information systems and technologies.

ATCQ I-Tek Business Services provides billing services, payment processing, credit, collection and call centre
services to its clients, ATCO 1-Tek Business Services currently provides such services to DEML for its regulated
retail and competitive energy supply businesses in Alberta. In addition, ATCO [-Tek Business Services also
supplies distribution-related billing and customer care services to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric.

DEML has entered into a 10 year contract effective May 4, 2004, with ATCO [-Tek Business Services to provide
billing and call centre services to ensure continued quality customer service. DEML has the ability to terminate this
contract afier the fifth anniversary upon immediate payment of termination fees which decline over the remaining
term of the contract. Based upon current customer counts and service levels and a 10 year contract, revenues are
estimated to be between $400-3500 million over the term of the contract.
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ATCO Travel

ATCO Travel is engaged in the sale of travel services to both business and consumer sectors. ATCO.Travel is one
of the largest independent travel agencies in western Canada. ATCO Travel was awarded the 2006 Association of
Canadian Travel Agencies Atlas Award for Travel Agency of the Year in Alberta and the Northwest Territories.
This award recognizes ATCO Travel's commitment to its customers by developing and implementing innovative
solutions for their travel needs.

BUSINESS RISKS

The business risks section in the Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis (*“MD&A”)} is hereby
incorporated by reference and is available at www.sedar.com.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Under Alberta legislation, owners of public, electric or gas utilities are required to obtain AEUB approval prior to
jssuing securities, however through AEUB orders CU and CU Inc. are exempt from this requirement,

The utility operations of the Cerporation in Alberta {ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric, ATCO Pipelines and CU Water)
are subject to the jurisdiction of the AEUB which, among other things, is vested with broad general powers of
supervision with respect to the construction and operation of electric energy and natural gas facilities within the
Province and broad powers of regulation in respect of rates charged for the delivery of electric energy, natural gas
and water.

The regulated operations of the Corporation in the Yukon Territory (YECL) and the Northwest Termritories (NUY
and NLD) are subject to regulation similar to that in effect in Alberta by regulatory authorities in those jurisdictions.

The provincial and territorial utility boards regulate and approve customer rates based on anticipated energy
deliveries as well as the revenue required to recover estimated costs of service, including a fair return on rate base,
estimated operating expenses, depreciation and taxes, all in respect of a future test period. Energy deliveries aré
based ‘on a forecast of economic and business conditions and, in the case of natural gas distribution utility
operations, normal temperature which is defined as the average temperature for the previous 20 years.

Rate base consists of the depreciated cost of utility assets and an allowance for working capital. Return on rate base
is designed to meet the cost of interest on long term debt and dividends on preferred shares and to provide the
common shareholders with a reasenable opportunity to earn a fair return on their investment. The determination of a
fair return to the common shareholders involves an assessment by the regulator of many factors, including returns on
alternative investment opportunities of comparable risk and the level of return which will enable a utility to attract
the necessary capital to fund its operations.
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' Particulars of the most recent final decisions made by the’ AEUB respecting general rate apphcauons or negotiated
settlements filed by the principal regulated subsidiaries of the Corporation are as follows:

(2)

3
@

(5)

(6)

(7)

+Rate of -
Return on Common
Date of Mid-Year Common ~ Equity Ratio
Year Decision (1) Rate Base Equity (2) 3)
($ Millions) ) (%) (%a)
: ATCf) Electric
Transmission.............. 2005 Jul. 11/06 786.5 9.50 (4) 33.0 4)
) 2006 Jul. 11/06 849.1 8.93 {4) 33.0 @
2007 N ) (3 8.51 5
" Distribution .....c.ccvccne . 2005 Jul 11/06 605.0 950  (4) 37.0 @)
. ' 2006 Jul. 11/06 673.3 8.93 C)) 37.0 )
2007 (5) 5 851 (5)
ATCO Pipelines o . -
North ..o 2003 Dec. 02/03 3518 ) 9.50 43.5
‘ 2004 Dec. 02/03 355.2 " 9.60 (4) 43.0 4)
South ..o 2003 Dec. 02/03 144.8 - 9.50 , 435 i
- 2004 Dec. 02/03 147.6 ‘ 9.60 4) 43.0 4)
ATCO Gas . . .
North ..ol 2005 Dec.28/06 . S089 (6) 9.50 N 38.0 {T)
2006 Dec.28/06 532.8 6) 8.93 )] 380 {7
2007 Dec.28/06 558.3 (6) 8.51 N 380 {7
South ... e © 2005 Dec.28/06 559.6 {6) 950 N 38.0 (D
2006  Dec.28/06 © © 5342 (6) 8.93 (N 380 ° (D)
2007 Dec.28/06 550.3 ') 8.51 )] ‘38.0 N
Noies:
(1} Theinformation shown reﬂecm the most recent amendmg or varying orders issued subsequent lo the original

date of decision.

Common equity rate of return is the rate of return on the pornon of rate base considered to be Jinanced by
common equity. ‘ :

The. commion equity ratio is the percentage of rate base consrdered to be financed by common equity.

The rate of return on common equity and common equity ratio was determined by the AE UB'’s generic cost of
" capital decision dated July 2, 2004. :
In November 2006, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEURB for the 2007 and 2008 test
years. The AEUB has announced that an 8.51% rate of return on common equity, as determined by the AEUB s
standardized rate of return methodology for utilities in Alberta, will be applicable to any dererm.manon of a
2007 revenue requirement for ATCO Electric. The mid-year rate base and common equity ratio will be
determined by the AEUB when il issues its decision on the general tariff application. The rate of return on
common equity for 2008.is yet to be determined by the AEUB.

Amounts shown for mid- -year rate base are based on the AEUB 2005, 2006, and 2007 general rate application
compliance decision issued on December 28, 2006.

The common equity ratios for 2005 — 2007 for ATCO Gas were delermmed by the AE UB s generic cost of
capital decision dated July 2, 2004. The 2005, 2006 and 2007 general rate application decision issued by the
AEUB in January 2006 approved a return on common equity as determined by the AEUB s smndardtzed rate of
return merhodo."ogy




Generic Cost of Capital gl y

In July 2004, the AEUB issued its generic cost of capital decision. The decision established a standardized approach
for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate of return on common equity based upon a
return of 9.60% on common equity. This rate of return will be adjusted annuaily by 75% of the change in long term
Government of Canada bond yield as forecast in the November Consensus Forecast, adjusted for the average
difference between the 10 year and 30 year Government of Canada bond yields for the month of October as reported
in the National Post. This adjustment mechanism is similar to the method the. National Energy Board uses in
determining its formula based rate of retum. The AEUB will undertake a review of this mechanism for the year
2009 or if the rate of return resulting from the formula is less than 7.6% or greater than 11.6%. The AEUB also
noted that any party, at any time, could petition for a review of the adjustment formula if that party can demonstrate
a material change in facts or circumstances.

The decision also established the capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB. The AEUB determined
that any proposed changes to the approved capital structure which result from a material change in the investment
risk of a unllty will'be addressed at utility specific rate applications.

In November 2004, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 9.50% for 2005 and in November
2005 anncunced a generic return on common equity of 8.93% for 2006. In January 2006, the AEUB clarified that
the generic return on equity determined in accordance with the generic cost of capital decision should apply to each
year of the-test period in the companies’ applications. [f no rate applications are filed for a particular year, then
there will be no adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year. In November 2006, the AEUB
announced a generic return on common equity of 8.51% for 2007.

Electric Utilities Act
Transmission

Under the EUA, separate wholesale tariffs for transmission must be approved by the AEUB. The transmission
tariffs allow any owner of a generating unit to have access to the transmission system in Alberta and thus facilitate
the sale of its power. The same transmission tariff is charged to each distribution utility or- customer directly
connected to the transmission system regardless of location,

The equalization of transmission costs is achieved by having each owner of transmission facilities charge its costs to
the Alberta Power Pool. The Alberta Power Pool then aggregates these costs and charges a common transmission
rate to all who use the transmission system.

The Alberta Power Pool has developed and approved rules as mandated in the Transmission Regulation enacted by
the Government of Alberta in 2004. - These rules direct that new transmission projects will be assigned to the
Transmission Facility Owners based on the service areas of the distribution companies they have been historically
affiliated with. Ownership of facilities will change at service area boundaries except where, in the opinion of the
Alberta Power Pool, only a small portion of the project is in another service area. All expansions of existing
facilities will be assigned to the existing owner.

Distribution

Under the EUA, separate retail rates for distribution must be approved by the AEUB. Costs of distribution are not
equalized. The distribution utility provides the distribution services for all customers under AEUB approved tariffs
which provide for the recovery of the cost of service, including a fair return on rate base.

Environmental Protection

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries and the industries in which they operate are subject to extensive federal,
provincial and local environmental protection laws concerning emissions to the air, discharges to surface and
subsurface waters, land use activities and the handling, manufacturing,- processing, use, emission and disposal of
materials and waste products. !n Alberta, protection of the environment is generally governed by the Alberta
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Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act. The operating subsidiaries have obtained or are obtaining all
permits and licenses required by law to carry on their operations.

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries are committed to preserving and protecting the environment and
minimizing the discharge of harmful materials into the environment in accordance with environmental protection
laws and regulations. Nevertheless, some risk of unintentional violation of environmental protection laws and the
resulting liability to the Corporation’s operating subsidiaries is inherent in particular operations of these subsidiaries,
as it is with other companies engaged in similar businesses. There can be no assurance that material costs and
liabilities will not be incurred. To mitigate these costs, the Corporation carries insurance for the operating
subsidiaries against third party claims for bodily injury and property damage arising from a sudden and accidental
event or occurrence resulting from an unexpected release of pollutants or contaminants.

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries do not expect that environmental protection laws and regulations will
affect them differently from other companies in the industries in which they operate. Specifically identifiable
expenditures for pellution abatement and control were approximately $27.7 million in 2006 and are estimated to be
$28.1 million in 2007.

The current Federal government favours a made in Canada approach to deal with climate change instead of the
Kyoto Protocol which the previous government had ratified. The Corporation is unable to determine what impact
the Clean Air Act may have on its operations as the Government of Canada has not yet provided industry specific
details for its 2006 Climate Change Plan. While it is not certain, it is anticipated that the Corporation’s PPA’s
relating to its coal-fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with
the implementation of the Clean Air Act. .

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Share Capital

The authorized share capital of the Corporation consists of 150,000 Series Preferred Shares issuable in series, an
. unlimited number of Series Second Preferred Shares issuable in series and an unlimited number of Class A shares
and Class B shares. At February 16, 2007, the Corporation had outstanding:
¢ 1o Sertes Preferred Shares;
* nine series of Series Second Preferred Shares totaling 25,460,105 shares ($3636.5 million);
o 81,462,286 Class A shares; and
» 43,926,484 Class B shares.

' Series Preferred Shares

The Series Preferred Shares are entitled, in priority to the Series Second Preferred Shares and the Class A shares and
Class B shares, to fixed cumulative preferential cash dividends and, in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or
winding-up of the Corporation, or other distribution of assets of the Corporation among its shareholders for the
purpose of winding up its affairs, to the amount paid up thereon and accrued and unpaid dividends and, if such
action is voluntary, the premiums payable on redemption, if any.

The Series Preferred Shares are subject to redemption on 30 days’ notice and are non-voting except upon the failure
of the Corporation to pay dividends on any such shares for a period of 18 months, in which case the holders of all
such shares are entitled to one vote per share and to elect at meetings of shareholders at which directors are elected
Jjust under one-half of the directors of the Corporation.

The provisions attaching to the Series Preferred Shares stipulate that no shares ranking junior to the Series Preferred
Shares may be retired unless all dividends then payable on the Series Preferred Shares shall have been declared and
paid.

Two series of Series Preferred Shares aggregating 65,000 shares have been designated and issued to date, all of
which have been redeemed and cancelled.
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Series Sccond Preferred Shares

An unlimited number of Series Second Preferred Shares are issuable in series, each series consisting of such number
of shares and having such provisions attaching thereto as may be determined by the directors. The Series Second
Preferred Shares as a class have, among others, provisions to the following effect:

(i) The Series Second Preferred Shares rank junior to the Series Preferred Shares but are, with respect to

priority in payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets in the event of liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Corporation, entitled 1o preference over the Class A Shares and the Class B Shares and
any other shares of the Corporation ranking junior to the Series Second Preferred Shares. The Series
Second Preferred Shares may also be given such other preference over the Class A Shares and the Class
B Shares and any other junior shares as may be determined for any series authorized to be issued.

(ii) The Series Second Preferred Shares of each series rank equally with the Series Second Preferred Shares

of every other series with respect to priority in payment of dividends and in the distribution of assets in
the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation.

(iii} The holders of the Series Second Preferred Shares are not entitled as such {except as provided in any

series) to any voting rights nor to receive notice of or to attend shareholders’ meetings unless dividends
on the Series Second Preferred Shares of any series are in arrears to the extent of eight quarterly
dividends or four half-yearly dividends, as the case may be, whether or not consecutive. Until all arrears
of dividends have been paid, such holders will be entitled to receive notice of and to attend all
sharcholders® meetings at which directors are to be elected {other than separate meetings of holders of
another class of shares) and to one vote in respect of each Series Second Preferred Share held.

The following Series Second Preferred Shares are currently outstanding:

Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares

Stated Redemption 2006
Value Dates (1) Sharcs Amount
(dollars) (millions of dollars)

569

5.9% Series Q $25.00 Open 2,277,675

5.3% Series R £25.00 Open 2,146,730 53.7

6.6% Series S $25.00 Open 635,700 159

5.8% Series W (2) £25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0

6.0% Series X (3) $25.00 See below 6,000,000 150.0

Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares

4.35% Series O (4) $25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40.0

4.35% Senes T (4) $25.00 December 2, 2011 1,600,000 40.0

4.35% Series U (4) - $25.00 December 2, 2011 800,000 20.0

5.25% Series V (4) $25.00 October 3, 2007 4,400,000 110.0
636.5

Notes:

(1) The preferred shares, except for the Series W and X, are redeemable on the dates specified above at the option
of the Corporation at the stated value per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends. '

(2) The Series W preferred shares are redeemable commencing on March 1, 2008 at the stated value per share plus
a 4% premium for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by
1% in each succeeding 12 month period until March 1, 2012,

(3) The Series X preferred shares are redeemable commencing June 1, 2008 at the stated value per share plus a 4%
premium for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption premium declines by 1% in
each succeeding 12 month period until June 1, 2012.



{4) The dividends payable on the Series O, T, U and V préférred shares are fixed until the redemption dates
specified above, at which time a new dividend rate may be established by negotiations between the Corporation
and the owners of the shares.

Class A Shares and Class B Shares

The owners of the Class A shares and the Class B shares are entitled to share equally, on a share for share basis, in
all dividends declared by the Corporation on either of such classes of shares as well as the remaining property of the
Corporation upon dissolution. The owners of the Class B shares are entitled to vote and to exchange at any time
each share held for one Class A share.

If a take-over bid is made for the Class B shares, which would result in the offeror owning more than 50% of the
outstanding Class B shares and which would constitute a change in contro! of the Corporation, owners of Class A
shares are entitled, for the duration of the bid, to exchange their Class A shares for Class B.shares and to tender such
Class B shares pursuant to the terms of the take-over bid. Such right of exchange is conditional upon the completion
of the take-over bid giving rise to the right of exchange, and if the take-over bid is not completed, then the right of
exchange shall be deemed never to have existed. In addition, owners of Class A shares are entitled to exchange their
shares for Class.B shares of the Corporation if ATCO Ltd., the present controlling share owner of the Corporation,
ceases to own or centrol, directly or indirectly, more than 10,000,000 of the issued and outstanding Class B shares of
the Corporation. In either case, each Class A share is exchangeable for one Class B share subject to changes in the
exchange ratio for certain events such as a stock split or rights offering.

DIVIDENDS

Cash dividends declared during the past three years for all series and classes of preferred and common shares are as
follows:

Year Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
(3 per share)
Cash dividends declared per share:

Series Second Preferred Shares:
SEMES O it e e et e e 1.26 1.26 1.26
T T O TSRO OPRON 1.48 1.48 1.48
T =10 RSSO 1.33 1.33 1.33
SEHIES S e 1.65 1.65 1.65
TS 2 Tt OO RSP SOOPP 1.26 1.26 1.26
SIS L o bbb ettt e 1.26 “1.26 1.26
BBIIES W oviviireverriestieerrriostreeereriestbee st e aiers e samtasanstas e tasensesintesanaseeran 1.31 1.31 1.31
SEIES W o ticiiiicieitesierie et ettt sb et bbb e e b e bt e e 1.45 145 1.45
T (=L, SO 1.50 1.50 1.50

Class A and Class B Shares ..........coc v sins i ren s iessssressnens 1.40 1.10 1.06

It is the policy of the Corporation to pay dividends quarterly on its Class A and Class B shares. For the first quarter
of 2006, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class A and Class B shares increased by $0.01 to
$0.285 per share. The quarterly dividend payment for the second quarter remained unchanged at $0.285 per share.
For the third quarter of 2006, the quarterly dividend was increased by $0.005 to $0.29 per share. The Corporation
also approved a one-time special dividend of $0.25 per share. The Corporation has increased its annual common
share dividend each vear since its inception as a holding company in 1972. The matter of an increase in the
quarterly dividend is addressed by the Board of Directors in the first quarter of each year. For the first quarter of
2007, the quarterly dividend payment has been increased by $0.015 to $0.305 per share. The payment of any
dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the Corporation and
other factors.




CREDIT RATINGS

The current credit ratings on the Corporation’s and CU Inc.’s securities are as follows:

DBRS (1) S&P (2)

Canadian Utilities Limited:

DIEDENEUTES ....cceeeeee ettt b b bt st e e s be e e nantn A A-

Commercial PAPET.........coovirirminii e s R-1 (low) A-1 (mid)

Preferred Shares........o.oooiro e Pfd-2 (high) P-2 (high)
CU Inc.:

DEBENIIIES ..ottt et s A (high) A

CommErcial PAPET ... e e e s R-1 (low) A-1 (mid)

Preferred SHares.............c.o oo eses s s bbb Not rated Not rated
Notes:

(1) Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited ("DBRS ") maintains a stable trend on the above securities.
(2) Standard and Poor's ("S&P ) maintains a stable trend on the above securities.

Long Term Debt Credit Ratings

An A rating by DBRS is the third highest of ten categories. Long term debt rated A is of satisfactory credit quality.
Protection of interest and principal is substantial with a higher degree of strength than that of B rated entities. A isa
respectable rating. Entities in this category are still considered to be susceptible to adverse economic conditions and
have greater cyclical tendencies than higher-rated secunties, “High” and “low” grades may be used to indicate the
relative standing of a credit within a particular rating category.

An A rating by S&P is the third highest of eleven categories. Obligations rated A by S&P are somewhat more
susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher-
rated categories, however, the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligations is still strong,.
The additton of a plus or minus sign shows relative standing within the rating categories.

Commercial Paper Credit Ratings

An R-1 (low) rating by DBRS is the third highest of ten categories and is granted to short-term debt of satisfactory
credit quality. The overall strength and outlook for key liquidity, debt, and profitability ratios is more favourable
than with lower rating categories. Any qualifying negative factors that exist are considered manageable, and the
entity is normally of sufficient size to have some influence in its industry.

An A-1 {mid) rating by S&P is the second highest of eight categories in its Canadian commercial paper ratings scale
and is granted where the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is strong,

Preferred Share Credit Ratings

A Pfd-2 rating by DBRS is the second highest of six categories granted by DBRS for preferred shares and is granted
to companies presenting satisfactory credit quality where protection of dividends and principal is still substanual,
but earnings, the balance sheet and coverage ratios are not as strong as Pfd-1 rated companies. “High”, and *low”
grades may be used to indicate the relative standing of a credit within a particuiar rating category.

A P-2 rating by S&P is the second highest of eight categories S&P uses in its Canadian preferred share rating scale
and is granted where the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial commitments is considered adequate, but is more
subject to adverse economic conditions than higher rating categories. “High”, “mid” and “low" grades may be used
to indicate the relative standing of a credit within a particular rating category.
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Credit Ratings Generally

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or
withdrawal at any time by the rating organization.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set out betow is information with respect to the directors and officers of the Corporation.

Name,
Province or State and
Country of Residence

Position

Principal Occupation

Periods Served
as a Director of
the
Corporation

R.T. Booth (4)
Alberta, Canada

W.L. Britton, Q.C. (2)
Alberta, Canada
L.M. Charlton (3)

Alberta, Canada

D.T. Davis
Alberta, Canada

B.P. Drummond (2) (5)
Quebec, Canada

0.G. Edmondson
Alberta, Canada

B.K. French (3)(4)
Alberta, Canada

L.D. Hargrave
Alberta, Canada

L.A. Heathcott (5)
Alberta, Canada

E.M. Kiefer
Alberta, Canada

Director

Director & Vice
Chairman of the Board

Director

Vice President, Internal
Audit & Risk
Management

Director

Vice President, Business

‘Development Finance

- Director

Vice President, Project
Development

Director

Vice President, Human
Resources
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Partner, Bennett Jones LLP
(barristers and solicitors)

Vice Chairman of the Board,
Canadian Utilities Limited and
ATCO Lud. -

Corporate Director

Vice President, Internal Audit &
Risk Management, Canadian
Utilities Limited and ATCO
Ltd.

Corporate Director

Vice President, Business
Development Finance, Canadian
Utilities Limited and ATCO
Ltd.

President, Karusel Managetment
Lid. (property management and
management consultants)

Vice President, Project
Development, Canadian-
Utilities Limited and ATCO
Ltd.

President & Chief Executive
Officer, Spruce Meadows
{(international show jumping
venue)

Vice President, Human
Resources, Canadian Utilities
Limited and ATCO Ltd.

1998 to date

1980 to date

2006 to date

1997 to date

1981 to date

2000 to date



Periods Served

Name, as a Director of
Province or State and } the
Country of Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation

S.W. Kiefer
Alberta, Canada

C.S. McConnell
Alberta, Canada

H.M. Neldner

()5
Alberta, Canada

M.R.P. Rayfield (5)
Ontario, Canada

M.M, Shaw
Alberta, Canada

JW. Simpson (2) (3) (4)
California, U.S.A.

N.C. Southern
Alberta, Canada

R. D. Southern,
C.BE,CC. B.Sc,
LL.D. (6)

Alberta, Canada

P, Spruin
Alberta, Canada

R.H. Waithall

- Alberta, Canada

K.M. Watson
Alberta, Canada

S.R. Werth
Alberta, Canada

Managing Director,
Utilities & Chief
[nformation Officer

Treasurer

Director

Director

Managing Director,
Global Enterprises

Lead Director

Director, President &
Chief Executive Officer

Director & Chairman of
the Board

Corporate Secretary

Managing Director,
Power Generation

Senior Vice Prestdent &
Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President
& Chief Administration
Officer
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Managing Director, Utilities &
Chief Informaticn Officer,
Canadian Utlities Limited and
ATCO Lid.

Treasurer, Canadian Utilities
Limited and ATCO Ltd.

Corporate Director 1991 to date

Vice Chairman, Investment & 2004 to date
Corporate Banking, BMO

Capital Markets

Managing Director, Global
Enterprises, Canadian Utilities
Limited and ATCO Ltd.

Corporate Director 2004 to date

President & Chief Executive 1990 to date
Officer, Canadian Utilities

Limited and ATCO Ltd.

1977 (o 1979
1980 to date

Chaiﬁnan of the Board,
Canadian Utilities Limited and
ATCO Lid,

Corporate Secretary, Canadian
Utilities Limited and ATCO
Ltd.

Managing Director, Power
Generation, Canadian Utilities
Limited and ATCO Ltd.

Senior Vice President & Chief
Financial Officer, Canadian
Utilities Limited and ATCCO
Ltd.

Senior Vice President & Chief
Administration Officer,
Canadian Utilities Limited and
ATCO Ltd. ’



Periods Served

Name, as a Director of
Province or State and the
Country of Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation

C.W. Wilson (3) (4} Director Corporate Director 2000 to date
Colorado, U.S.A.
P.G. Wright Vice President, Finance Vice President, Finance &
Alberta, Canada & Controller Controller, Canadian Utilities
Limited and ATCO Lid.
Noies.

(1) Each director holds office uniil the close of the annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation or until their
successors are elected or appointed.

(2} Member of the Corporate Governance — Nomination, Compensation and Succession Committee,

{3) Member of the Audit Commiltee.

{4) Member of the Risk Review Committee.

{3) Member of the Pension Fund Committee.

{6) R.D. Southern was a director of Canadian Airlines Corporation when it filed for protection under the
Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act on March 24, 2000.

All of the directors and officers have been engaged for the last five vears in the indicated principal occupations, or in
other capacities with the companies or firms referred to, or with affiliates or predecessors thereof, with the exception
of Ms. Charlton who was Business Consultant, Investors’ Petroleum Consultants Lid. (oil and gas consulting and
management company) from 2005-2006, and prior thereto was Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, Investors’
Petroleum Consultants Litd, from 1984 to 2005; and Mr. J.W. Simpson who was Vice President, Middle East &
North Africa, Business Development, Chevron Texaco Corporation from 2003 to 2004, and prior thereto was
President, Chevron Canada Resources Lid. from 1999-2003.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

At December 31, 2006, the directors and officers of the Corporation, as a group, beneficially owned, directly or
indirectly (via corporate holdings or otherwise), or exercised control or direction over approximately 74.7% of the
outstanding Class B common shares of the Corporation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Audit Committee Charter
Canadian Utilities Limited Audit Committee Mandate
Purpose

The purpose of this mandate is to establish the terms of reference of the Audit Committee (the “Committee™) of the
Corporation. The Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Corporation. The
Committee is responsible for contributing to the effective stewardship of the Corporation by assisting the Board in
fulfilling its oversight of: )

¢ the integrity of the Corporation’s financial statements;

e the Corporation’s compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

¢ the independence, qualifications and appointment of the Corporation’s external auditor; and

e the performance of the Corporation’s internal audit function and external auditors.
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Composition

The Board shall elect annually from among its members an Audit Committee comprised of not less than 3 directors.
Each member of the Committee must be:
¢ adirector of the Corporation;
¢ independent (within the meaning of sections 1.4 and 1.5 of Multilateral Instrument 52-110 Audit
Commitrees); and
e financially literate (within the meaning of section 1.6 of Multitateral Instrument 52-110 Audit Committees).

In order to be considered to be an independent director for the purposes of membership on the Committee, a director
must have been determined by the Board to be independent in accordance with all applicable regulatory
requirements.

The Board will appoint one member of the Committee as Chairman. Any member of the Committee may be
removed or replaced at any time by the Board, and a member shali cease to be a member of the Committee upon
ceasing 1o be independent,

Meetings

The Committee shall meet at least four times per year and whenever deemed necessary by the Chairman of the
Committee or at the request of a Committee member or the Corporation’s external or internal auditors, The
Committee Chairman shall prepare and/or approve an agenda in advance of each meeting. Reasonable notification
of meetings, which may be held in person, by telephone or other communication device, shall be sent to the
members of the Committee, the external auditors and any additional attendees as determined by the Chairman. The
external auditor has the right 1o appear before and be heard at any meeting of the Committee. Upon the request of
the external auditor, the Chairman of the Committee shall convene a meeting of the Committee to consider any
matters which the auditor believes should be brought to the attention of the directors or shareholders of the
Corporation, Meetings will be scheduled to permit timely review of Committee materials. A majority of the
Committee will constitute a quorum. Minutes of each meeting will be prepared by the person designated by the
Committee to act as secretary and will be kept by the Corporate Secretarial Department.

Reporting

The Committee shall report to the Board of the Corporation on such matters and questions relating to the financial -
position of the Corporation as the Board may from time to time refer to the Committee. A summary of all meetings
will be provided to the Board by the Committee Chairman. Supporting schedules and information reviewed by the
Committee will.-be available for examination by. any director upon request. The external auditors and the Vice
President, Internal Audit & Risk Management shall report directly to the'Committee. The Committee is expected to
maintain free and open communication with the Corporation’s external auditors, internal auditors and management.
This communication shall include private sessions, at least annually, with each of these parties.

Responsibilities

The Committee relies on the expertise and knowledge of management, and the internal and external auditors in
carrying out its oversight responsibilities. Management of the Corporauon is responsible for determining that the
Corporation’s financial statements are complete, accurate and in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The external auditors are responsible for auditing the Corporation’s financial statements.

The Committee shall have the power to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within the Committee’s
scope of responsibilities. The Committee shall be empowered to retain mdependent counsel, accountants or other
outside advisors as it determines necessary to permit it to carry out its duties.



The Committee shall:

¢ Recommend to the Board:
+
(a) The external auditors to be nominated for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or
performing other audit, review or attestation services for the Corporation;
(b} The compensation of the external auditors; and
(c) The approval of the Corporation’s annual financial statements, AIF and MD&A.

+ Be directly responsible for overseeing the work of the external auditors engaged for the purpose of
preparing or issuing an audit report or performing other audit, review or attestation services for the
Corporation, including the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditors
regarding financial reporting.

s Pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided to the Corperation or its subsidiaries by the external
auditors of the Corporation or its subsidiaries. The Committee may delegate to one or more of its members
the authority to grant pre-approvals provided that any pre-approvals so granted are presented in writing to
the Committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. The Committee will ensure that relevant policies
and procedures are in place to manage this process and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements.

-« Review the Corporation’s annua! and interim ﬁ'nancia.l statements, AIF, MD&A and annual and interim
earnings press releases before this information is publicly disclosed.

*  Asdelegated by the Board, review and approve the interim financial statements, MD& A and earnings press
releases before this information is publicly disclosed.

e Be satisfied that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Corporation’s disclosure of financial
information extracted or derived from the Corporation’s financial statements, and periodically assess the
adequacy of such procedures. This would include an annual review of the Corporation’s Disclosure Policy.

»  Establish procedures for:
(a) the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Corporation regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls, auditing matters, fraud or thefi; and
(b) the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Corporation of concemns regarding

questionable accounting or auditing matters, fraud or theft.

» Ensure the Corporation has implemented appropriate systems of internal control over financial reporting
and that these systems are operating effectively;

*  Ensure the internal audit function has been effectively carried out and the internal auditors have adequate
TESources;

* Review and approve the Corporation’s hiring policies regarding partners, employees and former partners
and employees of the present and former external auditors of the Corporation;

¢ Review and reassess annually the adequacy of this mandate and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.

The members of the Committee, for the purpose of performing their duties, have the right to inspect all the books
and records of the Corporation and its subsidiary entities and to discuss such books and records in any manner
relating to the financial position of the Corporation and its subsidiary entities with the officers, employees and
external auditors of the Corporation and its subsidiary entities.

The Committee will inquire into any other matters referred to it by the Board.
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Composition of the Audit Committee

Thé following are members of the Corporation’s Audit Committee. All members are independent and ﬁnancial‘ly
literate:

L.M. Charlton
B.K. French
H.M. Neldner
J.W. Simpson
C.W. Wilson

Relevant Education and Experience

L.M. Charlton  Ms. Charlton has a Bachelor of Commerce degree. Ms. Charlton has held positions of increasing
financial responsibility ranging from Financial Analyst to Chief Financial Officer during her 22
year career at Investors’ Petroleumn Consultants Ltd. In April 2006, Ms. Charlton completed the
Institute of Corporate Directors “Financial Literacy for Directors and Executives Course™.

.B.K. French Mr. French has a Bachelor of Commerce with an Accounting and Finance Major and is a

Chartered Accountant. Mr, French was engaged in public practice for 25 years.

H.M. Neldner  Mr. Neldner has a Bachelor of Commerce (Finance). Mr. Neldner held various senior
management positions in accounting and finance including General Accountant, Comptroller,
Vice President Finance and President & CEO with Alberta Government Telephones and Telus .
Corporation.

LW.Simpson  Mr. Simpson graduated from an Executive Program at M.L.T’s Sloan Scheol of ‘Business.
During Mr. Simpson’s career at Chevron Corporation various financial positions reported to him.
In his capacity as General Manager the accounting department reported to him and as President
of Chevron Canada the Vice President Finance directly reported to Mr. Simpson. In addition,
Mr. Simpson was Chairman of the Internal Audit Committee of Chevron Canada.

C.W. Wilson Mr. Wilson has an understanding of the accounting principles of the Corporation. In addition,
Mr. Wilson previously supervised a CFO directly for a seven year period as President & CEO of
Shell Canada Ltd.

 Reliance on Certain Exemptions

The Corporation did not rely on any exemptions from the Audit Committee requirements of Canadian Securities
Legislation.

Audit Committee Oversight

Since January 1, 2006, all recommendations of the Audit Committee to nominate or compensate an external auditor
were adopted by the Board of Directors.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Corporation have adopted a policy for approval of external
auditor services, The policy prohibits the external auditor from providing specified services to the Corporation and
its subsidiaries.

The engagement of the external auditor for a range of services defined in the policy has been pre-approved by the
Audit Committee. If an engagement of the external auditor is contemplated for a particular service that is neither

30 CcLl



prohibited nor covered under the range of pre-approved services, such en‘gagement must be pre-approved. The
Audit Committee has delegated the authority to grant such pre-approval to the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Services provided by the external auditor are subject to an engagement letter. The policy mandates that the Audit
Committee receive regular reports of all new pre-approved engagements of the external auditor,

External Auditor Service Fees

The aggregate fees incurred by the Corporation and its subsidiaries for professional services provided by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for each of the past two years were as follows:

2006 2005

($Millions )
CAUdt (1) O OO OO O TSROSO DT IO 14 1.3
AUAIE REIALE (2] oot rirrssesrr e sete st st e e stssesbssastesb i brsssbassnesrbesaesrasinssssnsns 0.1 0.1
TAX {3 ittt bbbt et be bbbt A b et b ete s o1 e et e sabes e te et eate s e eentieeensens 0.3 0.3
TOLAL .ttt ettt ettt ettt e te e ee et ere et aaeameeme et et e te et e eat et e b e ren s eeeaeneres et ens 1.8 1.7

Notes:

(1) Audit fees include the aggregate professional fees paid to the external auditor for the audit of the annual
consolidated financial statements and other regulatory audits and filings.
(2)  Audit-related fees include the aggregate fees paid to the external auditor for services related to special
purpose audits and the audit services including consultations regarding financial reporting and accounting

standards.

(3) Tax fees include the aggregate fees paid to the external auditor for tax compliance, tax advice, tax planning
and advisory services relating to the preparation of corporate tax, capital tax and sales tax returns.

MARKETS FOR THE SECURITIES OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation's Class A shares, Class B shares and Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares, Series Q,
R, S, W and X are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange. The Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares Series

O, T, U and V are not listed.

The following table sets forth the high and low prices and the volume of shares ‘traded on the Toronto Stock

Exchange during 2006 for the Corporation’s listed shares.

Class A Shares Class B Shares

High$ Low$§ Volume High$ Low$ Volume
January........coeriinn, 44,10 40.10 941,548 43.84 40.15 45,020
February.......ccocovevine, 41.45 38.15 3,368,103 42.00 38.62 34,478
March....oooovienciiinninne 40.55 37.35 2,787,953 40.50 37.25 39,260
APTilcccininii s 139.65 36.40 1,621,588 39.50 36.80 31,161
May ..., 41.49 36.56 2,742,149 41.25 36.80 48,637
JUNE i, 41.55 35.15 2,731,228 40.99 35.72 16,662
July.oooeicee, 40.25 36.31 1,489,967 40.30 36.00 37,650
AUBUSL..cvereee e, 42,30  39.20 4,162,391 42.00 39.54 31,967
September..........cc... 4399 39.94 1,835,446 43.45 40.18 31,678
October .....cccoovvenennn. 4294 40.15 2,094,729 43.00 40.26 162,131
November ................... 46,37 40.06 4,701,756 45.93 40.51 68,212
December.......coviee 48,94 - 44.86 3,595,294 48.85 44 95 49,829
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| : " 'Cuinulative Redéemable Second Preferred Shares
| ) : ) Series-Q T ) - Series R ‘
’ " High$ Low$§ Volume " High$ ‘Low$ Volume
January............. B 25.89 25.18 8,278 2545 25.06 19,865
February ..o 2570 2520 10,100 2595 2515 8,275
March.....coocvriinen, e 2570 25.20 11,840 2570 25.20 10,315
April.ci e 25.75 25.32 5,608 25.40 25.13 14,035-
May ..o 25.65  25.03 8,840 2535  24.95 " 17,090
June.......oceeieieevernnnenn 25.66 2498 13,764 . 2594 25.05 16,760
Ul 26.50 25.00 21,592 . 25.48 25.15 " 2,300
' AUGUSL. .o e 2583 25.25 12,567 25.59 . 2520 . 2,560
September .................. 25.70 25.38 . 1,015 25.68 25.00 9,545
October .o, 26.40 25.40 " 10,921 25.60 25.15 - 10,710
November .......vvivevveens 2595 - 2530 208,825 25.60 25.21 207,225
December.......cc.cvennn 26.00 25.50 114,980 25.83 25.35 106,226
Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares ™
Series 8§ . Series W
High$ Low3$ Volume High§ Low$§ Volume
January ..o, 27.25 26.52 400 2740 © 26.72 46,374
February.......ccccvvenn 27.35. 26.00 1,020 "27.10 26.65 59,694
March...cocooiviiciininnns 27.35 27.35 T 2,090 27.24 - 26.63 76,273
, Aprtil..enen 29.50 2575, 1,920 27.67  26.43 45,042
- May ..o 27.80 25.65 1,000 27.15 26.55 55,758 ‘ *
JUNE oo, 27.40. 2570 1,400 2729 2670 107,353
July 25.60 2540 500 -27.09 26.61 41,624
AUgust.....cooevieirennenne 26.98 2598 400 27.00 26.26 22,275
September ... 26.50 25,78 700 27.38 2670 95,791
QOctober ..o, 26.85 26.85- 100 . 2729 .26.75 40,423
November ........coeeev..... 27.10 27.10 200 - 27:27 26.57 96,967
December.........coeuvennen. 26.00 25.10 400 2744 - 27.05 302,230

Cumulative Redeemable Second
Preferred Shares

Series X
High$ Low$ Volume
January.............. R 27.65 26.94 . 65,971
February......c.cccoceeneenee 27.40 26.75 214,855 B}
March ..o 27.36 26.86 41,336 , ' ' .
APTil.c.onceis 27.04  26.46 32,542
May ..o, 2724 2639 42,074
JUBE oo eerererenrsn s 27.00  26.55 51,748
JUY ) 2720 2670 56,803 .
AUBUSE ..o, 27,10 26.55 50,413
September ................... 27.11 © 26.70 128,840
October ....ooooovevveene. 27.25 26.89 80,230
! November ... 27.38  26.82 53,715
December......ooccvine, 27.50 2707 299,245

“TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The transfer agent and registrar for the Class A Shares, Class B Shares and' Cumulative Redeemable Second
Prefeired Shares, Series Q, R, S, W and X preferred shares is CIBC Mellon Trust Company at its principal offices in
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Calgary, Vancouver, Toronto- and Montreal The transfer agent and reglstrar -for the Perpctua] Cumulative Second
Preferred Shares Series O, T, U and V is the Corporation at its prinéipal office in Calgary. The trustee and transfer
agent for the debentures of the Corporatlon is CIBC Mellon Trust Company at its principal offices in Calgary and
Toronto.

_ EXPERTS
PricewaterhouseCoobers LLP has prepared the auditor’s report with respect to the Corporation’s annual financial
statements. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is mdependem in accordance with the auditor’s rules of professional
conduct in Canada.

v

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

At December 31 , 2006, the Corporation and its joint ventures had the following number of employees:

Number

LIHHEIES 1ovevviiiriitesesses e s e be b i bt teste s iae st ent et e i e bm bbb bbmssmesae s0e 04 bestesbandanbontessnsabesbessboLdsebtebsobbessain b it sana s the e s s 3,438
Global Enterprises : 1,619
" Power Generation 466
Other..ccocovveviiieeinns 95
SUD TOtL. 1ottt e tre e e et ent s tr e b st srs st e seasrta e taaeRa e e taeib et en bR e ke e SR v rrEeeE et er by et nbin e enntenberan 5618
Joint Ventures — Global Eméfprises R 570
Joint Ventures — Power Generation 186
SUD TOtAL .. ce et ettt e e e b b et s e 756
TOMlcr v verermerenee s reagersessess st st e 6,374

Approximately 3,540"employées are members of four émployee associations and eight unions and are covered by 21
collective agreements. ' Four of these agreements have expired and are under re-negotiation and the remaining 17
_agreements expire over the period September 30, 2007 to December 31, 2009.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

- Additional information, including directors’ and officers’ remuneration, principal holders of the Corporation’s
securities and securities authorized. for.issuance under equity compensation plans, is contained.in the Corporation’s
Management Proxy Circular dated March 2, 2006. Additional financial information is provided in the Corporation’s
comparative financial statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the financial year ended December
31, 2006.

. Information relaiing to ATCO Ltd. or CU Inc. may be obtained upon request from the Corporate Secretary of the
respective corporation at 1400 ATCO Centre, 909 — 11* Avenue S.W_, Calgary, Alberta TZR ING6 (telephone (403)
292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623). Corporate information is alsc available on the Corporation’s website:
www.canadian-utilities.com. Addmonal information relating to the Cerporation may be found on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com.
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Canadian Utilities Limited

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A"}

For The Year Ended December 31, 2006

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of Canadian Utilities
Limited (the “Corporation"} should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements for the three months ended December 31, 2006, and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. Additional information relating to the Corporation,
including the Corporation’s Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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The equity securities of the Corporation consist of Class A non-voting shares (“Class A shares”) and Class B
common shares ("Class B shares™).
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this MD&A constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
are often, but not always, identified by the use of words such as “anticipate”, “plan”, “estimate”, “expect”,
“may”, "will", “intend”, “should”, and similar expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those
anticipated in such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements are reasonable, but no assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to

be correct and such forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this MD&A contains forward-looking statements pertaining to contractual obligations, planned
capital expenditures, the impact of changes in government regulation and non-regulated generating capacity
subject to long term contracts. The Corporation’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward-looking statements as a result of regulatory decisions, competitive factors in the industries in
which the Corporation operates, prevailing economic conditions, and other factors, many of which are beyond
the contro! of the Corporation.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In this MD&A, reference is made to funds generated by operations, which is a measure that does not have a
standardized meaning under Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP"). Funds generated by
operations is calculated on the Corporation’s consolidated statement of cash flows from operating activities
before changes in non-cash working capital. In the Corporation’s opinion, funds generated by operations is a
significant performance indicator of the Corporation’s ability to generate cash flow to fund its capital
expenditures.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation’s management evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of its disclosure controls ‘and procedures ("Disclosure Controls™) as defined under rules adopted by
the Canadian Securities Administrators. This evaluation was performed under the supervision of, and with the
participation of, the Chief Executive Officer (*CEQ") and the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO").

Disclosure Controls are procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in documents
filed with securities regulatory authorities is recorded, processed, summarized and reported on a timely basis,
and is accumulated and communicated to the Corperation’s management, including the CEQ and the CFO, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Corporation’s -management, including the CEO and the CFQ, does not expect that the Corporation’s
Disclosure Controls will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. The inherent limitations in all control systems
are such that they can provide cnly reasonable, not absolute, assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud or error, if any, within the Corporation have been detected.

Based on the evaluation of Disclosure Controls, the CEO and the CFO have concluded that, subject to the
inherent limitations noted above, the Corporation’s Disclosure Controls are effective in providing reascnable
assurance that material information relating to the Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries is made known
to the Corporation’s management. '
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As of December 31, 2006, management of the Corporation is responsible for evaluating the design of internal
control over financial reporting ("Interna! Control Over Financial Reporting”), as defined under rules adopted by
the Canadian Securities Administrators. This evaluation was performed under the supervision of, and with the
participation of, the CEO and the CFC. The Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financiai reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Internal control over financial reporting, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations. Therefore,
internal contral over financial reporting can provide only reasonable . assurance with respect to financial
- statement preparation and may not prevent or detect all misstatements.

There were no changes in the Corporation’s internal controls over financial reporting that have occurred during
the three months ended December 31, 2006, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Corporation’s interna! control over financial reporting.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from three Business' Groups: Utilities, Power
Generation and Global Enterprises. For the purposes of financial disclosure, corporate transactions are
" accounted for as Corporate and Other (refer to Note 23 to the consclidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006). Transactions between Business Groups are eliminated in all reporting of the
Corporation’s consolidated financial information.

In 2006, ASHCOR Technologies was transferred. from the Global Enterprises Business Group to the Power
Generation Business Group. 2005 segmented figures have been reclassified to conform to the current basis of
segmentation. On August 1, 2006, the Corporation sold its 50% equity interest in Genics Inc., which was part
of the Global Enterprises Business Group.

STRATEGIC ALTERNATIVES FOR MIDSTREAM ASSETS

On November 24, 2006, the Corporation announced that its Board of Directors had completed its review of the
strategic alternatives available for its gas gathering and processing and natural gas liquids midstream business
and reached a decision to retain the business under the Corporation’s current structure. The strategic review,
commenced in May 2006, was conducted by the Board of Directors in conjunction with the Corporation's
management and legal and financial advisors. The review involved the evaluation of a number of alternatives,
including reorganization into a business trust or newly-created company or a sale to a third party.

TXU EUROPE SETTLEMENT

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by an English- Court against TXU Europe Energy
Trading Limited ("TXU Europe™) for breach of its contract to purchase 27.5% of the power produced by the
1,000 megawatt Barking generating plant, in which the Corporation owns a 25.5% equity interest. In 2005, the
Corporation received $83.1 million as its share of the partial settlement of the claim for damages related to TXU
Europe’s breach of this contract. An additional payment of $16.6 million was received on January 19, 2006 and
a final installment of approximately $1.6 million was received on July 20, 2006. The settlement is expected to
generate earnings after income taxes of approximately $69 million, based on foreign currency exchange rates
in effect on March 30, 2005, which will be recognized over the remaining term of the TXU Europe contract from
October 1, 2004, to September 30, 2010, at approximately $11 million per year. These earnings will be
dependent upon the foreign currency exchange rates in effect at the time the earnings are recognized. For a
description of the settlement, refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2006.
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H.R. MILNER INCOME TAX REASSESSMENT

In 2006, the Canada Revenue Agency ("CRA") issued a reassessment for Alberta Power (2000)'s 2001 taxation
year. The CRA’s reassessment treats the proceeds. received from the sale of the H.R. Milner generating plant to
the Alberta Balancing Pool as income rather than as a sale of an asset. The Corporation has made submissions
to the CRA opposing the CRA's position. The impact of the reassessment is a $12.4 million increase in interest
and income tax expense, a $12.4 million decrease in earnings and a $28.8 million payment associated with the
tax and interest assessed. It is expected that $16.4 million of this cash payment will be recovered by reducing
income taxes payable through higher capital cost allowance claims. Due to the uncertainty as to whether the
reassessment will ultimately be resolved in the Corporation’s favour, the Corporation reduced earnings by $12.4
million in 2006. ‘

RECENT CHANGES IN INCOME TAXES AND RATES

Federal and provincial governments have recently announced a number of changes to income taxes and rates.
As these changes are considered to have been substantively enacted, the Corporation made an adjustment to
income taxes amounting to $11.8 million in the second quarter of 2006, most of which relates to future income
taxes. The adjustment increased 2006 earnings by $11.8 million, of which $1.9 million relates to the Utilities
Business Group, $7.2 million to the Power Generation Business Group, $2.3 million to the Global Enterprises
Business Group and $0.4 million to Corporate and Cther.

SELECTED ANNUAL AND QUARTERLY INFORMATION

FE Fortheanee Months Ended :-} 5 Year
R SRR L es Ended

($ Millions except per share data) oh - IUNB30. L Sep 30 Dec. 31
i § (unaumted)
2006 (1) (2)
REVENUES [3) {4).cveiirerriiciien it rernr s e snresenres : 2,430.4
Earnings attributable to Class A and
Class B shares (4} 323.9
Earnings per Class A and Class B share 2.57
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share ......... : 2.56
2005 (1) (2) . v,
RevENUES (3) (4) et s rvene e e o 2,515.8
Earnings attributable to Class A and .f ;~.'-“-' e B e R RSN
Class B SAres (4).c.oveeirerrmriesinrsinseseemserenieernenrnnns 150 0,800 75, 0.0 46 89: 265.6
Eamnings per Class A and Class B share ; ; : ' -0 2.09
Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share 2.08
2004 (1) (2)
Revenues (3) (4)...ccivieinverrneermrerrainrrsrisssrirsrisss s 3,011.4
Earnings attributable to Class A and e
Class B Shares (5)....cvveviiiiniecir s e sscnrnensnens SN 309.0
Earnings per Class A and Class B share (5) ............... : 2.44
2.43

Diluted earnings per Class A and Class B share (5)....57F

Notes: :

(1} There were no discontinued operalions or extraordinary items during these periods.

{2) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the timing of rate decisions,
revenues and earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual basis.

{3) Reduced recoverfes of natural gas costs in revenues in 2006 and 2005 as ATCO Gas ceased selling natural gas from its natural gas
storage fadiities on March 31, 2005, in accordance with Alberta Energy and Utilities Board directives.

{4) Prior to the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses on May 4, 2004, the cost of natural gas and electriaity purchased for
ATCO Gas’and ATCO Electric’s customers was included in revenues. As ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric no longer purchase natural gas
and electricity for their customers, revenues since May 4, 2004, have decreased accordingly.

(5} Includes earnings of $55.1 rnilfion, earnings per share of $0.44 and diluted earnings per share of $0. 43 on the Transfer of the Retail
Energy Supply Businesses for the year ended December 31, 2004,

(6) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Cbnadfan generally
accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency fs the Canadian doffar,
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SELECTED ANNUAL AND QUARTERLY INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004

($ Millions except per share data)

Cash dividends dectared per share:
Series Second Preferred Shares;

1= O I ) TR PSR RPTPR O 1.26 1.26 1.26
SBHES Q it i e R e s taerr 1.48 1.48 1.48
SEMES R 1eeiviivieereeivieirerirvevnreersrnstes tvinsnres sessereressasastessesentesesiniensnsssacenressns 1.33 1.33 1.33
GBS S Loiiriiriieicierrcrrre it it s s s e e re s e h e g e e renaaee s 1.65 1.65 1.65
SEMES T {2) ceuierictreecrrieesrieeirieesairnnsartnesrteesriassransassnesssrracsrasssnanserrnsesonaess 1.26 1.26 1.26
SEMES U (2}.eeuiririeriiimsi st sissseassetessetsbesa b sersssesesensmaes sobessrvessnsssnenssenans 1.26 1.26 1.26
SEMES V it s inres st e sa s ia s s r s s s s s nrn e re 131 1.31 1.31
SEHES W .. ittt st ies s r e s e e e s ee e s s aes s eer e et e r s en s s e raearraens 1.45 1.45 1.45
SEIES X civinrrnerneerrerincerriensmrarienrrerninesssssssrsrnrrarsssersiesinsinrnarnenneet beeenriieiin 1.50 1.50 1.50
Class A and Class B ShareS.....ccccccivi e ieiinnnrmreerrisssssssssrsnrnarmesseessesesssssnsssssnsees 1.40 1.10 1.06
Lo LT PP 6,993.5 6,817.8 6,617.5
Long term debt.. ... e eens 24115 2,231.0 2,171.0
Non-recourse long term debt ... s 626.7 673.8 760.9
Equity preferred shares........cccoiiiimcnn s 636.5 636.5 636.5
Class A and Class B share OwWners' 8qQUILY ........ccocreriierinnicmnnceinoniensmnne, 2,324.7 2,223.5 2,117.7
Notes:

(1) The above data has been extracted from the financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles and the reporting currency is the Canadian dolfar.
(2) The dividend was reset to $1.09 (4.35%) for the period between December 2, 2006, and December 2, 2011,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal factors that caused variations in revenues over the eight most recently completed quarters were:

reduced recoveries of natural gas costs in revenues in 2006 as ATCO Gas ceased selling natural gas
from its natural gas storage facilities on March 31, 2005, in accordance with Alberta Energy and Utilities
Board ("AEUB™) directives,

fluctuations in temperatures (refer to the Utilities section);

timing of rate decisions (refer to the Utilities and Regulatory Matters sections);

availability of generating plan'rs in ATCO Power and Alberta Power (2000) (refer to the Power
Generation section);

fluctuations in electricity and natura! gas prices (refer to the Power Generation section); and

changes in market conditions in natural gas liquids and storage operations (refer to the Global
Enterprises section).

The principal factors that caused variations in earnings over the eight most recently completed quarters were;

fluctuations in temperatures (refer to the Utilities section);

timing of rate decisions {refer to the Utilities and Regulatory Matters sections);

fluctuations in electricity prices and related spark spreads in Alberta and the United Kingdom ("U.K.")
(refer to the Power Generation section);

the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section);

H.R. Milner income tax reassessment (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section);
availability of generating plants in ATCO Power and Alberta Power (2000) (refer to the Power
Generation section);

changes in market conditions in natural gas liquids and storage operatlons (refer to the Global
Enterprises section);

recent changes in income taxes -and rates (refer to Recent Changes in Income Taxes and Rates
section); and

changes-in share appreciation rlghts expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A non-
voting share and ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting Share prices (refer to Corporate and Other section).
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Consolidated Qperations

!Revenues ‘for’ the three months ended '.'December 31 2006 decreased by $9 2 mrllron to $671 1 mz!hon 1
\prlmarlly due to R - FREe

,,"._ A ' Iower Volumes ;
g;?' _Mldstream and,c

.10 -outa .

pannea;ouk

aturat gas fuel purchases recovered on anno margrn
'-\a-

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by $85.4 million to $2,430.4 million, primarily
due to:
= reduced recoveries of natural gas costs in revenues in 2006 as ATCO Gas ceased. selling natural gas
from its natural gas storage facilities on March 31, 2005, in accerdance with Alberta Energy and Utilities
Board ("AEUB") directives;
¢ lower recovery of natural gas costs in revenues due to customers supplying shrinkage gas in ethane
extraction operations in ATCO Midstream;
» lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO
Midstream;
» lower business activity in ATCO Frontec; and
s impact of lower UK. and Australia exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadian dollars in
ATCO Power.
This decrease was partially offset by:
« improved merchant performance, higher natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a “no-margin” basis,
and higher availability (due to a planned outage in 2005) in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations;
« higher storage revenues due to higher capacrty leased, and the tlmmg and demand of storage capacity
sold, by ATCO Midstream; and
¢ higher customer rates for ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section). The
impact of the ATCO Electric GTA Decision on 2006 was positive as ATCO Electric had lower customer
rates during 2005.

‘ Earnings. attnbutable to Class. A and: Class B: shares for:the three ‘months. ended December 31, 20061
mcreased by $10 9 m||hon ($0 10 per: share) to $100 0 mllhon ($0 80 per share), prlmarrly du€ to: ", o : %
hrgher earnmgs in ATCO Power s AIberta gen atlng plants due\to hrgherrspark spreads realrzed on sales‘

Earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased
by $58.3 million ($0.48 per share) to $323.9 million ($2.57 per share), primarily due to:
» . higher earnings in ATCO Power's Alberta generating plants due to higher spark spreads realized on
sales of electricity in the Alberta market;
« higher margins received for natural gas liquids, higher storage earnings due to higher capacity leased,
and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold by ATCO Midstream; and
» $11.8 million adjustment in the second quarter of 2006 to reflect recent tax changes (refer to Recent
Changes in Income Taxes and Rates section).
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~ This increase was partially offset by:

e H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section); and
« a 2005 AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in future income
- taxes recorded in ATCO Electrlc (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Eléctric section).

Return on common equity was 14.3% in 2006.

e

iOperatlng expenses (con5|st|ng of natural
if - .

. .1{ o e
. ml&.}:s..&.c‘—."mf_

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31 2006, decreased by $163 2 m|II|on to $1 390.7
million, primarily due to:
» reduced natural gas supply costs in 2006 as ATCO Gas ceaséd selling natural gas from its natural gas
storage facilities on March 31, 2005, in accordance with AEUB directives; and
+ lower volumes of natural gas purchased for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream,

it =

&Deprecratlon and amortlzatlon expenses “for-the:three: ?months sended ; Decembe‘ 31 J2006

e

'ncreased byfI

Pl

0.4¢ \
I additi ﬁsﬁiﬁ?ZfJGGiéﬂC!;ZQQi&._

Deprecnatlon and amortization expenses for the year ended: December 31, 2006, increased by $37.0
million to $348.5 million, primarily due to:
s capital addltlons in 2006 and 2005,

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $12.9 million to $222.9 million,
primarily due to: '

+ " H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment (refer to H.R. M|Iner Income Tax Reassessment section); and

» * interest on new financings issued in 2006 and 2005 to fund. capltal expenditures in Utilities operations.
"This increase was partially offset by: .

* repayment of non-recourse fi nancmgs in 2006 and 2005.

" Interest and other incorne for- the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $21.9 million to $58.5

million, primarily due to:
» (algary Stores Block Decrsuon (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section); and
s higher short term interest rates on larger cash balances.

Income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by $8 5 million to $167.1 million, prlmarrly
due to:
» adjustment to reflect recent tax changes (refer to Recent Changes in Income Taxes and Rates section).
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+ higher earnings; and
H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).

Segmented Intormation

Segmented revenues for the three months and the yéar ended December 31, 2006, were as follows:

: For, the Three'Months For the Year Ended
*Ended December 31 4 December 31

(% Millions) l.-.‘ 2006 D= 200587 2 2006 2005

po ’,(unaudlted) En

UBIIEES (1) 1verrererierrsiesrersssersssssemssssensnssssesssssssssesssssssss sesesansesssvenses P 1,110.8 1,195.9
Power Generation {2).... 3 799.5 770.7
Global Enterprises (2).... ..-173.9:. 667.2 679.0
Corporate and OthET .......ccceeeirirv e e e e e AP ¥ | 12.7 12.4
Intersegment eliMiNAtIONS . o..icveieeiieiceisiriseeiererieessrsesreesseessessns o (159.8) {142.2)
TOMBY 11ttt cestesenesscaenssenssassabensesssssessnn bt sesessastetstsssionenseses o 2,430.4 2,515.8
Notes:

(1} Reduced recoveries of natural gas costs in revenves in 2006 as ATCO Gas ceased selfing natural gas from its natural gas storage
facilities on March 31, 2005, in accordance with AEU/SB directives.
(2} In 2006, ASHCOR Technologies was transferred from the Global Enterprises Business Group to the Power Generation Business Group.
- 2005 segmented figures have been reclassified to conform to the current basis of segmentation.

Segmented earnings attributable to Class A and Class B shares for the three months and the year ended
December 31, 2006, were as follows: :

K For the Three: Months For the Year

- Ended Decémber 31° Ended December 31
{$ Millions) E‘— 4 2006 Fi 572005 "’-; 2006 2005
UBIHEES .. .ooooveee e cenessres s et ssessss e smsesssess s snesseeines 43 23257 1212 106.0
Power Generation (1).......ccccovveenn, T 36.9; 2367, 119.2 105.2
Global ENterpriSes (1)....ueeeviiiniiervisireissisraniissrnssssnsinnsessisssisssnssssisens ©27.6 101.0 78.8
COMPOTate AN ONET .....oviiiiiiieeeo it itereeee e enseeeeererereesamsesaerereseans g ‘; : 5) ¢ (11.7) {(23.5)
Intersegment eliminations i ~ {5.8) {0.9)
Total ioivievieviiirrinee i s e terir s it b et retrrgie s raar et hbesaaaeanienas L L8910, 323.9 265.6

Note: .
(1) In 2008, ASHCOR Technologies was transferred from the Global Enterprises Business Group to the Power Generation Busingss Group.
2005 segmented figures have been reclassified to conform to the current basis of segmentation.

Utilities

F i Revenues. from the: Utilities; Busmess Group | for(the three months ended - December 31 2006 -increased’ b‘,rJ

o
z

This decrease was partially offset by:
{$9 2 m|II|on to'_$314 7 rhillion; pnmarllyﬁdue to; Y
I

LS customer growth in ATCO Gas
This intredse ‘was partially offset by:" « EREETA B s T T
. h;f. *:; -lower, franchlse fees collected, by ATCO Gas on behalf of, cntles_and mummpahtles_- s e
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e ey T

,Temperatures in, ATCO Gas for the three rnonths'ended December 3172006, weref35’2°_/u co!der than normal
| Tcompared 1o 14 1%-warmer than normal for the correspondlng perlod in 2005 DT I Y et Tt SHANAEY

" Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by $85 1 million to $1, 110.8 million, primarily
. due to: -

» reduced recoveries of natural gas costs in revenues in 2006 as ATCO Gas ceased selling natural gas
f from its natural gas storage facilities on March 31, 2005, in accordance with AEUB directives; and

« lower income taxes recovered from ATCO Electric’s customers on a flow through basis, reflecting lower
.income tax rates in-2006.

This decrease was partially offset by:

» higher customer rates for ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section). The
impact of the ATCO Electric GTA Decision on 2006 was positive as ATCO Electric had lower customer
rates during 2005; and

+ customer growth in ATCO Gas.

Temperatures in ATCO Gas in 2006 were 5.5% warmer than normal, compared to 7.8% warmer than normal in
2005.

o

Earmngs for“jthe three months ended ;December. increased:by ‘112 million. t $43 7 mnlhon]
pnmarlly duet Sy R et
; ooy, coldert mperatures in ATCO Gas

Thrs mcrease was partlally offset by ,;-'- R

1; .. lower sales “per-customer, in ATCO Gas._..

‘—»—-—4

3

31,7206,

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $15.2 million to $121.2 million , primarily due
to:
+ customer growth in ATCO Gas;
+ Calgary Stores Block Decision and Red Deer Operating Centre Decision (refer to Regulatory Matters —
ATCO Gas section); and :
+ colder temperatures in ATCO Gas.
This increase was partially offset by:
* a 2005 AEUB decision adjusting the 2001 and 2002 revenue requirements for changes in future income
taxes recorded in ATCO Electric (refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Electric section); and
» lower sales per customer in ATCO Gas.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by $115.5 miliion to $601.4 million,
primarily due to:
» ' reduced natural gas supply costs in 2006 as ATCO Gas ceased selling natural gas from its natural gas
storage facilities on March 31, 2005, in accordance with AEUB directives. ‘

Power Generation

_Revenues from the. Power Generatron Business- Group for . the three months ended December 31 2006"
“lncreased by $15 7, m1lhon to’ $226 7 m|II|on pr|mar|ly due fors o
; ‘wf-hlgher avallabllity (due to. a~planned outagealn 2005)-”

r#t

e natural gas. fuel’ purchases recovered on: a “no margm" basns |n ATCO Power s

T 4_,.»

mproved merchant‘-performance, and hlgher*
K operatsons S

r;ThIS mcrease was partlally offset by: o _ﬂ e '*f BTaR: -. s

A AL
L= LImE

g "eneratmg pfants and a declme |n the return on common eqmty rate (2006 —‘8 75%”2005r =, 9 49%)
Fo s Clthat.is based. on Iong térm Government of ‘Canada’ ‘bond. ylelds plus ;¢ 4, 5%.. % o RSP IRS A I

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006, mcreased by $28.8 million to $799.5 miillion, primarily due
to:
« improved merchant performance, higher natural gas fuei purchases recovered on a "no-margin” basis,
and higher availability (due to a planned outage in 2005) in ATCO Power’s U.K. operations; and
o higher revenues in ATCO Power’s Alberta generating plants due to higher Alberta Power Pool prices.

9 | 2006 CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED




This increase was partially offset by:
» impact of lower U.K. and Australia exchange rates on conversion of revenues to Canadlan dollars in
ATCO Power; and
» lower PPA tariffs due to declining rate bases at Alberta Power (2000)'s generating plants and a decline
in the return on common equity rate (2006 - 8.75%, 2005 - 9.49%) that is based on long term
Government of Canada bond yields plus 4.5%.

~ o e

LEarmngs 5 for the three 'months ended December 31’ 2006f|ncreased by.$0.2 mllllon to $36 9 m|II|on pnmanly
{due:to:. o na 1 3 s

. hlgherlearmngs in: ATCO Power 5. Alberta generatlng pIants-due to'hlgher spark_spreads reallzed on sales
& of eIectncrty i ‘the' Alberta: market and Doty Von oLy LR -
. improved merchant performance and hlgher avallabrllty (due to a planned utage m 2005) m ATCO

B PowersU K..operations.. ¢ - :

Th1s mcrease was parttally offset. by REIRIA holt
" hlgher maintenance. experises due to.- . '_

-generating piant and

,

Lm_dg_;,-, defects in; ATCO Power’s U, |< operatlonsx e *";z

}Alberta -Power 'Pool. electnuty prICES for the three; months .ended December 317:2006, . averaged $116. 81-per

megawatt hour compared to. average prlces off$117 07 ‘per? megawatt hour for the correspondmg penod»m:
t2005 Natural gas pnces for. the ‘three; months ended December,\31 *2006 averaged $6 55 per, glgajoule
compared to averagerpnces of. $10 77~«per glga]oule for.“the correspondlng penod in-2005.: The consequence ofJ
'these changesvln electrlcm/ andrnatural gas prices: was an ‘average. spark spread of .$67. 66 per megawatt hour
“for the three. months ended December 31 2006 compared to’ $36 31‘pe ‘megawatt hour for the correspondlng
rperlod in2005:7 _ vaimde o me R e T R R

NSO, S, 4 ..-*.‘— .m_.,.<7_n_‘-.\_.A I U B L - o

Spark spread is related to the difference between Alberta Power Pool electricity prices and the marginal cost of
producing electricity from natural gas. These spark spreads are based on an approximate industry heat rate of
7.5 gigajoules per megawatt hour.

Changes in spark spread affect the results of approximately 406 megawatts of plant capacity owned in Alberta
by ATCO Power and Alberta Power (2000) out of a total Alberta owned capacity of approximately 1,709
megawalts and a world wide owned capacity of approximately 2,474 megawatts.

On January 1, 2006, the Alberta Balancing Pool announced the sale of its interest in the PPA for Alberta Power
(2000)'s Sheerness generating plant to TransCanada Energy Ltd. On May 8, 2006, EPCOR Utilities Inc.
announced the sale of its interest in the PPA for Alberta Power (2000)s Battle River generating plant to ENMAX
Corporation. These sales are not expected to have a material impact on the Corporation’s operations or
earnings.

Alberta Power (2000) continued to operate the Rainbow generating plant during 2006 and the electricity
generated was sold to the Alberta Power Pool. Alberta Power (2000) had one year after the expiry of the PPA
for the Rainbow generating plant (December 31, 2005) to determine whether to decommission the plant in
‘order to fully recover plant decommissioning costs or to continue to operate the plant. The Alberta Electric
System Operator ("AESQ") and Alberta Power (2000) are currently negotiating a contract that, if executed, will
result in Alberta Power (2000) continuing to operate the plant and be responsible for future decommissioning
costs. Alberta Power (2000) has filed an application with the AEUB to decommission the plant and thereby
preserve Alberta Power (2000)'s rights to fully recover plant decommissioning costs in the event negotiations
with the AESO are unsuccessful.

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $14.0 million to $119.2 million, primarily due
to:
+ higher earnings in ATCO Power's Alberta generating plants due to higher spark spreads realized on
sales of electricity in the Alberta market; :
« improved merchant performance and higher availability {(due to a planned outage in 2005) in ATCO
Power’s U.K. operations; and
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+ $7.2 million adjustment in the second quarter of 2006 for ATCO Power to reflect recent tax changes
(refer to Recent Changes in Income Taxes and Rates sectlon)
This increase was partially offset by:
» H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section); and
» lower PPA tariffs due to dedlining rate bases at Alberta Power (2000)'s generating plants and a decline
in the return on common equity rate (2006 — 8.75%, 2005 — 9.49%) that is based on.long term
Government of Canada bond yields plus 4.5%.

Alberta Power Pooal electricity prices in 2006, averaged $80.79 per megawatt hour, compared to average prices
of $70.36 per megawatt hour in 2005. Natural gas prices in 2006, averaged $6.17 per gigajoule, compared to
average prices of $8.27 per gigajoule in 2005. The consequence of these changes in electricity and natural gas
prices was an average spark spread of $34.52 per megawatt hour in 2006 compared to $8.32 per megawatt
hour in 2005.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $10.9 million to $431.3 million,
primarily due to:
o higher fuel costs due to the expiry in December 2005 of the PPA for Alberta Power (2000)'s Rainbow
generating plant. Fuel costs were the responsibility of the PPA counterparty.

At December 31, 2006, all of ATCO Power's non-regulated independent generating plants were in service.

rDunng the three months ended December 31 "2006 Alberta Power (2000) deferred avarlabnhty mcentlve'
"account decreased by $41 0:million Lto $39 6. mllllon : ',The decrease was due to avallablhty penaltles patdr
assomated W|th the"' Ianned outage |n 2006? for~ Alberta';Pow r;~,(200 Battie Rlvertgeneratmg plant’ whnch{
'occurred durlng 3 erlod of hrg Alberta Power«PooI electna prlces as _eII'aS!normaI amortlzatlon o Durlng the
three monthsﬂ}ended Decemb ','31 2006 the arnortlzatlon of - deferred avallablllty sncentlves, recorded |nt
revenues 'was: unchanged at $2 7. million as; compared to;the ‘same.period’in, 2005 gt e et R ..d€

f A,

During the year ended December 31, 2006, Alberta Power (2000)'s deferred availability incentive account
decreased by $20.1 million to $39.6 million. The decrease was due to additional availability penalties paid
associated with the planned outage in the fourth quarter of 2006 for Alberta Power (2000)’s Battle River
generating plant which occurred during a period of high Alberta Power Pool electricity prices as well as normal
amortization. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the amortization of deferred availability incentives,
recorded in revenues, increased by $1.7 million to $10.6 million as compared to 2005.

Global Enterprises

ATy

Revenues' from the GloBal Enterpnses Busnness ‘Groups for- the:three rnonths ended December 31 2006 i

decreased by $26. 0 mllllon to $173 9. mllllon pnmaniy due to:-. . ig e s e e ‘
wrelt Iowerirecovery of: natural gas costs in- revenues due to; customers-supplylng ishrlnkage gas |n ethane*

) _extraction” operatlons in ATCO Mldstream and 3 G

Iower volumes of. natural  gas_purchased. and resold for‘natural:gas |IC|UIdS extractlon in, ATCO Mldstream i

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by $11.8 million to $667. 2 million, primarily
due to:
» lower recovery of natural gas costs in revenues due to customers supplying shrinkage gas in ethane
extraction operations in ATCO Midstream;
* lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extractlon in ATCO
Midstream; and
» lower business activity in ATCO Frontec.
This decrease was partially offset by:
¢ higher storage revenues due to higher capacity leased, and the tlmrng and demand of storage capacity
sold, by ATCO Midstream; and
» increased sales of natural gas to affiliates by ATCO Midstream.

"Earnings for the three:months ended:December 31, 2006;; were Substantially Unchanged. - <. 5. &t |
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Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $22.2 million to $101.0 miltion, prlmarlly due
to:
» higher. margins received for natural gas liquids, higher storage ‘earnings due to higher capacrty leased,
and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold by ATCO Midstream.

- Qperating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by $42.6 million to $490.5 million,

primarily due to:
"« lower volumes of natural gas purchased for natural gas Ilqurds extraction in ATCO Midstream;
« lower natural gas prices for shrinkage gas used in natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream;
and
e lower business activity in ATCO Frontec.

On January 30, 2007, ATCO Frontec announced it had been awarded a contract with the United Nations to
provide camp support and food services to the United Nations Mission in Kosovo.

Corporate and Other

’tiiarmngs from the. Corporate and Other: segment for the three months ‘ended December 31,:

22006 mcreasedl

by $1 0 ‘million‘to . $(6. 53, million; prrmarlly due, to 3 i A S R s
E; hrgherﬁshort term'interest’ rates on; Iarger cash balances e ) i

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased by $11.8 million to $(11.7) million, primarily due

to:
o decreased share appreciation rights expense due to changes in Canadian Utilities Limited Class A share
and ATCO Ltd. Class I Non-Voting Share prices since December 31, 2005; and
» higher short term interest rates on larger cash balances.
REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operaticns are conducted by wholly owned subsidiaries of Canadian Utilities" wholly owned
subsidiary, CU Inc.:
» ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries Northtand Utilities (NWT), Northland Utifities (Yellowknlfe) and Yukon
Electrical; -
+ the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd.; and
s the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000).

Regulated operations in Alberta (except for the generatrng plants of Alberta Power {2000)) are subject to a
generic cost of capital regime:
« in July 2004, the AEUB issued the generic cost of capital decision which establlshed among other
things:
o a standardized approach for each utility company regulated by the AEUB for determining the rate
of return on common equity;
* rate of return adjusted annually by 75% of the change in long term Government of Canada
bond yield as forecast; and
= adjustment mechanism similar to the method the National Energy Board uses in determining its
formula based rate of return;
o the capital structure for each utility regulated by the AEUB.
in November 2005, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 8.93% for 2006;
in January 2006, the AEUB clarified that the generic return on equity determined on an annual basis in
accordance with the generic cost of capital decision should apply to each year of the test peried in the
companies’ applications. If no rate applications are filed for a particular year, then there will be no
adjustment to the common equity rate of return for that year; and
« in November 2006, the AEUB announced a generic return on common equity of 8.51% for 2007,
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In June 2005, as part of their rate applications, ATCO Electric and ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the AEUB that
addressed certain common matters. ATCO Pipelines was also a party to this filing as the concerns were
common to all three utilities: :
« this filing included evidence regarding:

o the appropriate ratemaking approach in the determination of utility revenue requirements;,

o treatment of pension costs, executive compensation and head office rent expense; and

o the continued use of preferred shares as a form of financing for the three utilities;

AEUB heard this filing in May 2006; and

on October 11, 2006, the AEUB issued a decision (the "Common Matters Decision”) which resulted in

no significant impact on earnings. Among other things, the decision upheld ATCO's treatment of

pension costs and approved the continued use of preferred shares. In addition, the decision approved

minimal changes to head office rent expense and executive compensation.

ATCO Electric,

In March 2006, the AEUB issued a decision on ATCO Electric’s 2005 and 2006 General Tariff Application ("ATCO
Electric GTA Decision"):

+ which established, among other things, the amount of revenue to be collected in 2005 and 2006 from
customers for transmission and distribution services, and- confirmed the interim refundable rates
approved'by the AEUB in July 2005 (distribution services) and September 2005 (transmission services);
ATCO Electric’s 2005 earnings negatively impacted by $1.3 million, recorded in first quarter of 2006;
ATCO Electric's 2006 earnings reduced by an additional $1.6 m|II|on as compared to 2005 earnings,
recorded throughout 2006; and

¢ return on common equity confirmed according to AEUB standardized rate of return methodology —
9.5% in 2005 and 8.93% in 2006.

In May 2006, the AEUB issued  a decision on ATCO Electric’s 2003-2004 Regulated Rate Option Tariff Non-
Energy Rates application dated November 2002:
.« this decision approved, on an interim refundable basis, the collection in 2006 of a shortfall of $2.7
million for 2003 and $2.2 millicn for 2004 that was not previously incorporated into customer rates;
« the amounts approved for collection are subject to the outcome of an existing process regarding the
pricing of services provided by ATCO 1-Tek; and
+ the impact of this decision increased ATCO Electric’s 2006 earnings by $1.9 million and was recorded in
the second quarter of 2006.

In August 2002, the AEUB issued a decision in which it denied ATCO Electric’s application to adjust its 2001 and
2002 transmission and distribution revenue requirements by $4.6 million for changes in the amounts of future
income taxes recorded:;
s in May 2005, the AEUB changed its August 2002 decision and allowed ATCOElectric to increase its
revenues and earnings by $4.6 million. The impact of this decision was recorded in the second quarter
of 2005.

In August 2006, the AEUB approved the first phase of the AESOs application for the need to improve
transmission infrastructure in northwest Alberta: -~
.« AEUB decision grants the AESO approval to assign approxlmately $300 million in projects to the
Transmission Facility Owner, ATCO Electric;
« once assigned by the AESO, ATCO Electric will prepare and file facility applications with the AEUB.
Construction will commence once approval to proceed is received from the AEUB; and
« the entire project was originally intended to be completed by 2009, but now is anticipated to be
completed by 2011. As a result of price escalation caused by the change in completion date, coupled
with the increasing costs of construction in Alberta, the entire project is now estimated to cost $400
million.

In November 2006, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2007 and 2008 test
years: _ _
¢ requesting, among other things, increased revenues to-recover increased financing, depreciation and
operating costs asscciated with increased rate base in Alberta;
» a dedision from the AEUB on the general tariff application is not expected until late 2007,

13 | 2006 CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED



+ in November 2006, ATCO Electric filed an application requesting interim refundable rates for
transmission and distribution operations, pending the AEUB's decision on the generaf tariff application,
and

« on December 19, 2006, ATCO Electric received a decision from the AEUB approving interim refundable
rate increases amounting to 50% of ATCO Electric’s requested increases for transmnssmn and
distribution operations.

ATCO Gas

In January 2006, the AEUB issued a decision on ATCO Gas’ 2005, 2006 and 2007 General Rate Application
("ATCC Gas GRA Decisicn”):

» which, among other things, established the amount of revenue to be collected over the period 2005 to
2007 from customers for natural gas distribution service and approved a return on common equity as
determined by the AEUB’s standardized rate of return methodology — 9.5% in 2005, 8.93% in 2006 and
8.51% in 2007; ’

« the final impact of the decision will nat be known until a subseguent regulatory process is finalized; and

« a decision from the AEUB with respect to a second regulatory process that was pending at the end of
2005 was received on October 11, 2006; the effect of this decision on the earnings of the Corporation
was not material.

In May 2006, the City of Calgary filed a Review and Variance application with the AEUB for the ATCO Gas GRA
Decision:

+ the application alleges that the AEUB made errors in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision related to the
calculation of working capital needed by ATCO Gas to operate its Carbon natural gas storage facility;
and

« the AEUB issued its decision on January 17, 2007, denying the City of Calgary’s application.

In October 2006, ATCO Gas also filed a Review and Variance application with the AEUB for the ATCO Gas GRA
Decision:
« the application alleges that the AEUB made errors in the ATCO Gas GRA Decision related to the
approved level of administrative expenses;
« in December 2006, the AEUB issued a decision in which it acknowledged an error for a portion of the
administrative expenses in question; and
« a further AEUB decision on the remainder of this application is expected in the 2nd quarter of 2007,

" In October 2001, the AEUB approved the sale by ATCO Gas of certain properties in the City of Calgary, known

as the Calgary Stores Block, for $6.6 million (excluding costs of disposition). As a result of this decision (the
“Calgary Stores Block Decision™):

» $4.1 million of the proceeds were allocated by the AEUB to custamers and $1 8 million to ATCO Gas;

» ATCO Gas appealed the decision to the Alberta Court of Appeal which overturned the decision and
directed the AEUB to allocate $5.4 million of the proceeds to ATCO Gas;

« City of Calgary appealed this decision to the Supreme Court of Canada, which also granted ATCO Gas
leave to cross-appeal the decision;

e the Supreme Court of Canada rendered its decision on February 9, 2006, dlsmlssmg the City of
Calgary's appeal and allowing ATCO Gas’ cross-appeal. The AEUB was d|rected to issue a new decision
in accordance with the Supreme Court’s ruling;

» ATCO Gas requested that the AEUB address the Supreme Court of Canada decision; and

» the AEUB complied with the Supreme Court of Canada decision-on August 11, 2006, and ATCO Gas
recorded additional net proceeds totaling $4.1 million from the sale and increased-earnings of $3.7
million after income taxes in the third quarter of 2006.

ATCO Gas owns a 43.5 petajoule natural gas storage facility located at Carbon, Alberta. ATCO Gas has leased
the entire storage capacity of the facility to ATCO Midstream. ATCO Gas has taken the position that the facility
is no longer reguired for utility service and should be removed from regulation. In the process of obtaining
AEUB approval, the following events are significant:
e in July 2004, the AEUB initiated a written process to consider its role in regulatlng the operations of the
facility; :
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in June 2005, the AEUB issued a decision with respect to this process. In addition to addressing other
matters, the decision found that the AEUB has the authority, when necessary in the public interest, to
direct a utility to utilize a particular asset in a specific manner, even over the objection of the utility;
ATCO Gas filed for leave to appeal the decision with the Alberta Court of Appeal;

in October 2005, the AEUB established processes to review the use of the facility for utility purposes;

a hearing to review the use of the facility for revenue generation was held in April 2006 and a hearing

to review the use of the facility for load balancing was held in June 2006. On October 11, 2006 the .

AEUB issued a decision confirming ATCO Gas’ position that the facility is no longer required for utility
service with respect to the use of the facility for load balancing purposes. The City of Calgary has filed
a leave to-appeal and a review and variance application of this decision; and

on February 5, 2007, the AEUB issued a decision in which it determined that-a legitimate utility use for
the facility is that it be used for purposes of generating revenues to offset customer rates. The AEUB
has directed ATCO Gas to continue to lease the entire storage capacity of the facility to ATCO
Midstream. The AEUB will conduct a further process to determine if it is appropriate that 100% or
some lesser portion of this facility should be used to offset customer rates. (Refer to Business Risks -
Regulated Operations - Carbon Natural Gas Storage Facility section).

ATCO Gas has filed an application with the AEUB to address, among other things, corrections required to
historical transportation imbalances {the process whereby third party natural gas supplies are reconciled to
amounts actually shipped in the Corporation’s pipelines) that have impacted ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account:

in April 2005, the AEUB issued a decision resulting in a 15% decrease in the transportation imbalance
adjustments sought by ATCO Gas. The decision resulted in a decrease to ATCO Gas’ 2005 revenues
and earnings of $1.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively; and

City of Calgary filed for leave to appeal the AEUB's decision. ATCO Gas filed a cross appeal of the
AEUB’s decision. The leave to appeal was heard by the Alberta Court of Appeal on April 18, 2006. On
July 7, 2006 the Alberta Court of Appeal issued its decision granting the City of Calgary’s leave to
appeal on the question of whether the AEUB erred in law or jurisdiction in assuming that it had the
authority to allow recovery in 2005, for costs relating to prior years. ATCO Gas' cross appeal was
denied. A hearing with the Alberta Court of Appeal has been scheduled for April 13, 2007.

In October 2005, ATCO Gas filed an application with the AEUB to approve the sale of its Red Deer Operating

Centre:

in December 2005, the AEUB approved the sale and deferred its decision on the distribution of net
proceeds of $1.0 million until the Supreme Court of Canada rendered a judgment in the appeal
regarding the Calgary Stores Block disposition and allocation of proceeds discussed above;

the Supreme Court of Canada rendered its decision on the Calgary Stores Block matter on February 9,
2006;

in February 2006, ATCO Gas submitted a filing to the AEUB to approve the allocation of the net
proceeds; :

on March 16, 2006, the AEUB suspended the process convened to approve allocation of the net
proceeds pending resolution of certain issues arising in connection with the Supreme Court's Calgary
Stores Block decision. The net proceeds of the sale remained in trust pending AEUB approval; and

on August 16, 2006, ATCO Gas requested that the process re-convene in light of the AEUB’s approval
of the Calgary Stores Block application. The AEUB issued a call for comments which concluded on
September 14, 2006 and on December 13, 2006 the AEUB issued a decision approving the distribution
of proceeds to ATCO Gas resulting in increased revenue of $1.0 million and earnings of $0.7 million for
ATCO Gas.

ATCO Pipelines

The AEUB has delayed its review of the competiti\/e natural gas pipeline issues under AEUB jurisdiction until

2007.

This review is expected to address competitive issues between ATCO Pipelines and NOVA Gas

Transmission Ltd.

Other Matters

The Corporation has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB
for which decisions have not been received. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined at this time.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Funds generated by operations provides a substantial portion of the Corporation’s cash requirements.
Additional cash requirements are met externally through bank borrowings and the issuance of long term and
non-recourse debt and preferred shares. Commercial paper borrowings and short term bank loans are used to
pravide flexibility in the timing and amounts of long term financing.

‘Funds generated by operatlons for the three- months ended‘December»~31 2006 decreased by $19 4*: _

million to $168.4 million, pnmanly due to:- SR e R i

‘-' decreased availability incentives- |n Alberta Power (2000),1 __|mar|Iy due to avallablllty penames pa|d|

' assouated wath the planned outage in. 2006 for the Battle River, generatlng-plant WhICh occurred durlng 1
p ; r . ,r / A X . .=

‘.J_L__'_,_g %lncreased eamings: o 5

Funds generated by operations for the year ended December 31, 2006, decreased by $1.8 million to
$657.5 million, primarily due to:
= lower proceeds received from the TXU Europe Settlement (refer to TXU Europe Settlement section);
and
* decreased availability incentives in Alberta Power (2000), primarily due to availability penalties paid
associated with the planned outage in 2006 for the Battle River generating plant which occurred during
a period of high Alberta Power Pocl electricity prices.
This decrease was partially offset by:
* increased earnings.

ﬁlnvestlng actrvmes for the three months ended December 31 2006 mcreased by $0 3 mllllon to $160 6
mI||I0n,' prlmanly=due to »u: e T : ; ‘ "l

b ety
{Thls mcrease was partlally ‘offset by £ o ETE - LR e
R T mcreased -contributions_ by | u_tlhty customers for.e extensmns to. plant sl

I

i
t.

Investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $57.1 million to $527.5 million,
primarily due to:

+« 2005 proceeds on the transfer of the retail energy supply busmesses

+ increased capital expenditures;

« changes in non-cash working capital; and

¢ H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment (refer to H.R. Milner Income Tax Reassessment section).
This increase was partially offset by:

e increased contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant; and

¢ changes in non-current deferred electricity costs.

Purchase of property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by
$41.0 million to $567.7 million, primarily due to;
» increased investment in regulated electric distribution and transmission and regulated natural gas
transportation projects.
This increase was partially offset by:
» decreased investment in regulated natural gas distribution projects.
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Dunng the three months ended December.31 2006 the Corpora T
$175 0 m:lhon of 4 84% Debentures due November 6; 20
v © 4126 million;of hon-recourse long term ‘debt: Loy
lThese changes resulted ina net debt increase . of: $132 4 mllllon

N

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Corporation issued:
e $160.0 million of 4.801% Debentures due November 22, 2021;
o $160.0 million of 5.032% Debentures due November 20, 2036; and.
e $35.5 million of other long term debt.
During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Corporation redeemed:
s $175.0 million of 4.84% Debentures due November 6, 2006; and
* $64.6 million of non-recourse long term debt.
These changés resulted in a net debt increase of $115.9 million.

“Net purchase of.Class ‘A"non-voting shares for the three.m months ended December 31 2006 decreased, by=
'$4.6 million to:$1.9 million, primarily: .due to decreased. share., purchases iIN2006.0 o e e T s D

Net purchase of Class A non-voting shares for the year ended December 31, 2006, increased by $64.8
million to $67.5 million, primarily due to increased share purchases in 2006.

Foreign currencymtranslatron;for “thei:t threekmonths;iended Decembe $313’=*'2006\~' X ?i
Corporatron S cas‘¢p05|t|onlbyﬁ$ ln%mrlhonito&ll 6 m|II|on prlmarllyfggggg!result fof TRy

- 4 c‘hahg"ésf*‘in K “exchangeW«rateawhlch@resulteaﬁ" Feaseing
denomlnated m u. K.. pounds when. translated mto Cana

A ol s

Foreign currency translation for the year ended December 31, 2006, positively impacted the Corporation’s
cash position by $27.5 million to $16.3 million, primarily as a result of:
» changes in the U.K. exchange rate which resulted in an increase in the value of cash balances
denominated in U.K. pounds when translated into Canadian dollars

At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had the following credit lines that enable it to obtain funding for
general corporate purposes.

Total ' Used Available
{$ Millions)
LONG term COMMIEEE ......ccceiiee e e e e e e 326.0 47.4 278.6
Short term COMIMUIEA ...ttt s s et s et s s e e s meeaene 600.0 14.0 586.0
LT T )T T = PTTTOTPTOO 69.1 7.1 62.0
TOLA) cviarninriiiiiiiiieiiiieriaisnienrsecreninbintassaiassioersaseries htrrbieieiesiebesiersatirraebaretrntats 995.1 68.5 926.6

The ameunt and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporatlon

Capital expenditures to maintain capacity, meet planned-growth and fund future development activities are

expected to be approximately $725 million in 2007. The majority of these expenditures are uncommitted and
relate primarily to utility operations.
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Contractual obligations for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less
than 1 1-3 4-5 After5
Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years
($ Millions)
Longtermdebt. ..o 2,411.5 54.5 225.0 2720 1,860.0
Non-recourse long term debl.......cviii s 686.0 59.3 150.3 124.2 352.2
Operating @SS .....covevveirriiriir it 61.6 18.5 246 13.7 4.8
Purchase cbligations:
ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts (1) .......ocoveveieeiinniiccniecinnns 4.5 0.5 1.0 1.0 2.0
Alberta Power (2000) coal purchase contracts {2) .....ccreverrverriverirarenens 607.7 47.7 99.2 105.2 355.6
ATCO Power natural gas fuel supply contracts (3) ........cceerrrrvcrrsrnnnenn. 248.1 52.4 104.8 74.0 16.9
ATCO Power operating and maintenance agreements (4) ....ccoooieennnn, 198.2 21.2 45.3 38.4 93.3
Capital expenditures (5)......ccicviiiii i 45.4 45.4 - - -
L0431 TP TEFCT PP TR 7.8 7.8 - - -
TOUA) 1 creesimres i e et ey e s sme e s s rin e et et e e rib e st b st e e e ne s iae e snn s snb e s re 4,270.8 307.3 650.2 628.5 2684.8
Notes,

(1) ATCO Gas has ongoing obligations to purchase fixed quantities of natural gas from various gas producers at market prices that are in
effect at the time the quantities are purchased. These obligations relate primarily to operational contracts pertaining to the Carbon
natural gas storage faciiity, which was not included in the Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses to DEML and continues to
be subject to AEUB regulation. Some of these obligations are for the life of the gas reserves. The estimated value of these purchase
obligations is based on the market price of natural gas in effect on December 31, 2006, and assumes a remaining life of 10 years for
the gas reserves commencing January 1, 2004, DEML has agreed to purchase the natural gas purchased under these contracts at
the prices paid by ATCO Gas.

(2) Alberta Power (2000) has fixed price long term contracts to purchase coal for its coal-fired generating plants. These costs are
recoverable pursuant to the power purchase arrangements.

(3) ATCO Power has various contracts to purchase natural gas for certain of its natural gas-fired generating plants. ATCO Power has

. fong term offtake agreements with the purchasers of the electricity to recover 78% of these costs, The balance of 22%, related to
ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant, is currently being recovered through merchant soles In the UK. electricity man(fer ATCO
Power’s merchant generating plants in Alberta do nat have any long term contracts to purchase natural gas.

(4} ATCO Power has various contracts with suppliers to provide operating and maintenance services at certain of its generating plants.

(5} Various contracts to purchase goods and services with respect to capital expenditure programs.

Current and long term future income tax liabilities of $195.0 million at December 31, 2006, are
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their
tax bases. These differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in different years for
financial and tax reporting. purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are
reversed through the settlement of liabilities and realization of assets.

On May 20, 2005, the Corporation commenced 'a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of
the.outstanding Class A shares. The bid expired on May 19, 2006. Over the’ life of the bid, 348,100 shares
were purchased, of which-195,600 were purchased in 2005 and 152,500 were purchased in 2006. On May 23,
2006, the Corporation commenced a new normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 5% of the
outstanding Class A shares. The bid will expire on May 22, 2007. From May 23, 2006, to February 16, 2007,
1,679,700 shares have been purchased, all of which were purchased in 2006.

It is the policy of the Corporation to pay dividends quarterly on its Class A.and Class B shares, For the first
quarter of 2006, the quarterly dividend payment on the Corporation’s Class A and Class B shares increased by
$0.01 to $0.285 per share. The quarterly dividend payment for the second quarter remained unchanged at
$0.285 per share. For the third quarter of 2006, the quarterly dividend was increased by $0.005 to $0.29 per
share. The Corporation also approved a one-time special dividend of $0.25 per share. Both the third quarter
dividend of $0.29 per share and the one-time special dividend of $0.25 per share were paid on September 1,
2006, to shareholders of record on August 9, 2006. Based on approximately 126.3 million shares then
outstanding, the one-time special dividend totaled approximately $31.6 million. The Corporation has increased
its annual common share dividend each year since its inception as a holding company in 1972. The matter of
an increase in the quarterly dividend is addressed by the Board of Directors in the first quarter of each year.
For the first quarter of 2007, the quarterly dividend payment has been increased by $0.015 to $0.305 per
share. The payment of any dividend is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial
condition of the Corporation and other factors.
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On April 12, 2006, CU Inc. filed a base shelf prospectus which permits CU Inc. to issue up to an aggregate
of $850.0 million of debentures over the twenty-five month life of the prospectus.
« on November 20, 2006, the Corporation issued $160.0 million of 4.801% Debentures due November
22, 2021, at a price of 100 to yield 4.801%, and $160.0 million of 5,032% Debentures due November
20, 2036, at a price of 100 to yield 5.032%. The proceeds of these issues were advanced to ATCO
Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines and used to fund capital expenditures, repay indebtedness and
for general corporate purposes.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At February-16, 2007, the Corporation had outstanding 81,462,286 Class A shares and 43,926,484 Class B
shares, .

The owners of the Class A shares and the Class B shares are entitled to share equally, on a share for share
basis, in all dividends declared by the Corporation on either of such classes of shares as well as the remaining
property of the Corporation upon dissolution. The owners of the Class B shares are entitled to vote and to
exchange at any time each share held for one Class A share,

If a take-over bid is made for the Class B shares which would result in the offeror cwning more than 50% of
the outstanding Class B shares and which would constitute a change in control of the Corporation, owners of
Class A shares are entitled, for the duration of the bid, to exchange their Class A shares for Class B shares and
to tender such Class B shares pursuant to the terms of the take-over bid. Such right of exchange is conditional
upon the completion of the take-over bid giving rise to the right of exchange, and if the take-over bid is-not
completed, then the right of exchange shall be deemed never to have existed. In addition, owners of Class A
shares are entitled to exchange their shares for Class B shares of the Corporation if ATCO Ltd., the present
controlling share owner of the Corporation, ceases to own or control, directly or indirectly, more than
10,000,000 of the issued and outstanding Class B shares of the Corporaticn. In either case, each Class A share
is exchangeable for one Class B share, subject to changes in the exchange ratio for certain events such as a
stock split or rights offering. : '

Of the 6,400,000 Class A shares reserved for issuance in respect of options under the Corporation’s stock
option plan, 2,626,800 Class A shares are available for issuance at December 31, 2006. Options may be
granted to directors, officers and key employees of the Corporation and its subsidiaries at an exercise price
equal to the weighted average of the trading price of the shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The vesting provisions and exercise period (which
cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the time of grant. As of February 16, 2007, options to purchase
1,368,900 Class A shares were outstanding.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Corporation’s transactions. with related vpal"ties are in the normal course of business and under normal
commercial terms. For a description of these transactions, refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

BUSINESS RISKS

The current Federal government favours a made in Canada approach to deal with climate change instead of the
Kyoto Protocol which the previous government had ratified. The Corporation is unable to determine what
impact the Clean Air Act may have on its operations as the Government of Canada has not yet provided
industry specific details for its 2006 Climate Change Plan, While it is not certain, it is anticipated that the
Corporation’s PPA’s relating to its coal-fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover any
fncreased costs associated with the implementation of the Clean Air Act.
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Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which administers acts and
regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and service area.
The AEUB may approve interim rates or approve the recovery of costs on a placeholder basis, subject to final
determination. These subsidiaries are subject to the normal risks faced by companies that are regulated.
These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer rates that permit a reasonable opportunity to recover
on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service, including a fair return on rate base. The
Corparation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to earn the approved rates of return
depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

Carbon Natural Gas Storage Facility

ATCO Gas leases the entire storage capacity of the Carbon natural gas storage facility to ATCO Midstream at
AEUB approved placeholder rates. On February 5, 2007, the AEUB issued a decision to ATCO Gas that leaves in
-question these placeholder rates and the effect that these placeholder rates will have on future ATCO Gas
revenues. (Refer to Regulatory Matters — ATCO Gas section).

Weather

Weather fluctuations have a significant impact on throughput in ATCO Gas. Since approximately 50% of ATCO
Gas' delivery charge is recovered based on throughput, ATCO Gas’ revenues and earnings are sensitive to
weather. Weather that is 10% warmer or colder than normal temperatures impacts annual earnings by
approximately $10.0 million.

ATCO I-Tek Services

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines purchase information technology services, and ATCO Electric and
ATCO Gas also purchase customer care and billing services, from ATCO I-Tek. The recovery of these costs in
customer rates are subject to AEUB approval. Since 2003, the costs have been approved on a placeholder
basis, and are subject to final AEUB approval after completion of an ongoing collaborative benchmarking
process.

Transfer of the Retail Energy Supply Businesses

On May 4, 2004, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred their retail energy supply businesses to Direct Energy
Marketing Limited and one of its affiliates {collectively "DEML"), a subsidiary of Centrica plc.

Although ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric transferred to DEML certain retail functions, including the supply of
natural gas and electricity to custormers and billing and customer care functions, the legal obligations of ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric remain if DEML fails to perform. In certain events (including where DEML fails to supply
natural gas and/or electricity and ATCO Gas and/or ATCO Electric are ordered by the AEUB to do so), the
functions will revert to ATCO Gas andfor ATCO Electric with no refund of the transfer proceeds to DEML by
ATCO Gas andfor ATCO Electric.

Centrica plc, DEML's parent, has provided a $300 million guarantee, supported by a $235 million letter of credit
in respect of DEML’s obligations to ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric and ATCQ I-Tek Business Services in respect of the
ongoing relationships contemplated under the transaction agreements. However, there can be no assurance
that the coverage under these agreements will be adequate to cover all of the costs that could arise in the
event of a reversion of such functions.

The Corporation has provided a guaréntee of ATCO Gas', ATCO Electric’s and ATCO I-Tek Business Services’
payment and indemnity obligations to DEML cqntemplated under the transaction agreements,
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Late Payment Penalties on Utility Bills

As a result of decisions of the Supreme Court of Canada in Garland vs. Consumers’ Gas Co., the imposition of
late payment penalties on utility bills has been called into question. The Corporation is unable to determine at
this time the impact, if any, that these decisions will have on the Corporation.

Alberta Power (2000}

Included in regulated operations are the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), which were regulated by
the AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved
by the AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to
allow the owners of generating plants constructed: before January 1,.1996, to recover their forecast fixed and
variable costs and to-earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA's. The plants will become deregulated upon
the earlier of one year after the expiry of a PPA or a decision to continue to operate the plant. Alberta Power
-(2000) has one year after the expiry of a PPA to determine whether to decommission the generating plant in
order to fully recover plant decommissioning ¢osts or to ¢continue to operate the plant. Each PPA is to remain in
effect until the earlier of the last day of the estimated life of the related generating plant or December 31,
2020.

Substantially all the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA's. Under the PPA’s,
Alberta Power {2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each generating unit available to the
purchaser of the PPA for that unit. In return, Alberta Power (2000) is entitled to recover its forecast fixed and
variable costs for that unit from the PPA purchaser, including a return on common equity equal to the long term
Government of Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based on a deemed common equity ratio of 45%. Many of the
forecast costs will be determined by indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta
Power (2000)'s actua! results will vary and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on which the
PPA’s were based. '

Under the terms of the PPA’s, the Corporation is subject to an incentive/penalty regime refated to generating
unit availability. Incentives are paid to the Corporation by the PPA counterparties for availability in excess of
predetermined targets, whereas penalties are paid by the Corporation to the PPA counterparties when the
availability targets are not achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimated future incentives exceed accumulated penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the
PPA's. Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus
estimated future incentives, the shortfall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs.

At December 31, 2006, the Corporation had recorded $39.6 million of deferred availability incentives.

Fuel costs in Alberta Power (2000) are mostly for coal supply. To protect against volatility in coal prices,
Alberta Power (2000) owns or has sufficient coal supplies under long term contracts for the anticipated lives of
its Battle River and Sheerness coal-fired generating plants. These contracts are at prices that are either fixed
or indexed to inflation.

Alberta Environment implemented mercury emission regulations in March 2006 for coal-fired generating plants.
Owners of coal-fired generating plants are required to submit by April 1, 2007, proposals on capturing at least
70% of the mercury in the coal burned in their plants. The proposals for mercury emission reduction must be
implemented by 2010. While it is not certain, it is anticipated that the Corporation’s PPA’s relating to its coal-
fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover most of the costs assouated with complying with
the new regulation.

21 | 2006 CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED



| Non-Regulated Operations

Measurement Inaccuracies in Metering Facilities

Measurement inaccuracies occur from time to time with respect to ATCO Electric’'s, ATCO Gas’ and ATCO
Pipelines’ metering facilities. Measurement adjustments are settled between the parties based on the
requirements of the Electricity and Gas Inspections Act (Canada) and applicable regulations issued pursuant
thereto. There is a risk of disallowance of the recovery of a measurement adjustment if controls and timely
follow up are found to be inadequate by the AEUB, :

A recent AEUB decision applicable to ATCO Gas established a two year adjustment limitation period for
inaccuracies in gas supply costs, including measurement inaccuracies in metering facilities. The AEUB stated
that it will consider specific applications for adjustments beyond the two year limitation period.

The Corporation’s non-regulated operations are complementary to its traditional regulated businesses and are
related to them in terms of skills, knowledge and experience. The Corporation. accounts for its non-regulated
operations separately from its regulated operations. The Corporation’s non-regulated operations are subject to
the risks faced by any commercial enterprise in those industries and in those countries in which they operate.

ATCO Power
The Corporation’s portfolio of non-regulated electric g'enerating plants is made up of gas-fired cogeneratiori,

gas-fired combined cycle, gas-fired simple cycle, and small hydro plants. The majority of operating income
from power generation operations is derived through long term power, steam and transmission support -

- agreements.” Where long term agreements are in place, the purchaser assumes the fuel supply and price risks

and the Corporation, under these agreements, assumes the operating risks.

ATCO Power’s generating plants include high efficiency gas-fired cogeneration plants, with associated on-site
steam and power tolling arrangements, and gas-fired peaking and hydroelectric plants with underlying
transmission support agreements. In 2006, sales from approximately 71% of ATCO Power’s generating
capacity were subject to long term agreements, white the remaining 29% consisted primarily of sales to the
Alberta Power Pool and the U.K. merchant power market. In 2007, these percentages are expected to be
approximately the same. These sales are dependent on .prices in the Alberta electricity spot market and.in the
U.K. merchant power market. The majority of the electricity sales to the Alberta Power Poo! are from gas-fired
generating plants, and as a result operating income is affected by natural gas prices. During peak electricity
usage hours in Alberta, a good correlation exists between electricity. spot prices and natural gas-spot prices.
During off-peak hours, there is less correlation. The correlation is expected to increase in the future as
customer load grows and older plants are decommissioned.
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Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads can be very volatile, as
shown in the following graph, which illustrates a range of prices experienced during the period January 2000 to

~ February 2007. :
Alberta Power Pool Prices, Natural Gas Prices and Spark Spreads
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Changes in Alberta Power Pool electricity prices, natural gas prices and related spark spreads may have a
significant impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future. It is the
Corporation’s policy to continually monitor the status of its non-regulated electrical generating capacity that is
not subject to long term commitments.

Since October 2004, the output from ATCO Power’s Barking generating plant previously sold to TXU Europe
(refer to TXU Europe Settlement section) has been sold into the U.X. power exchange market. In the U.K.,
electricity generators, on average, sell over 90% of their output to electricity suppliers in bilateral contracts, use
power exchanges for approximately 7% of their output, and sell the remaining 2-3% via the Balancing
Mechanism. Approximately 40% of the electricity generated is supplied from natural gas-fired generating
plants, and earlier this year the market experienced an increase in electricity prices due to the increased world
prices for natural gas. Since then natural gas prices have softened with additional natural gas infrastructure
coming on stream and the slightly lower oil prices. Nevertheless, the Barking generating plant has a long term,
fixed price gas purchase agreement and, as a result, has been able to experience increased margins due to the
high. market prices for electricity. Changes in the U.K. market electricity prices may have an impact on the
Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from operations in the future.

ATCO Power has financed its non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-recourse basis. In these
projects, the lender’s recourse in the event of default is limited to the business and assets of the project in
question, which includes the Corporation’s equity therein. Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a number of
guarantees related to ATCO Power’s obligations under non-recourse loans associated with certain of its
projects. The guarantees outstanding at December 31, 2006, are described in Note.12 to the consclidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. To date, Canadian Utilities Limited has not been
required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.

ATCO Midstream

Timing, capacity and demand of ATCO Midstream’s storage business as well as changes in market conditions
may impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from storage operations.
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ATCO Midstream extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas streams at its extraction plants.
These products are sold under either long term cost of service arrangements or market based arrangements.
Changes in market conditions may impact the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow from natural gas.liquids
extraction operations.

ATCO Frontec

ATCO Frontec’s operations include providing support to military agencies in forelgn locations which may be
subject to political risk.

On December 23, 2005, the Government of Canada filed a claim in the amount of $70 million which alleges that
the Corporation is liable for the destruction of property owned by the Governments of Canada and the United
States. The Corporation believes that the claim is defensible and, in any event, has sufficient insurance
coverage in place to cover any material amounts that might become payable as a result of the claim.
Accordingly, the claim Is not expected to have any material impact on the financial position of the Corporation.

A fuel spill occurred in January 2007 at the Brevoort Island, Northwest Territories radar site maintained by
Nasittuq Corporation, a corporation jointly owned by ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic Inuit Logistics Corporation.
The Corporation believes that it has sufficient insurance coverage in place to cover any material amounts that

might become payable as a result of the fuel spill. Accordingly, this spill is not expected to have any material _

impact on the financial position of the Corporation.

CONTINGENCIES

The Corporation is party to a number of disputes and lawsuits in the normal course of business. The
Corporation believes that the ultimate liability arising from these matters will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

HEDGING

In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and
options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices.
All such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes. For details on the financial
instruments in place at December 31, 2006, refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

At December 31, 2006, unrecorded future income tax liabilities of the requlated operations amounted to $141.3
million and unrecorded future income tax assets of other operations amounted to $0.5 million. The liabilities
include $14.6 million in respect of Alberta Power (2000)s generating plants, which will be recovered through
future payments received in respect of the PPA’s. There are tax loss carryforwards of $0.4 million for Canadian
subsidiary corporations and $7.6 million for a foreign subsidiary corporation for which no tax benefit has been
recorded. The losses for Canadian subsidiary corporations begin to expire in 2010 and the losses for the
foreign subsidiary corporation do not expire. For additional information on the Corporation’s unrecorded future
income tax liabilities, refer to Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2006.

Other than the financial instruments discussed under "Hedging”, the Corporation does not have any off-balance

sheet arrangements that have, or are likely to have, a current or future effect on the results of operations or
financial condition, including, without limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital resources.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities -at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year, On an on-going
basis, management reviews its estimates, particularly those related to depreciation and amortization methods,
useful lives and impairment of long-lived assets, amortization of deferred availability incentives, asset
retirement obligations and employee future benefits, using currently available information. Changes in facts
and circumstances may result in revised estimates, and actual results could dlffer from those estimates. The
Corporation’s critical accounting estimates are discussed below.

Deferred Availability Incentives

As noted in the Business Risks section, Alberta Power (2000) is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related
to generating unit availability. As at December 31, 2006, the Corporation had recorded $39.6 million of
deferred availability incentives. The amortization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in
revenues, amounted to $10.6 million in 2006.

The amount to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit availability and future
electricity prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, the Corporation uses these estimates to forecast
high case, low case and most likely scenarios for the incentives to be received from, less penalties to be paid
to, the PPA counterparties. These forecasts are added to the accumulated unamortized deferred availability
incentives outstanding at the end of the quarter; the resulting total is divided by the remaining term of the PPA
to arrive at the amortization for the quarter.

Compared to the most likely scenario recorded in revenues for the year, the high case scenario would have
resulted in higher revenues of approximately $5.0 million, whereas the low case scenario would have resulted
in lower revenues of approximately $4.6 'million.

Employee Future Benefits .

The expected long term rate of return on pension plan-assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the
basis of the long bond yield rate plus an equity and management premiurn that reflects the plan asset mix.
Actual balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about 1%, which, when
added to the long bond yield rate of 5.1% at the beginning of 2006, resulted in an expected long term rate of
return of 6.1% for 2006. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return
assumptions for the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, norma!
equity risk premiums, and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to
the market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of
the preceding three years. The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past five years, from
8.1% in 2001 to 6.1% in the year ended December 31, 2006. The result has been a decrease in the expected
return on plan assets and a corresponding increase in the cost of pension benefits. In addition, the actual
return on plan assets over the same period has been lower than expected (i.e., an experience loss), which is
also contributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.

" The liability discount rate that is used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations reflects market interest rates
on high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments. The liability
discount rate has also declined over the same five year period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 5.1% at the
end of 2006. The result has been an increase in benefit obligations (i.e., an experience loss), which is
contributing to an increase in the cost of pension benefits as losses are amortized to earnings.

In accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in

excess of 10 percent of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the
Corporation began amortizing a portion of the net cumulative experience losses on plan assets and accrued
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benefit obligations in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment benefit plans and
continued this amortization during the three months and the year ended December 31, 2006.

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post
employment benefit obligations in the three months and the year ended December 31, 2006, are as follows:
for drug costs, 8.5% starting in 2006 grading down over 7 years to 4.5%, and for other medical and dental
costs, 4.0% for 2006 and thereafter. Combined with higher claims experlence, the effect of these changes has
been to increase the costs of other post employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assurnptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs
of employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit
plans expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).

The sensitivities of key assumptions used in measuring accrued benefit obligations and benefit plan cost
(income) for 2006 are outlined in the following table. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been
calculated independently of changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a
number of assumptions simultaneously.

2006 Other Post
2006 Pension Employment Benefit
Benefit Plans Plans
Accrued Accrued
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Obligation Plan Cost _ Obligation Plan Cost

(% Millions) '
Expected Iéng term rate of return on plan assets ‘

19 INCTEASE (1) 1ovevreererarinirvrrirareseerreressrerereseesnen et e sres e ssiasasssanne - (3.4) - -

1% decrease (1) .o e e e - 34 - -
Liability discount rate
© 1% INCTEASE (1) .uvurireiiiiiiniiieiieiesiienian et s e es s er s eseieeascscasaanasanie (79.5) (6.4} 3.7 (0.4)

1% dECTEASE (1) cvureieiiirieireirrrreresviert s sre e v vnrs e s s e e nneeenanee 101.7 7.5 4.7 0.5
Future compensation rate

1% inCrease (1) .ocveviicieneininernnnnssnnenes eemrreeeeen e e e naarnan 22.9 2.9 - -

1% deCre@se (1) civevivrrveerererrisrrenrrrerreessins vornsrnrenees ervererrererernnranns (20.8) (2.6) - -
Long term inflation rate L

196 inCrease (1)(2H3) oo s 345 3.9 4,2 0.7

1% decrease {1) (3] .o e e e e (60.4} (6.9) (3.4) {0.5)
Notes:

(1) Sensitivities are net of the assocated regulatory asset (fiability} and unrecognized defined beneﬁt plans cost, which reflect an AEUB
decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the reguiated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather
than accrued.

(2) The long term inflation rate for pension plans reflects the fact that pension plan benefit payments are indexed to increases in the

" Canadian Consumer FPrice Index to a maximum increase of 3.0% per annum.

(3} The long term inflation rate for other post employment beneﬁt plans is the assumed annual health care cost trend rate described in

the weighted average assumptions.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES ‘ .

Effective January 1, 2007, the Corporation prospectively adopted the recommendations of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA") pertaining to financial instruments, hedging and comprehensive
income. These recommendations require certain financial instruments and hedge positions to be recorded at
their fair value. They also introduce the concept of comprehensive income and accumulated other
comprehensive income. Financial instruments designated as “held-for-trading” and “available-for-sale” will be
carried at their fair value while financial instruments classified as “loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity”
will be carried at their amortized cost. All derivatives will be carried on the consolidated balance sheet at their
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fair value, including derivatives designated as hedges. The effective portion of unrealized gains and losses on

~cash flow hedges and the cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments arising from self-sustaining
" investments in foreign operations will be carried in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, a component of
Class A and Class B Share Owners Equity on the consolidated batance sheet, Any ineffective portions of gains
and losses on hedges will be taken into earnings immediately. Changes.in value of fair value hedges will be
recognized in earnings as they occur. The Corporation is unable to determine at this time the impact of
adopting these recommendations on earnings or assets of the Corporation.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA Emerging Issues Abstract regarding
~ conditional asset retirement obligations. This abstract requires an entity to record a liability for an asset
retirement obligation where the timing and/or method of settlement are conditional upon the occurrence of a
future event that may or may not be within the contro! of the entity. Adoption of this abstract had no effect on
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Effective January 1, 2006, the.Corporation retroactively adopted the CICA Emerging Issues Abstract regarding
stock based compensation for employees eligible to retire before the vesting date. This abstract requires an
. entity to recognize the compensation cost attributable to such an award over the period from grant date to the
date the employee becomes eligible to retire. Since the Corporation does not have stock based compensation -
plans that contain such provisions, adoption of this abstract had no effect on the consolidated financial
" statements for the year ended December 31, 2006. '

February 21, 2007
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' ATCO LTD. & CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
Corporate Head Office; 1500, 909 - 11 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 Tel: (403} 292-7500

For Immediate Release

January 18, 2007

Canadian Ut:htles Limited Declares Quarterly Dividend
CALGARY, Alberta - The Board of Dlrectors of-Canadian Utilities Limited, an ATCO Company, today declared a first quarter
dividend of 30.5 cents per Class A non-voting and Class B common share, a 5.2% increase over the 29.0 cents paid in the previous

quarter The dividend is payable March 1, 2007, 1o shareholders of record on February 7, 2007.

The Board also declared the following Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Share Dividends:

TSX Stock Dividend Per Record Date Payment Date
Shares Symbol Share {$) - (2007) (2007)
SeriesQ 590% CU_.PH.T‘ 0.368750 07-Feb 01-Mar
SeriesR  5.30% - CUPRYV 0.331250 : 07-Feb 01-Mar
Series S . 6.60% CU.PR.D . 0.412500 07-Feb 01-Mar
Seriecs W 5.80% CU.PR.A 0.362500 07-Feb 01-Mar

Series X . 6.00% CU.PR.B - 0.375000 07-Feb 01-Mar

Canadian Utilities Limited is a Canadian based worldwide crganization of companies with assets of approximaiely $6.7 billion
and more than 6,000 employees, actively engaged in three. main business divisions: Power Generation; Utilities {natural gés
and electricity transmission and distribution) and Global Enterprises, with companies active in technology, logistics and energy
services. More information about Canadian Utilities Limited can be found on its website www.canadian-utilities.com.

-30-

For further information, please contact: -
K.M. {(Karen) Watson :7
Senior Vice President & P
Chief Financial Officer —
Canadian Utilities Limited -
(403) 292-7502. k2]
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Forward-Looking -'nl'o:matron

Certain stataments containad in this news release may consnrula forward-looking staternents. Forward-iooking statements are often, but nal always, identified by the use of words such as

“anticipate®, "plan®, "expact”, 'may “will™, “intend”, “shauld”, and similar exprassions. Thase statements involve known end unknown fisks, uncertainties and other factors thal may cause aciual

results or evenis to differ materially from thosa anticipated in such forward-looking statamants. The Corparation befievas that the expeciations reﬂecred it I‘he forward- looking 5ralemanls am
I ble, but no & can be given that these expectations will prove to ba corract and such forward- .'ookrng siatements should not be unduly re.'red upon

The Corporation's actual results could differ materially from thosa anticipated in thase forward-fooking statements as & result of regulatory decisions, competitive facru.rs in the industrias in which
the Corporation operatas, prevailing economic conditions, and other {acrors many of which are bayond the control of the Carporation.

The forwarg-looking stataments containad in this nrews release rapresem the Corporauons axpectations as of the date hareol, and are subjact to change affer such date. The Corporation
disclaims any intention or obligation to updale or revise any lorward-looking statemants whether as a rasult of new information, futura events or otherwise, except as required under applicabla
securities regulations.
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CIBC Melton Glabal Securities Services Company
CIBC Mellon Trust Company

. February 16, 2007

BC Securities Commission Alberta Securities Commission
Saskatchewan Securities Commission Manitoba Securities Commission
Ontario Securities Commission . Quebec Securities Commission
The Office of the Administrator of Securities Nova Scotia Securities Commission
- New Brunswick Securities Division - Newfoundland

- Registrar of Securities — Prince Edward Island
Dear Sirs:

RE: Canadian Utilities Limited
Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Pursuant to a request from our Principal, we wish to advise you of the following dates in
connection with their Annual Meeting of Shareholders:

DATE OF MEETING . _ May 3, 2007
RECORD DATE FOR NOTICE: March 14, 2007
RECORD DATE FOR VOTING: March 14, 2007
* BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DETERMINATION DATE: March 14, 2007
SECURITIES ENTITLED TO NOTICE: ‘ Class A Non-voting
- : : " Class B Common
SECURITIES ENTITLED TO VOTE: - Class B Common

Yours very truly,
CIBC MELLON TRUST COMPANY
, “Signed”

Norma Blasetti

Associate Director, Relationship Management
(403) 232-2411
norma_blasetti@cibcmellon.com

cC: Pat Spruin, Canadian Utilities Limited
CDS & Co.
Judy Power, CIBC Mellon Trust Company

600 The Dome Tower = 333-7th Avenue SW. Suite 600 Calgary, A.B.o T2P 221 s Tel 403.232.2 400 o www.cibcmellon.com

CIBC Mellon Global Securities Services Company and (BC Metlon Trust Company are licensed users of the CIBC and Mellon trademarks.
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ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEE FOR REPORTING ISSUERS

For the Year Ending December 31,-2006
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" FORM 13-502F1

ANNUAL PAR;I'ICII"ATION'FEE FCGR REPORTING ISSUERS

Reponing'lseuer Name:
Participation Fee for the Financial Year Endingr :
A‘!.‘Class-1 Reporting Issuers
 Market valus of eguity sedurities:
Class A Non- Vot:ng Shares .
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most

recent financial year;

Simple average of the clesing price as of the last Atrading day
of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1)

Market Value of Class
Class B Common Shares:
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most

recent financial year:

Simple average of the.closing price as of the last trading day
of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1)

Market Value of Class

Market value of corporate debt or. preferred shares of Reporting lssuer -

Canadian Utilities !.imited

81,456,686

$40.94

$3,334,837,000

43,931,484

$40.91

%

Market value of corporate debt'

6.14% Debentures . - .
. Book Value at December 31, 2006

Market Value at December 31, 2006

Market Value of Class

$1,797,237,000

$100,000,000

. $108.280

$108,280,000

December 31, 2006

$3,334,837,000
(A)

$1,797,237,000
(A)

$108,280,000
(8)




Market value of preferred shares
Serles Q
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most
" recent f nancnal year

Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day
- of ea'c_h of the months of the_most recent financial year {1)

"~ Market Value of Class
Senes R :
Total number of securities outstandlng at the end of the maost

recent financial year:

“Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day
of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1)

Market Value of Class

| Series S

Total number of securities outstandlng at the end of the most
recent financial year:

Simple average of the elosing price as of the last trading day
of each of the months of the maost recent financial year (1}

Market Value of Class
Series W
Total number of securities outstandlng at the end of the most

-~ recentfi nanma! year:

- Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day
- of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1)

Market Value of Class

b

2,277,675

$25.45

- $57,967,000

2,146,730

'$25.39

$57.,967,000

~$54,506,000,

635,700

. $26.43

‘ (B)

$54,505,000

$16,802,000

6,000,000

$26.99

" (B)

$16,802,000

- $161,940,000

-(B)

$161,940,000

(B)



Series X
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most
recent financial year;

Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day
of each of the months of the most recent financial year (1)

Market Value of Class

Totai Capitalization (A+B)

Total Fee payable pursuant to Appendix A of the Rule

(1) See Schedule A

6,000,000

$27.00

$162,000,000

$162,000,000

(B)

$5,693,568,000

$38,300




January’
February
March
April

May

June

July
August
September
Oclober
November
December

Average

Schedule A

Simple Average of Closing Price On Last Trading Day of Each Month of 2006

Canadian Utilities Limited

Class A Class B
Non-Voting Common Preferred Shares

Shares Shares Series Q Series R Series S Series W ©  Series X
40.84 40.40 25.72 25.40 26.52 27.05 27.31
40.45 40.36 25.27 25.50 27.35 26.70 27.14
38.46 3863 25.70 25.36 27.35 26.95 26.90
37.65 37.65 25.40 2517 25.75 26.89 26.70
41.25 40.75 25.10 25.05 26.50 26.76 26.75
36.90- 36.54 25.05 25.49 25.70 26.92 26.85
40.25 40.30 25.85 25.39 25.40 27.00 27.00
39.96 39.98 25.31 25.59 26.98 26.85 26.68
41.02 41.43 25.40 25.19 26.50 2717 27.11
4210 42,23 25.55 2550 26.85 27.29 27.20
44 67 4495 25.40 25.40 27.10 27.19 27.18
47.73 47.66 - 2570 25.59 25.40 27.05 2717

$40.91 $25.45 .. $25.39 .. $26.43. . $26.99

$4094 ..

$27.00
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Cuss News Release™

An ATCO Company

CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
Corporate Head Office: 1400, 909 - 11 Avenue S.W,, Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 Tel: (403) 292-7500

For Immediate Release

February 14, 2007

CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED TO RELEASE 2006 YEAR-END RESULTS
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2007

CALGARY, Alberta — Canadian Utilities Limited (TSX: CU, CU.X) will release its financial results for the fourth quarter and the full
year ended December 31, 2006 on Wednesday, February 21, 2007. The news release will be distributed via www.ccnmatthews.
com and the results, including Financial Statements, Management's Discussion & Analysis and the Annual Information Form, will
be posted on www.canadian-utilities.com. .

Canadian Utilities Limited is part of the ATCO Group of Companies. ATCO Group, an Alberta based worldwide organization
of companies with assets of approximately $7.4 billion and more than 7,000 employees, is comprised of three main business
divisions: Power Generation; Utilities {natural gas and electricity transmission and distribution) and Global Enterprises, with
companies active in industrial manufacturing, technology, logistics and energy services. More information about Canadian Utilities
Limited can be found on its website www.canadian-utilities.com.

Far further information, please contact:

K.M. (Karen) Watson
Senior Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer
Canadian Utilities Limited
(403) 292-7502

Forward-Looking Informalion: .

Certain stalemants contained in this news release rmay constituta forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statarnents are often. but nol aiways, identified by the use of words such as
) “anticipate”, “plan”, “expact”. “may”. “wili", “interd”, "should”, Bnd similar expressions. These statemants involve known and unknown risks. uncerainties and othar factors that may cause ectual
rasults or avenis to ditfer matenaily irom ihose anticipated in such forward-looking statements. The Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in ihe forward-looking slaterments are
reasonabis, but no assuance can be ghan thet these expectalions will prave to ba cormect and such forward-looking statemanty should nat he unduly relied upen.

The Corpartion’s ectugl rasults couwld dittar atly from those anlicipated in thase forward-looking statemenis g a result of reguiatory decisions, compatitive factors in the industriaes in which
the Corparalion operates, prevailing aconomic conditions, and other faciars, many of which are beyond the contro! of the Corporation.

The forward-looking statements contained in this news release raprasant the Corporations' expaciations as of the date hereol, and are subject to change aftar such date. The Corporation
disclaims any intention or obligation {o update or ravise any lorward-fooking stataments whether as & rasult of new information, future avenis or otherwise, excepl as required undar applicabie
secuntigs regulalions.

§
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CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
Corporate Head Office: 1400, 909 - 11 Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 Tel: (403) 292-7500

For Immediate Release

February 21, 2007

Canadian Utilities Reports Record Earnings in 2006 .

CALGARY, Alberta - Canadian Utilities Limited (TSX: CU, CU.X) reported increased earnings of $323.9 million ($2.57 per
share) for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 2005 earnings of $265.6 million {$2.09 per share). Earnings for the
three months ended December 31, 2006 were $100.0 milflion ($0.80 per share) compared to earnings for the same three months
in 2005 of $89.1 million ($0.70 per share). ,

Financial Summa )
a Y For the Three For the Twelve

Months Ended Months Ended
December 31 December 31
2006 2005 2006 i 2005

(3 Millions except per share data)

(unaudited)

CTeTiaLee0a  2a30.4. 25158,
..168.4 1878 .. 657.5 6893

% This measure is cash generated from operations before changes in non-cash working capital and is not defined by Generally Aécepted
Accounting Principles. This measure may not be comparable to similar measures used by other companies.

Earnings for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, increased primarily due to:
* higher earnings in ATCO Power's Alberta generating plants due to higher spark spreads realized on sales of electricity in the
Alberta market,
* higher margins received for natural gas liquids, higher storage earnings due to higher capacity leased, and the timing and
demand of storage capacity sold by ATCO Midstream; and
* $11.8 million adjustment in the second quarter of 2006 to reflect changes to federal and provincial taxes and rates.

This increase was partially offset by:

« an interest and income tax expense adjustment in Alberta Power (2000} due to a Canada Revenue Agency reassessment
received in the third quarter of 2006 relating to the disposition of the H.R. Milner generating plant in 2001. Due to the
uncertainty as to whether the reassessment will ultimately be resolved in the Corporation’s favour, the Corporation reduced
earnings by $12.4 million in 2006,

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2006, increased primarily due to:
« higher earnings in ATCO Power's Alberta generating plants due to higher spark spreads realized on sales of electricity in the
Alberta market; and :
= colder temperatures in ATCO Gas.

[ continued ]
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This increase was partially offset by:
* higher maintenance expenses due to a planned outage in 2006 at Alberta Power {2000)'s Battle River generating plant.

Revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 20086, decreased primarily due to:
+ reduced recoveries of nalural gas costs in revenues in 2006 as ATCO Gas ceased selling natural gas from its natural gas
storage facilities on March 31, 2005, in accordance with Alberta Energy and Utility Board directives.

This decrease was partially offset by:
* improved merchant power prices, higher natural gas fuel purchases recovered on a ‘no-margin’ basis, and higher availability
(due to a planned outage in 2005) in ATCO Power's U.K, operations; and
+ higher storage revenues due to higher capacity leased, and the timing and demand of storage capacity sold by ATCO
Midstream.

Revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2006, decreased primarily due to:
* lower recovery of natural gas cosls in revenues due to customers supplying shrinkage gas in ethane extraction aperations in
ATCO Midstream; and
» lower volumes of natural gas purchased and resold for natural gas liquids extraction in ATCO Midstream.

This decrease was partially offset by:
* higher availability {due to a planned outage in 2005), improved merchant power prices, and higher natural gas fuel purchases
recovered on a ‘no-margin’ basis in ATCO Power's U.K. operatlons and
+ colder temperatures in ATCO Gas. :

Funds generated by operations for the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, decreased primarily due to:
* lower proceeds received from the TXU Europe Settlement in ATCO Power; and
» decreased availability incentives in Alberta Power (2000}, pnmarlly due to availability penattres pasd assomated with the
planned maintenance outage in 2006 for the Battle Hwer generating plant which occurred during & period of high. Alberta
Power Pool electricity prices.

This decrease was partially offset by:
* increased earnings.

Funds generated By operations for the three months ended December 31, 2006, decreased primarily due to:
* decreased availability incentives in Alberta Power {2000}.

This decrease was partially offset by:

+ increased earnings.

Other Recent Righlights include:

« The Corporation announced that its Board of Directors compteted its review of the strategic alternatives available for its gas
gathering 8 processing and natural gas liquids midstream business and decided to retain the business under the Corporation’s
current structure.

* ATCO I-Tek received “Top Customer Satistaction Award in North America Energy Industry” for its operation of the ATCO Gas
and ATCO Electric Call Centre. ‘

* ATCO Travel was awarded the 2006 Association of Canadian Travel Agencies Atlas Award for Travel Agency of the Year in
Alberta and the Northwest Territories.

Canadian Utilities Limited's consolidated financia! statements, management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and
results of operations for the three and twelve months ended December 31, 2006, and its 2006 annual information form, will be
available on Canadian Utilities' website (www.cz_meidiari-utilities.com) or via SEDAR (www.sedar.com) or can be requested from
the Corporation. :

[ continued |



worldwide organization of companies with assets of approximately $7.0 billion and more than 6,000 employees, actively engaged
in three main business divisions: Power Generation; Uiilities {natural gas and electricity transmission and distribution) and Global
Enterprises, with companies active in technology, logistics and energy services.

Canadian Utilities Limited is.part of the ATCO Group of Companies (www.atco.com). Canadian Utilities.Limited is a Canadian based
| -30-
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For further information, please contact:

K.M. (Karen) Watson

Senior Vice President

E_L Chief Financial Officer
) Canadian Utilities Limited

(403} 292-7502

- Forward-Looking Inforrnation:
Carain stataments comained in this news release may constitute forward-looking staloments. Forward-fooking statements are often, but not always, identifisd by 1he use of words tuch as
_ Tanticipate”, “plan”, “expact”, “may", “will", “intand”, "should”, and similar exp ions. These s fvolve Imomi and urknown fisks, uncertaintias and other factors that may cause actual
resuits or events o differ materally irom those anticipated in such lorward-fooking statements. The Corporation bl that the axp A reflocted in the forwerd-lpoking statgmeants am
reasonable. but no assurence can be given that these axpectations will prove to ba corract and such forward-looking statements should not be unduly relied upon.
The Corparation’s actual resuits could difter materally from those enticipated in these forward-fooking statements as 8 rasult of regulatory decisions, campetitive factors in the industries in which
ihe Corporation operates, prevalling economic conditions, and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation,
The forward-looking statemants containgd in this news release represent the Corporalions' expectations as of the date hereol, and arg subject to chanpe aftar such date. The Corporation
dischaims any intantion or obligation to updale or revise any torward-looking statements whather as a result of new information, tuture events or olharwise, axcept ax required under applicable
securtias regulations.
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Form 52-109F1 - Certification of Annual Filings

I, Nancy C. Southern, President & Chief Executive Officer of Canadian Utilities Limited, certify
that: '

1. [ have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of Canadian Utilities
Limited (the issuer) for the period ending December 31, 2006;

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement
not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results.of operations and cash flows of the issucr, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the annual filings;

4. The issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entitics,
particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

(b} designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the
issuer’'s GAAP; and ’

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in the
annual MD&A our conclusions about the cffectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such
evaluation; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer’s most recent interim period that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 21, 2007

[Original signed by N.C. Southern]

President & Chief Executive Officer

s S - : . FILE NO. 82-34744 :
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Form 52-109F1 - Certification of Annual Filings

[, Karen M. Watson, Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer of Canadian Ulilities
Limited, certify that;

1. 1 have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim Filings) of Canadian Utilities
Limited (the issucr) for the period ending December 31, 2006; '

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material

. fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement

not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the annual filings fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the annual filings;

4, The issuer’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting for the issuer, and
we have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused it to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
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and the preparation of financial statements for cxternal purposes in accordance with the

issuer's GAAP; and

(c) cvaluated the effectivencss of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by the annual filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in the
annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such
evaluation; and

5. I have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A any change in the issuer’s internal
control over financial reporting that occurred during the issuer's most recent interim period that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the issuer’s internal control
over financial reporting.
Date: February 21, 2007

[t Originaf signed by K.M. Wat:son]

Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer




